
1

Swyddog Cyswllt:
Maureen Potter  01352 702322
maureen.potter@flintshire.gov.uk

At: Bob Aelod o’r Cyngor

Dydd Mercher, 18 Hydref 2017

Annwyl Gynghorydd

Fe’ch gwahoddir i fynychu cyfarfod Cyngor Sir y Fflint a fydd yn cael ei gynnal am 
2.00 pm Dydd Mawrth, 24ain Hydref, 2017 yn Siambr y Cyngor, Neuadd y Sir, Yr 
Wyddgrug CH7 6NA i ystyried yr eitemau canlynol

R H A G L E N

1 YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 
Pwrpas: I derbyn unrhyw ymddiheuriadau.

2 COFNODION (Tudalennau 5 - 18)
Pwrpas: Cadarnhau cofnod cywir y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 27 Medi 

2017.

3 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD 

Pwrpas: I derbyn unrhyw ddatganiad o gysylltiad a chynghori’r Aelodau 
yn unol a hynny.

4 CYHOEDDIADAU'R CADEIRYDD 
Pwrpas: Derbyn unrhyw gyhoeddiad fel y’I dosbarthwyd.

5 DEISEBAU 
Pwrpas: Derbyn unrhyw ddeiseb.

6 CWESTIYNAU GAN Y CYHOEDD 
Pwrpas: Derbyn unrhyw gwestiwn gan y cyhoedd.

Pecyn Dogfen Gyhoeddus



2

7 CWESTIYNAU 

Pwrpas: Nodi’r atebion i unrhyw gwestiwn a gyflwynwyd yn unol â Rheol 
Sefydlog 9.4(A) y Cyngor Sir.

8 RHYBUDD O GYNNIG 
Pwrpas: Ystyried unrhyw Hysbysiadau o Gynnig a dderbyniwyd.

9 ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL Y LLUOEDD ARFOG (Tudalennau 19 - 46)
Adroddiad Prif Weithredwr 

Pwrpas: Cymeradwyo’r Adroddiad Blynyddol ar gyfer Cyfamod Lluoedd Arfog 
y Cyngor cyn ei gyhoeddi.

10 ADRODDIAD PERFFORMIAD BLYNYDDOL 2016/17 (Tudalennau 47 - 162)
Adroddiad Prif Weithredwr  

Pwrpas: Cymeradwyo Adroddiad Gwella Blynyddol 2016/17 ar gyfer y cyfnod 
o 1 Ebrill 2016 tan 31 Mawrth 2017 cyn ei gyhoeddi.

11 ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL DRAFFT 2018/19 PANEL ANNIBYNNOL 
CYMRU AR GYDNABYDDIAETH ARIANNOL (Tudalennau 163 - 248)
Adroddiad Prif Swyddog (Llywodraethu) 

Pwrpas: I alluogi’r Cyngor i ystyried Adroddiad Blynyddol Drafft 2018/19 
Panel Annibynnol Cymru ar Gydnabyddiaeth Ariannol

12 AILBENODI CYNRYCHIOLYDD CYNGOR TREF A CHYMUNED 
(Tudalennau 249 - 252)
Adroddiad Prif Swyddog (Llywodraethu) 

Pwrpas:  Ailbenodi’r cynrychiolydd Cyngor Tref a Chymuned i fod ar y 
Pwyllgor Safonau am dymor arall.

13 PENODIADAU I GYRFF ALLANOL (Tudalennau 253 - 272)
Adroddiad Prif Swyddog (Llywodraethu) 

Pwrpas: Rhoi gwybod i’r Cyngor am y cynnydd o ran penodi aelodau i gyrff 
allanol cenedlaethol a rhanbarthol.



3

Yn ddiffuant,

Robert Robins
Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd

HYSBYSIAD GWEDDARLLEDU

Bydd y cyfarfod hwn yn cael ei ffilmio a’I ddarlledu’n fyw ar wefan y Cyngor.  Bydd 
y cyfarfod cyfan yn cael ei ffilmio oni bai fod eitemau cyfrinachol neu wedi’u 
heithrio dan drafodaeth.

Yn gyffredinol ni fydd y mannau eistedd cyhoeddus yn cael eu ffilmio. Fodd 
bynnag wrth i chi ddod i mewn i'r Siambr, byddwch yn cydsynio i gael eich ffilmio 
ac i’r defnydd posibl o’r delweddau a’r recordiadau sain hynny ar gyfer 
gweddarlledu a/neu ddibenion hyfforddi.

Os oes gennych chi unrhyw gwestiynau ynglŷn â hyn, ffoniwch aelod o’r Tîm 
Gwasanaethau Democrataidd ar 01352 702345.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



CYNGOR SIR Y FFLINT
27 MEDI 2017

Cofnodion cyfarfod Cyngor Sir y Fflint a gynhaliwyd yn Siambr y Cyngor, Neuadd y Sir, 
Yr Wyddgrug, ddydd Mercher, 27 Mawrth 2017.

YN BRESENNOL: Y Cynghorydd Brian Lloyd (Cadeirydd)
Cynghorwyr: Mike Allport, Bernie Attridge, Glyn Banks, Sean Bibby, Chris Bithell, Sian 
Braun, Helen Brown, Clive Carver, Geoff Collett, Bob Connah, David Cox, Paul 
Cunningham, Jean Davies, Rob Davies, Ron Davies, Adele Davies-Cooke, Chris 
Dolphin, Rosetta Dolphin, Ian Dunbar, Andy Dunbobbin, Mared Eastwood, Carol Ellis, 
David Evans, Veronica Gay, George Hardcastle, David Healey, Gladys Healey, Patrick 
Heesom, Cindy Hinds, Andrew Holgate, Dave Hughes, Kevin Hughes, Ray Hughes, 
Dennis Hutchinson, Joe Johnson, Paul Johnson, Rita Johnson, Christine Jones, 
Richard Jones, Tudor Jones, Colin Legg, Mike Lowe, Dave Mackie, Hilary McGuill, 
Billy Mullin, Ted Palmer, Mike Peers, Michelle Perfect, Vicky Perfect, Neville Phillips, 
Tony Sharps, Aaron Shotton, Paul Shotton, Ralph Small, Ian Smith, Carolyn Thomas, 
Owen Thomas, Martin White, David Williams, David Wisinger ac Arnold Woolley

YMDDIHEURIADAU:
Cynghorwyr: Janet Axworthy, Haydn Bateman, Marion Bateman, Derek Butler, 
Richard Lloyd, Mike Reece ac Ian Roberts

YN BRESENNOL:
Prif Weithredwr; Dirprwy Swyddog Monitro; 

27. CYFLWYNIADAU

I gydnabod llwyddiannau diweddar y Cyngor yng Ngwobrau Adeiladu 
Arbenigrwydd Cymru 2017:

 Cleient y Flwyddyn – enwebwyd gan Wates Residential i gydnabod 
gwaith partneriaeth ar Raglen Tai ac Adfywio Strategol (SHARP) y 
Cyngor; a 

 Gwobr Cynaliadwyedd – wedi'i dyfarnu i Galliford Try, y contractwr a 
benodwyd gan y Cyngor i adeiladu Campws Dysgu Treffynnon.

Croesawodd y Cadeirydd y tîm SHARP a’r Tîm Moderneiddio Ysgolion i’r 
cyfarfod.  Esboniodd y Prif Weithredwr fod y Cyngor wedi bod yn llwyddiannus yn 
Seremoni Wobrwyo Adeiladu Arbenigrwydd Cymru (CEW) yn y Celtic Manor ddydd 
Gwener 14 Gorffennaf, gan ennill dwy wobr.  Dyfarnwyd y tîm SHARP gyda ‘Gwobr 
Adeiladu Arbenigrwydd yng Nghymru 2017 - Cleient y Flwyddyn – Enillydd Cyffredinol’.  
Cafodd Galliford Try eu dyfarnu yn y categori Cynaliadwyedd ar gyfer Campws Dysgu 
Treffynnon.

Dywedodd y Cynghorydd Bernie Attridge ei fod wedi bod yn anrhydedd iddo fod 
yn bresennol yn y seremoni wobrwyo ac amlinellodd y prosiectau ardderchog a oedd 
wedi’u rhoi yn yr un categori.  Diolchodd i’r tîm cyfan ac Whaites am bartneriaeth 
ardderchog gyda’r Cyngor.

Tudalen 5

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 2



Llongyfarchwyd Galliford Try gan y Cynghorydd David Healey am eu gwobr.  
Dywedodd pan ymwelodd y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Addysg ac Ieuenctid â 
Champws Dysgu Treffynnon, cafodd ei syfrdanu, roedd yn meddwl bod yr ysgol yn 
gyflawniad anhygoel ac fe dalodd deyrnged i bawb a oedd ynghlwm wrth y gwaith creu.     

28. COFNODION

Cyflwynwyd cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 20 Mehefin 2017.

Ar bwynt o gywirdeb, gofynnodd y Cynghorydd Heesom bod y geiriau 'bod 
pryder nad yw'n ymddangos bod y sector preifat yn bodloni lefel y cyflenwad o dai sy'n 
ofynnol' yn cael eu cynnwys gyda’i sylwadau yng nghofnod rhif 23.

PENDERFYNWYD:

Yn amodol ar y diwygiad i gofnod rhif 23, 20 Mehefin 2017, cymeradwyo’r cofnodion 
fel cofnod cywir a bod y Cadeirydd yn eu llofnodi.

29. DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD

Rhoddodd y Swyddog Monitro wybod y byddai cysylltiad personol yn cael ei 
gofnodi ar ran pob Aelod a oedd yn bresennol, a oedd yn aelodau o Gronfa Bensiynau 
Clwyd.  Cymerodd y cyfle i atgoffa Aelodau o’r angen i gadw eu Ffurflenni Datgan 
Cysylltiad yn gyfredol, pe bai unrhyw newidiadau wedi digwydd ers eu hetholiad.  Gellid 
gwneud hyn drwy lenwi ‘Ffurflen C’ a’i chyflwyno i Wasanaethau Democrataidd.

30. COFFÂD A THEYRNGEDAU I’R DIWEDDAR GYNGHORYDD RON HAMPSON

Arweiniodd Arweinydd y Cyngor y teyrngedau i'r diweddar Gynghorydd Ron 
Hampson.  Siaradodd am ei ymrwymiad, ei ymroddiad a'r cariad a ddangosodd at ei 
deulu; i Rita, Michelle a Stephen a'r rhan weithredol a chwaraeodd ym mywyd y Cyngor 
ers y cychwyn.  Siaradodd am ei awch am drafodaeth wleidyddol, ei ymrwymiad i’r 
Blaid Lafur a sut roedd yn ymgyrchydd ymroddedig a chwbl bresennol.  Roedd yn frwd 
dros helpu pobl a chynrychioli anghenion pobl, ac roedd ar ei fwyaf hapus wrth siarad 
â phreswylwyr yn ei ward.  Dywedodd ei fod yn ddiolchgar am y cyfle i fod wedi 
gwasanaethu ochr yn ochr â'r Cynghorydd Hampson ac y byddai’r Cyngor yn dlotach 
lle oherwydd ei farwolaeth drist.      

Talodd y Cynghorwyr Martin White, Ron Davies, Neville Phillips, Mike Peers, 
Clive Carver, Brian Lloyd, Dennis Hutchinson, Patrick Heesom, Tony Sharps, Rita 
Johnson a Carol Ellis deyrngedau i'r Cynghorydd Hampson hefyd, gan siarad yn 
benodol am ei garedigrwydd, ei boblogrwydd, ei gyfeillgarwch a’i ymroddiad i 
breswylwyr Bwcle a'r golled enfawr ar ei ôl.  

31. CYHOEDDIADAU’R CADEIRYDD

Roedd copi o Gyhoeddiadau'r Cadeirydd wedi eu rhoi i'r holl Aelodau cyn y 
cyfarfod.

Tudalen 6



Rhoddodd y Cadeirydd sylwadau penodol ar Daith Baton y Frenhines ar gyfer 
Gemau’r Gymanwlad, a diolchodd i Theatr Clwyd am eu lletygarwch.  Siaradodd am 
ymweliad Iarll Wessex â Theatr Clwyd a oedd wedi bod yn llwyddiant, ac angladd y 
Cynghorydd Ron Hampson, a’r nifer fawr a oedd yn bresennol.  

32. DEISEBAU

Ni dderbyniwyd dim.

33. CWESTIYNAU GAN Y CYHOEDD

Ni dderbyniwyd dim.

34. CWESTIYNAU

Ni dderbyniwyd dim.

35. CWESTIYNAU GAN YR AELODAU YNGLŶN Â CHOFNODION Y PWYLLGOR

Esboniodd y Prif Swyddog (Llywodraethu) bod cwestiwn wedi dod i law gan y 
Cynghorydd Heesom ar gofnodion Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu'r Amgylchedd a 
gynhaliwyd 16 Mai, 2017.  

Cyfeiriodd y Cynghorydd Patrick Heesom at gofnodion cyfarfod Pwyllgor 
Trosolwg a Chraffu’r Amgylchedd a gynhaliwyd 16 Mai, 2017. Cododd bryderon nad 
oedd y mater o ymgynghoriad Llywodraeth Cymru ar welliannau A494/A55 wedi’u 
hystyried gan y Cyngor llawn neu wedi bod yn destun trafodaeth.  Cododd bryder hefyd 
am argymhelliad Llywodraeth Cymru, y teimlodd nad oedd o fudd i ardal Sir y Fflint a 
gynrychiolwyd ganddo ef.  

Gwahoddwyd Arweinydd y Cyngor i ateb y cwestiynau gan y Cynghorydd 
Heesom.  O ran dull o weithredu, esboniodd y Prif Swyddog (Llywodraethu) mai ei 
ddealltwriaeth ef oedd bod hysbysiad wedi’i roi i holi cwestiwn ar gyfer Cadeirydd 
Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu’r Amgylchedd.  Pe esboniwyd mai i Arweinydd y Cyngor 
oedd y cwestiwn, ni fyddai’r cwestiwn wedi’i dderbyn gan na fyddai’n ateb y terfyn 
amser gofynnol, sef 10 diwrnod gwaith ar gyfer cwestiwn o’r fath.

Felly cafodd y cwestiwn ei wrthod.

36. RHYBUDD O GYNNIG

Daeth dau Rybudd o Gynnig i law:

 (i) Y Cynghorwyr Bernie Attridge a Kevin Hughes:

 “O ganlyniad i’r trychineb yn Stadiwm Hillsborough yn Sheffield 15 Ebrill 
1989, bu farw 96 o bobl ddiniwed a adawodd eu cartrefi’r bore hwnnw i 
wylio gêm bêl-droed.

Tudalen 7



Oherwydd bod y dyrfa wed’i chamreoli, collodd y ffans hynny, a oedd 
rhwng 10 a 67 oed, eu bywydau.  Fe wnaeth y trychineb hwn effeithio’n 
uniongyrchol ar deuluoedd yn Sir y Fflint.

Mae’n drist cymharu ymddygiad y rhai hynny a oedd mewn swyddi cyfrifol 
a’r cyhoedd yn ymddiriedaeth ynddynt, gyda'r urddas a'r dewrder a 
ddangoswyd gan deuluoedd y 96, sydd wedi parhau ers 1989 i frwydro 
dros gyfiawnder wrth ymdopi gyda cholled eu hanwyliaid.  Ni all y Cyngor 
anwybyddu’r boen a’r trallod a achoswyd gan y celwyddau a’r sylwadau 
dirmygus a argraffwyd yn The Sun ar y pryd – yn enwedig i deuluoedd y 
96.

Ni allwn ychwaith anwybyddu'r modd y bu i The Sun fod yn ystyfnig a 
gwrthod ymddiheuro'n gyhoeddus am y boen a achosodd, nes y daeth 
yn amlwg i'r papur newydd fod barn y cyhoedd yn gofyn am ymddiheuriad 
o'r fath.

26 Ebrill 2016, dyfarnodd y rheithgor bod pob dioddefwr wedi’u lladd yn 
anghyfreithlon.  Gobaith y Cyngor hwn yw y bydd casgliadau cwest 
Hillsborough maes o law yn arwain at gyfiawnder o’r diwedd i 
ddioddefwyr y trychineb hwn.

Rydym yn mynegi ein cefnogaeth i’r rhai a effeithiwyd gan y trychineb ac 
yn canmol ymdrechion parhaus perthnasau a ffrindiau’r dioddefwyr yn eu 
brwydr dros gyfiawnder.  Rydym yn condemnio ymddygiad papur newydd 
The Sun a byddwn ni fel Cyngor yn cefnogi unrhyw adwerthwr neu 
werthwr papurau newydd yn Sir y Fflint sy’n dewis peidio â gwerthu papur 
newydd The Sun.  Rydym yn rhoi ein cefnogaeth i’r ymgyrch “Total 
Eclipse of The Sun” ar y cyd â chynghorau eraill yng ngogledd orllewin y 
Deyrnas Unedig.”

Eiliwyd hyn gan y Cynghorydd Kevin Hughes.

I gefnogi eu Cynnig ar y cyd, siaradodd y Cynghorydd Attridge am 
ddigwyddiadau ofnadwy Hillsborough a arweiniodd at farwolaethau 96 
ffan pêl-droed diniwed, oherwydd camreolaeth o'r dyrfa, a sut roedd y 
trychineb wedi effeithio ar fywydau preswylwyr yn Sir y Fflint.  Dywedodd 
y Cynghorydd Attridge ei fod yn drist cymharu ymddygiad y rhai â swyddi 
cyfrifol a phobl yn ymddiried ynddynt, â’r teuluoedd hynny a oedd wedi 
bod yn brwydro dros gyfiawnder wrth ymdopi â cholled eu hanwyliaid.  
Dywedodd na allai’r Cyngor anwybyddu’r celwyddau a argraffwyd ym 
mhapur newydd The Sun ar y pryd, neu ei ystyfnigrwydd i argraffu 
ymddiheuriad i’r teuluoedd, a bod y Cyngor yn cefnogi’r rhai a effeithiwyd 
gan y trychineb ac yn canmol ymdrechion parhaus perthnasau a 
theuluoedd yn eu cais am gyfiawnder.  Casglodd y byddai’r Cyngor yn 
cefnogi unrhyw werthwr papurau newydd a fyddai’n dewis peidio â 
gwerth The Sun.

Esboniodd y Cynghorydd Kevin Hughes, wrth eilio’r Cynnig yn ffurfiol, 
mai’r rheswm dros gyflwyno'r Rhybudd o Gynnig oedd bod y cwest yng 

Tudalen 8



Ngorffennaf 2016 i drychineb Hillsborough wedi canfod bod 96 o 
ddioddefwyr wedi’u lladd yn anghyfreithlon.  Esboniodd nad oedd y 
Rhybudd o Gynnig yn ceisio gwaharddiad ar Bapur Newydd The Sun, fel 
y damcaniaethwyd, ond i gefnogi teuluoedd Sir y Fflint a oedd wedi'u 
heffeithio gan y trychineb, ac amlinellodd erthygl ddiweddar a oedd wedi 
bod yn The Sun, y teimlodd nad oedd yn dangos bod gwersi wedi'u 
dysgu.

Dywedodd y Cynghorydd Neville Phillips, er iddo roi sylwadau ar 
ddigwyddiadau ofnadwy Hillsborough, nad oedd yn teimlo y gallai 
gefnogi’r Rhybudd o Gynnig gan fod Plaid y Democratiaid Rhyddfrydol, 
yr oedd ef yn Aelod ohoni, yn sefyll dros ryddid ar gyfer unrhyw unigolyn, 
ac felly teimlodd y byddai’n rhagrithiol cefnogi gwaharddiad o bapur 
newydd The Sun.

Siaradodd nifer o Aelodau yn erbyn y Cynnig o Rybudd, gan ddatgan eu 
pryder o dynnu rhyddid pobl i ddewis wrth brynu The Sun.  Rhoddodd y 
Cynghorydd Hilary McGuill sylw ar y baich ariannol a fyddai’n cael ei 
osod ar werthwyr papurau newydd a fyddai’n penderfynu peidio â 
gwerthu The Sun, a holodd a fyddai’r Cyngor yn eu had-dalu nhw fel rhan 
o’r gefnogaeth a amlinellir yn y Rhybudd o Gynnig.

Holodd y Cynghorydd Clive Carver pam fod y Rhybudd o Gynnig a 
drafodwyd yn wahanol i’r fersiwn a gyhoeddwyd ar y cyfryngau 
cymdeithasol yn gynharach eleni.  Adroddodd y Prif Swyddog 
(Llywodraethu) ar y broses i Aelodau gyflwyno Rhybuddion o Gynnig ac 
esboniodd fod y diwygiadau i’r Rhybudd gwreiddiol wedi’u hawgrymu 
ganddo ef a’r Prif Weithredwr.

Siaradodd nifer o Aelodau o blaid y Rhybudd o Gynnig, gan nodi’r 
egwyddorion i gefnogi’r teuluoedd a effeithiwyd gan drychineb 
Hillsborough.  Esboniodd y Cynghorydd Aaron Shotton nad oedd y 
Cynnig yn ceisio gwneud i werthwyr papurau newydd beidio â 
chyflenwi/gwerthu The Sun, ond yn cefnogi’r rhai a oedd yn dewis 
gwneud hynny.

Cynigiodd y Cynghorydd Woolley welliant bod y Cynnig o Rybudd yn 
darfod wrth "Papur Newydd The Sun” yn ail linell y paragraff olaf.  Ni 
dderbyniwyd y gwelliant hwn gan y Cynghorwyr Attridge a Hughes.  
Eiliwyd y gwelliant gan y Cynghorydd Richard Jones a ddywedodd ei fod 
yn cefnogi teimlad y Cynnig ond wedi gorfod cytuno gyda'r sylwadau 
blaenorol ynghylch tynnu rhyddid pobl ymaith i ddewis. 

O'i roi i’r bleidlais, collwyd y gwelliant.

Yn ei hawl i ymateb, dywedodd y Cynghorydd Attridge bod yr ymgyrch 
‘Total Eclipse of the Sun' wedi cysylltu â phob Cyngor yn gofyn am eu 
cefnogaeth ac roedd nifer o Gynghorau ar draws y wlad eisoes wedi 
pasio Cynigion tebyg.  Gofynnodd fod pob Aelod yn cefnogi’r Rhybudd o 

Tudalen 9



Gynnig fel y dangoswyd yn y Rhaglen a gofynnodd am bleidlais wedi’i 
chofnodi.  Fe wnaeth y nifer ofynnol o Gynghorwyr sefyll o blaid hyn.

Rhoddwyd y cynnig gwreiddiol i’r bleidlais a’i derbyn.

Pleidleisiodd y Cynghorwyr canlynol o blaid y Rhybudd o Gynnig:
Bernie Attridge, Glyn Banks, Sean Bibby, Chris Bithell, Helen Brown, 
Geoff Collett, David Cox, Paul Cunningham, Ron Davies, Ian Dunbar, 
Andy Dunbobbin, Carol Ellis, David Evans, George Hardcastle, David 
Healey, Gladys Healey, Cindy Hinds, Dave Hughes, Kevin Hughes, Ray 
Hughes, Joe Johnson, Paul Johnson, Christine Jones, Mike Lowe, Dave 
Mackie, Billy Mullin, Ted Palmer, Michelle Perfect, Vicky Perfect, Aaron 
Shotton, Paul Shotton, Ralph Small, Ian Smith, Carolyn Thomas, Martin 
White, David Williams a David Wisinger. 

Pleidleisiodd y Cynghorwyr canlynol yn erbyn y Rhybudd o Gynnig:
Clive Carver, Bob Connah, Chris Dolphin, Neville Phillips, Tony Sharps 
ac Owen Thomas.

Fe wnaeth y Cynghorwyr canlynol ymatal rhag pleidleisio ar y Rhybudd 
o Gynnig:
Mike Allport, Sian Braun, Jean Davies, Rob Davies, Adele Davies-Cooke, 
Rosetta Dolphin, Mared Eastwood, Veronica Gay, Patrick Heesom, 
Andrew Holgate, Dennis Hutchinson, Rita Johnson, Richard Jones, 
Tudor Jones, Colin Legg, Brian Lloyd, Hilary McGuill a Mike Peers. 

 (ii) Y Cynghorydd Clive Carver

 “Mae’r Cyngor hwn yn difrïo Llywodraeth Cymru am hyrwyddo adeiladu 
mwy o dai, drwy beidio â sicrhau ar yr un pryd bod gan GIG Cymru ddigon 
o feddygfeydd i ymdopi â’r boblogaeth bresennol, heb sôn am gynnydd 
mewn poblogaeth a ddaw yn sgil y tai hyn.”

Wrth siarad am ei Rybudd o Gynnig, rhoddodd y Cynghorydd Carver sylw 
ar ofyniad gan Lywodraeth Cymru i’r Cyngor gael cyflenwad o dir ar gyfer 
adeiladu a’r gwaith parhaus ar gyhoeddi’r Cynllun Datblygu Lleol (CDLl) 
a fyddai’n canolbwyntio ar gyflawni datblygiad cynaliadwy yn y Sir am y 
15 mlynedd nesaf.  Dywedodd fod Llywodraeth Cymru angen twf ond nid 
ydyw’n darparu cyllid digonol i gefnogi hyn drwy GIG Cymru.  Amlinellodd 
achosion lle mae nifer y Meddygon Teulu wedi gostwng, ond bod nifer y 
cleifion wedi cynyddu oherwydd bod mwy o dai’n cael eu hadeiladu a sut 
roedd hyn yn cael ei ailadrodd ar draws y Sir. 

Cynigiodd y Cynghorydd Peers welliant i'r Rhybudd o Gynnig i ddisodli'r 
geiriau 'i ymdopi â'r boblogaeth bresennol' gyda 'ar gyfer y capasiti i 
ymdopi â'r boblogaeth bresennol’.  Eiliwyd y gwelliant hwn gan y 
Cynghorydd Veronica Gay a siaradodd o blaid y Rhybudd o Gynnig, yn 
seiliedig ar y diffyg cyfredol o gyfleusterau yn y ward a gynrychiolwyd 
ganddi.  

Tudalen 10



Dywedodd y Cynghorydd Heesom na allai gefnogi’r Rhybudd o Gynnig 
oherwydd prinder y tai yn y Sir a dywedodd am yr angen i barhau i 
adeiladu cartrefi gyda’r isadeiledd digonol.  

Siaradodd nifer o Gynghorwyr o blaid y gwelliant, gan nodi’r anawsterau 
wrth gael apwyntiadau Meddyg Teulu, yn enwedig mewn ardaloedd 
gwledig o’r Sir.  Siaradodd y Cynghorydd Chris Bithell am yr angen am 
gynnydd yn y cyflenwad o dai a hefyd prinder y Meddygon Teulu cymwys, 
a oedd yn broblem ledled y sir.   

Siaradodd y Cynghorydd Aaron Shotton o blaid y gwelliant ond rhoddodd 
rybudd o welliant pellach.  
Siaradodd y Cynghorydd Richard Jones o blaid y gwelliant a dywedodd 
fod gan breswylwyr yr hawl i gael gwasanaethau.  Nid oedd yn deall pam 
bod Llywodraeth Cymru wedi gwneud penderfyniad ar bolisi cynllunio 
TAN1, a deimlodd oedd yn creu problem, a dywedodd pe bai tai’n parhau 
i gael eu hadeiladu, byddai gwasanaethau’n cael eu glastwreiddio.  
Cytunodd fod angen tai, ond ochr yn ochr â hynny, bod angen ystyried 
gwasanaethau addas.    

Mewn ymateb i sylwadau am y CDLl, esboniodd y Prif Swyddog 
(Llywodraethu) fod y Cyngor wedi holi datblygwyr a oedd ganddynt 
unrhyw safle roedd am iddynt eu cynnwys yn y CDLl.  Fe wnaeth y 
Cyngor asesu’r safleoedd hynny a gafodd eu hadrodd wedyn i’r Grŵp 
Strategaeth Cynllunio a oedd yn gyfarfod preifat.  Byddai’r dogfennau hyn 
yn dod yn gyhoeddus ar y cam priodol.  Fe’i cynlluniwyd ar gyfer pob 
gwasanaeth cyhoeddus sy’n ofynnol ac fe wnaeth y tîm Cynllunio 
ymgysylltu â GIG Cymru i gynllunio ar gyfer lefelau disgwyliedig o dwf.

O'i roi i’r bleidlais, derbyniwyd y gwelliant.  Y cynnig terfynol nawr oedd 
“Mae’r Cyngor hwn yn difrïo Llywodraeth Cymru am hyrwyddo adeiladu 
mwy o dai, drwy beidio â sicrhau ar yr un pryd bod gan GIG Cymru ddigon 
o feddygfeydd â’r capasiti i ymdopi â’r boblogaeth bresennol, heb sôn am 
gynnydd mewn poblogaeth a ddaw yn sgil y tai hyn.”

Derbyniodd y Cynghorydd Shotton welliant pellach bod y geiriad canlynol 
yn cael ei ychwanegu ar ddechrau’r Rhybudd o Gynnig:-

 “Mae'r Cyngor yn galw ar Lywodraeth y DU a Llywodraeth Cymru i 
sicrhau bod digon o gyllid ar y gweill i fynd i'r afael â chapasiti Meddygon 
Teulu lleol, oherwydd y gofyniad gan Lywodraeth Cymru i hyrwyddo 
ymhellach".  

Roedd y Rhybudd o Gynnig a oedd yn weddill am aros yr un fath, yn dilyn 
dileu'r geiriad "Mae'r Cyngor hwn yn difrïo Llywodraeth Cymru am 
hyrwyddo’.  

Wrth siarad am y gwelliant, dywedodd y Cynghorydd Shotton na ddylai’r 
Cyngor ddifrïo Llywodraeth Cymru.  Cydnabu fod angen mwy o 
Feddygon Teulu ac am y cydbwysedd a oedd ei angen.  Heb yr adnoddau 

Tudalen 11



o gyllid i GIG Cymru, ni fyddai newid.  Roedd angen cyllid digonol i 
ddechrau gan Lywodraeth y DU i Lywodraeth Cymru i sicrhau bod digon 
o Feddygon Teulu i fodloni’r angen.   

Roedd y Cynghorydd Carver yn teimlo y dylid cadw’r gair “difrïo” 
oherwydd bod GIG Cymru’n defnyddio cyllid ar gyfer prosiectau eraill ac 
nid yn ddigonol i’r GIG.  Dywedodd y Cynghorydd Ellis fod cynnydd yn 
nifer y tai a adeiladwyd hefyd yn cael effaith andwyol ar ysbytai ac 
awgrymodd bod angen adolygu iechyd a gofal cymdeithasol ar draws 
Cymru.    

O’i roi i’r bleidlais, derbyniwyd y gwelliant, fel y cylchredwyd gan y 
Cynghorydd Aaron Shotton, yn cynnwys y gwelliant llwyddiannus gan y 
Cynghorydd Peers, fel y darllenwyd gan y Prif Swyddog (Llywodraethu) 
er eglurdeb.

Gofynnodd y Cynghorydd Carver am bleidlais wedi’i chofnodi ond ni 
chafodd ei chefnogi gan nifer ofynnol yr Aelodau.

O’i roi i’r bleidlais, daeth y gwelliant yn gynnig terfynol, ac fe’i derbyniwyd.

PENDERFYNWYD:

 (a) Bod Rhybudd o Gynnig gan y Cynghorydd Attridge a Kevin Hughes yn cael ei 
gefnogi fel a ganlyn: “O ganlyniad i’r trychineb yn Stadiwm Hillsborough yn 
Sheffield 15 Ebrill 1989, bu farw 96 o bobl ddiniwed a adawodd eu cartrefi’r 
bore hwnnw i wylio gêm pêl-droed.  Oherwydd bod y dyrfa wedi’i chamreoli, 
collodd y ffans hynny, a oedd rhwng 10 a 67 oed, eu bywydau.  Fe wnaeth y 
trychineb hwn effeithio’n uniongyrchol ar deuluoedd yn Sir y Fflint.  Mae’n drist 
cymharu ymddygiad y rhai hynny a oedd mewn swyddi cyfrifol a’r cyhoedd yn 
ymddiried ynddynt, gyda'r urddas a'r dewrder a ddangoswyd gan deuluoedd y 
96, sydd wedi parhau ers 1989 i frwydro dros gyfiawnder wrth ymdopi gyda 
cholled eu hanwyliaid.  Ni all y Cyngor anwybyddu’r boen a’r trallod a 
achoswyd gan y celwyddau a’r sylwadau dirmygus a argraffwyd yn The Sun 
ar y pryd - yn enwedig i deuluoedd y 96 a fu farw. Ni allwn ychwaith 
anwybyddu'r modd y bu i The Sun fod yn ystyfnig a gwrthod ymddiheuro'n iawn 
am y boen a achosodd, nes y daeth yn amlwg i'r papur newydd fod barn y 
cyhoedd yn gofyn am ymddiheuriad o'r fath.  26 Ebrill 2016, dyfarnodd y 
rheithgor bod pob dioddefwr wedi’u lladd yn anghyfreithlon.  Gobaith y Cyngor 
hwn yw y bydd casgliadau cwest Hillsborough maes o law yn arwain at 
gyfiawnder o’r diwedd i ddioddefwyr y trychineb hwn.  Rydym yn mynegi ein 
cefnogaeth i’r rhai a effeithiwyd gan y trychineb ac yn canmol ymdrechion 
parhaus perthnasau a ffrindiau’r dioddefwyr yn eu brwydr dros gyfiawnder.  
Rydym yn condemnio ymddygiad papur newydd The Sun a byddwn ni fel 
Cyngor yn cefnogi unrhyw adwerthwr neu werthwr papurau newydd yn Sir y 
Fflint sy’n dewis peidio â gwerthu papur newydd The Sun.  Rydym yn rhoi ein 
cefnogaeth i’r ymgyrch “Total Eclipse of The Sun” ar y cyd â chynghorau eraill 
yng ngogledd orllewin y Deyrnas Unedig.”; a

Tudalen 12



 (b) Bod y gwelliant i'r Rhybudd o Gynnig gan y Cynghorydd Carver fel y’i 
cyflwynwyd gan y Cynghorydd Aaron Shotton, yn cynnwys y gwelliant 
llwyddiannus gan y Cynghorydd Peers, yn cael ei gefnogi fel a ganlyn: “Bod y 
Cyngor hwn yn galw ar Lywodraeth y DU a Llywodraeth Cymru i sicrhau bod 
cyllid digonol ar y gweill i fynd i’r afael â chapasiti Meddygon Teulu lleol, 
oherwydd y gofyniad gan Lywodraeth Cymru i hyrwyddo ymhellach y gwaith o 
adeiladu mwy o dai, wrth beidio â sicrhau ar yr un pryd bod gan GIG Cymru 
ddigon o feddygfeydd Meddygon Teulu neu’r capasiti i ymdopi â'r boblogaeth 
bresennol, heb sôn am gynnydd yn y boblogaeth a ddaw yn sgil y tai hyn."

37. CYNLLUN Y CYNGOR 2017-23

Cyflwynodd y Prif Weithredwr yr adroddiad ar Gynllun y Cyngor 2017-23. Roedd 
y Cynllun wedi’i adolygu a’i ddiweddaru i adlewyrchu blaenoriaethau allweddol y 
Cyngor am y tymor o 5 mlynedd o dan y weinyddiaeth a oedd newydd ei hethol.

Roedd gan y Cynllun chwe blaenoriaeth gydag is-flaenoriaethau, gyda’r chwe 
blaenoriaeth â golwg tymor hir ar gyfer y pum mlynedd nesaf.  Roedd y Cynllun wedi’i 
gyflwyno i'r chwe Phwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu, gyda phedwar ohonynt yn cefnogi heb 
sylwadau, a dau yn cefnogi’r Cynllun ond gyda sylwadau penodol a gyflwynwyd i’r 
Cabinet.  Roedd copi o’r gwelliannau i’r Cynllun, a argymhellwyd i’r Cabinet, wedi’u 
cylchredeg i’r holl Aelodau cyn dechrau’r cyfarfod.  

Diolchodd y Cynghorydd Aaron Shotton i bob Aelod a gyfrannodd at y Cynllun, 
gan gynnwys y sylwadau a wnaed yn y Pwyllgorau Trosolwg a Chraffu.  Roedd 
sylwadau adeiladol gan y Pwyllgorau hynny wedi’u derbyn gan y Cabinet yn gynharach 
yn y dydd a bellach wedi’u hargymell i’r Cyngor.  Dywedodd mai’r chwe blaenoriaeth 
allweddol oedd y blaenoriaethau allweddol yn seiliedig ar faterion cymdeithasol a oedd 
yn uchel ar raglen y weinyddiaeth.  Ar adeg o galedi ariannol, roedd yn bwysig 
canolbwyntio ar y blaenoriaethau.

Rhoddodd y Cynghorydd Richard Jones sylw ar y gwelliant cyntaf o amgylch 
‘Cyngor Uchelgeisiol’ a dywedodd, yn ystod cyfarfod Trosolwg a Chraffu Adnoddau 
Corfforaethol, nad oedd wedi sôn am unrhyw dref benodol ac wedi gofyn bod "yn 
arbennig ar gyfer defnydd preswyl" yn cael ei dynnu oddi yno, a gefnogwyd gan y 
Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu.  Teimlai y byddai datblygwyr yn defnyddio'r ddogfen lefel 
uchel hon i wneud canol trefi'n dameidiog er mwyn darparu ardaloedd preswyl, a 
gofynnodd am dynnu'r geiriau hyn oddi yno.

Rhoddodd y Cynghorydd Jones sylw hefyd ar ddatblygu strategaethau cludiant 
rhanbarthol a lleol a cheisiodd sicrhau gwariant teg ar draws trefi ac nid Glannau 
Dyfrdwy yn unig.  Roedd eisiau cynllun a oedd yn anfon datblygiad economaidd pob 
tref ymlaen, a holodd pam nad oedd yr argymhellion o amgylch hyn a gyflwynwyd o'r 
Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu wedi'u cyflwyno.  Dywedodd y Prif Weithredwr fod y 
geiriad wedi ei wella, ar y pwynt cyntaf, i ddadbwysleisio tai; yn ysbryd y Pwyllgor 
Trosolwg a Chraffu Adnoddau Corfforaethol roedd y geiriad yn awgrymu datblygiad 
aml-ddefnydd o ganol trefi i gefnogi eu hyfywedd.  Ar yr ail bwynt, bu trafodaeth ar 
ddyrannu adnoddau'n deg ar draws canol trefi, ac fel y nodwyd yn ystod y Pwyllgor 
Trosolwg a Chraffu Adnoddau Corfforaethol, nid oedd yn bosibl bod yn gydradd gan 

Tudalen 13



fod llawer o'r cyllid a dderbynnir yn aml yn dod o ffynonellau’r llywodraeth ac wedi eu 
targedu tuag at ardaloedd gyda nodweddion penodol fel amddifadedd.  

Eglurodd y Cynghorydd Attridge bod y flaenoriaeth i ddatblygu dull wedi’i 
adnewyddu i gefnogi canol trefi a’r geiriad penodol o amgylch ‘defnydd preswyl’ yn 
ymwneud â gwelliannau i eiddo uwchben siopau yng nghanol trefi.  Ychwanegodd y 
Prif Weithredwr y byddai polisi cynllunio a’r Cynllun Datblygu Lleol yn darparu’r dulliau 
diogelu.

Rhoddodd y Cynghorydd Peers sylw ar dudalen 34 ar ddatblygu anghenion twf 
tai'r Cyngor, a holodd sut y daethpwyd i’r ffigur o 50 cartref a sut roedd yn ymwneud 
â'r galw.  Ar y ddogfen mesurau a cherrig milltir, ni allai weld y garreg filltir o lwyddiant 
yn gysylltiedig â’r cynllun gweithredu ar gyfer datblygu tai cyngor a gofynnodd a oedd 
modd edrych ar hyn.  Ar dudalen 38, gofal preswyl a chynlluniau ar gyfer 2017/18 a 
sicrhau darpariaeth gofal cartref, holodd a oedd modd ychwanegu’r gair ‘fforddiadwy’ 
neu a oedd hyn y tu hwnt i reolaeth y Cyngor.  Ar dudalen 39, rhoddodd sylw ar y 
risgiau i’w rheoli yn y Cynllun, yn enwedig y risgiau i ddarparu gofal cymdeithasol a 
oedd yn annigonol, a holodd a oedd cynllun gweithredu lliniaru, pe bai cyflenwad yn 
rhagori ar y galw.  Ar dudalen 40, Gwasanaethau Iechyd Cymdeithasol Cymunedol 
Integredig a gweithio gyda Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Betsi Cadwaladr, a holodd a oedd 
modd cynnwys Ysbyty Iarlles Caer yn y cynllun 5 mlynedd. 

Ymatebodd y Prif Weithredwr y gallai’r Cynllun gynnwys dim ond dyheadau lle 
roedd gan y Cyngor level uchel o reolaeth drosto yn unig, ac felly nid oedd modd 
ychwanegu blaenoriaethau o amgylch gofal eilaidd ac ysbytai at y Cynllun, ac roedd 
hyn hefyd yn gymwys i’r awgrym o amgylch cynnwys y gair ‘fforddiadwy’ o fewn 
darparu cartrefi gofal.  Gallai trafodaeth bellach ar sut roedd risgiau o amgylch gofal 
cymdeithasol yn cael eu rheoli ddigwydd y tu allan i’r cyfarfod.   

Esboniodd y Prif Swyddog (Cymuned a Menter) fod y ffigur o 50 cartref wedi’i 
argymell yn dilyn yr asesiad marchnad dai leol a nododd y lefel ofynnol o dai 
cymdeithasol, fforddiadwy.  Roedd y ffigurau’n seiliedig ar waith manwl o amgylch beth 
y gellid ei ddarparu dros y 12 mis nesaf, yn cynnwys, y cap ar fenthyca a oedd ar gael 
drwy’r Cyfrif Refeniw Tai, ceisiadau cynlluniau hysbys y cytunwyd arnynt, a chyllid 
cyfalaf ar gael drwy Lywodraeth Cymru.  Roedd bwlch rhwng anghenion tai a beth 
allai'r Cyngor ei ddarparu, felly roedd y Cyngor yn gweithio'n agos gyda Llywodraeth 
Cymru i gyflwyno dadl gref dros godi cap ar fenthyca'r Cyfrif Refeniw Tai.

O’i roi i’r bleidlais, derbyniwyd y cynllun, yn cynnwys y sylwadau y’i diwygiwyd 
gan y Pwyllgorau Trosolwg a Chraffu a'r Cabinet.

PENDERFYNWYD:

Bod Cynllun y Cyngor 2017-23 yn cael ei fabwysiadu gan y Cyngor Sir i'w gyhoeddi'n 
derfynol erbyn diwedd Medi.

38. DATGANIAD CYFRIFON

Cyflwynodd y Prif Weithredwr yr adroddiad ar Ddatganiad Cyfrifon 2016/17 a’r 
Wybodaeth Ariannol Atodol i’r Datganiad Cyfrifon 2016/17.

Tudalen 14



Esboniodd y Rheolwr Cyllid Corfforaethol fod yr adroddiad wedi ceisio 
cymeradwyaeth ffurfiol o Ddatganiad Cyfrifon 2016/17 a’r Datganiad Llywodraethu 
Blynyddol, gyda chopi wedi’i gynnwys gyda’r adroddiad ac a ystyriwyd gan y Pwyllgor 
Archwilio ym Mehefin 2017. Hefyd yn yr adroddiad, cafwyd yr wybodaeth atodol i’r 
cyfrifon ar y cyflog cyfwerth â llawn amser, ar gais yr Aelodau mewn cyfarfod blaenorol, 
fel Rhybudd o Gynnig i'r Cyngor.

Dywedodd Matthew Edwards, Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru, ei fod yn hapus i roi 
gwybod bod yr adroddiadau’n gadarnhaol ac yn dilyn cymeradwyo Datganiad Cyfrifon 
2016/17, roedd yr Archwilydd Cyffredinol yn bwriadu cynnig barn ddiamod ar y 
datganiadau ariannol a fyddai’n cadarnhau bod y cyfrifon yn cynnig safbwynt teg a gwir 
ym mhob ystyr materol, a’u bod wedi paratoi yn unol â Chod Ymarfer CIPFA.  
Rhoddodd sylwadau hefyd ar ansawdd uchel y datganiadau fel y cawsant eu cyflwyno.

Nid oedd y Cyfrifon Cronfa Bensiwn o’r un safon uchel ag a ddangoswyd yn 
flaenorol, ond rhoddwyd sicrwydd bod trefniadau yn eu lle i roi sylw i hyn yn y dyfodol.

Dywedodd y Cynghorydd Clive Carver ei fod wedi ymholi ynghylch taliadau a 
wnaed i ymgynghorwyr ac uwch swyddogion. Ers y Rhybudd o Gynnig i’r Cyngor, 
roedd yr wybodaeth hon wedi'i chynnwys fel dogfen atodol.  Eleni, nid oedd yn cynnwys 
yr un faint o wybodaeth ac roedd nawr wedi’i chynnwys yn y prif adroddiad.  Esboniodd 
y Prif Weithredwr y gellid cynnwys yr holl wybodaeth mewn un adroddiad ac roedd y 
cyfan wedi’i gyflwyno.  Eglurodd y Rheolwr Cyllid Corfforaethol nad oedd yr wybodaeth 
yn ffurfio rhan o’r cyfrifon ffurfiol ond roedd yn cael ei darparu er gwybodaeth i Aelodau.

Holodd y Cynghorydd Mike Peers pam fod gan y Gwasanaethau Landlordiaid 
orwariant o £66,000 a pham fod prosiectau'r Cyfrifon Refeniw Tai â chyllideb o 0 ond 
bod £111,000 wedi’i wario.  Holodd hefyd pam y gwariwyd mwy i dalu am wariant, a 
holodd beth oedd yr ad-daliadau misol ar y lefel fenthyca a oedd yn £251m.  Rhoddodd 
sylwadau ar y gostyngiad ymddangosiadol mewn cronfeydd wrth gefn, a holodd am 
ragor o wybodaeth am hyn, a holodd hefyd sut roedd dyledion drwg yn cael sylw.  
Awgrymodd y Prif Weithredwr, gan nad oedd y cwestiynau’n effeithio ar ddilysrwydd y 
cyfrifon, y gellid rhoi ymatebion ysgrifenedig os oedd hynny’n dderbyniol, gyda'r 
Cynghorydd Peers yn ateb ei fod yn dderbyniol.  Cadarnhawyd y byddai copi o’r 
ymateb yn cael ei roi i bob Aelod.    

Rhoddodd y Cynghorydd Richard Jones sylw ar y benthyciad a oedd yn weddill 
o £860,000 gan Lywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer mentrau adfywio yng Nglannau Dyfrdwy, 
a holodd pa mor hir oedd y telerau ad-dalu ar y benthyciad hwn.  Holodd hefyd am fwy 
o wybodaeth am werth net y Cyngor, a oedd wedi gostwng £168m i £43m.  Ymatebodd 
y Rheolwr Cyllid, Strategaeth a Thechnegol, bod y telerau ad-dalu ar y benthyciad yn 
15 mlynedd.  Byddai ymateb ysgrifenedig ar werth net y Cyngor yn cael ei roi i bob 
Aelod yn dilyn y cyfarfod. 

Dywedodd y Cynghorydd Helen Brown fod y Pwyllgor Archwilio wedi cael 
cyflwyniad manwl gan swyddogion ar y datganiad cyfrifon, a oedd yn rhoi cynnydd da, 
a dywedodd fod swyddogion o Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru hefyd wedi mynychu’r 
cyfarfod i amlinellu eu canfyddiadau.  Cadarnhaodd y Cynghorydd Brown nad oedd 

Tudalen 15



gan y Pwyllgor unrhyw faterion yr oedd angen tynnu sylw’r Cyngor atynt, ac amlinellodd 
yr argymhellion gan y Pwyllgor Archwilio.   

Ar ôl ei roi i bleidlais, cymeradwywyd yr argymhellion.

PENDERFYNWYD:

 (a) Cymeradwyo fersiwn terfynol Datganiad  Cyfrifon 2016/17; 

 (b) Cymeradwyo’r Llythyr Sylwadau – Cyngor Sir y Fflint; a Llythyr Sylwadau – 
Cronfa Bensiynau Clwyd; a

 (c) Nodi'r Wybodaeth Ariannol Atodol i Ddatganiad Cyfrifon 2016/17.

39. ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL RHEOLI’R TRYSORLYS 2016/17

Cyflwynodd y Rheolwr Cyllid Corfforaethol Adroddiad Blynyddol Rheoli’r 
Trysorlys 2016/17. Roedd yr Adroddiad Blynyddol wedi dod i law gan y Pwyllgor 
Archwilio 19 Gorffennaf 2017 a’r Cabinet 26 Medi 2017.

PENDERFYNWYD:

Cymeradwyo Adroddiad Blynyddol Rheoli’r Trysorlys 2016/17. 

40. PAPUR YMGYNGHORI LLYWODRAETH CYMRU DIWYGIAD ETHOLIADOL 
MEWN LLYWODRAETH LEOL YNG NGHYMRU 

Cyflwynodd y Prif Weithredwr yr adroddiad ar Bapur Ymgynghori Llywodraeth 
Cymru Diwygiad Etholiadol mewn Llywodraeth Leol yng Nghymru.

Rhoddodd sylwadau ar y meysydd a gwmpaswyd yn y papur ymgynghori ar:

 Yr hawl i bleidleisio; 
 Cofrestru; 
 Y system bleidleisio;
 Y broses bleidleisio;
 Sefyll mewn etholiad; a 
 Swyddogion Canlyniadau

Rhoddodd y Cynghorydd Hilary McGuill sylw ar y cynnig i gael gwared ar 
gyfeiriad yr ymgeiswyr.  Dywedodd y Prif Weithredwr y gallai Aelodau ddatgelu ym 
mha ward maent yn byw o’i gymharu â’u cyfeiriad pe bai'r cynnig yn cael ei weithredu, 
ac y byddai’n awgrymu fod hyn yn dod yn weithredol o ran y gwasgnod statudol ar 
gyfer deunyddiau wedi eu cyhoeddi pe bai’r ymgeisydd yn hunan hyrwyddo eu hunain 
heb hyrwyddwr ar wahân.

Gofynnodd y Cynghorydd Mike Peers am eglurhad ar dudalen 344, Pleidlais 
Sengl Drosglwyddadwy, a’i bod yn system etholiadol ffafraethol, a holodd a oedd modd 
cadarnhau hyn.  Dywedodd y Prif Swyddog (Llywodraethu) fod hyn yn golygu bod y 
dewis cyntaf a’r ail ddewis yn cael ei ddynodi gan yr etholydd.  Roedd y Cyngor yn cael 

Tudalen 16



ei gynghori i wrthwynebu datganoli’r dewis o ran y system bleidleisio i gynghorau 
unigol, ac nid yr egwyddor o'r system bleidleisio.

Ar ôl ei roi i bleidlais, cymeradwywyd yr argymhelliad.  Cadarnhaodd y Prif 
Weithredwr, byddai copi ar gael ar ôl i'r ymateb gael ei gwblhau.

PENDERFYNWYD:

Gwneud yr ymateb arfaethedig i’r papur ymgynghori. 

41. DEDDF YR UNDEBAU LLAFUR (CYMRU)

PENDERFYNWYD:

Gohirio’r eitem hon tan y cyfarfod nesaf a drefnwyd ar gyfer 24 Hydref, 2017.

42. AILBENODI CYNRYCHIOLWYR CYNGOR TREF A CHYMUNED I'R PWYLLGOR 
SAFONAU

PENDERFYNWYD:

Gohirio’r eitem hon tan y cyfarfod nesaf a drefnwyd ar gyfer 24 Hydref, 2017.

43. PENODIADAU I GYRFF ALLANOL

PENDERFYNWYD:

Gohirio’r eitem hon tan y cyfarfod nesaf a drefnwyd ar gyfer 24 Hydref, 2017.

26. AELODAU O’R WASG A’R CYHOEDD YN BRESENNOL

Roedd un aelod o’r wasg yn bresennol.

 (Dechreuodd y cyfarfod am 2.00yp a gorffennodd am 5.40yp)

Cadeirydd

Tudalen 17



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Date of Meeting Tuesday, 24 October 2017

Report Subject Armed Forces Annual Report

Report Author Chief Executive

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This is the first Annual Report of Flintshire County Council’s Armed Forces 
Covenant. 

The Armed Forces Covenant is a promise from the nation that those who serve or 
have served in the armed forces, and their families, are treated fairly.  The Covenant 
is a national responsibility involving government, businesses, local authorities, 
charities and the public, encouraging local communities to support the Armed 
Forces in their area and to promote understanding and awareness.  

The Council is committed to supporting the Armed Forces Community by working 
with a range of partners who have signed our Covenant,  including Flintshire Local 
Voluntary Council and the Royal British Legion. The North Wales Fire and Rescue 
Service will also be joining the Armed Forces Covenant and will sign the Flintshire 
Covenant on 24th October 2017. The purpose of the Flintshire Covenant is to 
encourage support for the Armed Forces Community who work and/or live in 
Flintshire and to recognise and remember the sacrifices made by members of this 
Armed Forces Community. 

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 Endorse the positive progress made in meeting the Armed Forces Covenant 
and supporting the commitments for further improvement.

2 Approve the Armed Forces Covenant Annual Report prior publication on the 
Council’s website.

Tudalen 19

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 9



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 EXPLAINING THE ARMED FORCES COVENANT

1.01 The Armed Forces Covenant aims to recognise the sacrifices made by the 
Armed Forces community within the County and help provide support for 
them and their families ensuring they do not face disadvantage because of 
military service. The Armed Forces Community includes in-Service and ex-
Service personnel, families and widow(er)s. The Covenant is a two-way 
arrangement and the Armed Forces Community is encouraged to do as 
much as they can to support their community.

The Council proudly hosted the North Wales Armed Forces Day in June 
2013 and signed the Covenant in July 2013.  

1.02 The Covenant covers issues affecting the Armed Forces Community such 
as housing, education and welfare support after military service has ended.

1.03 A multi-agency steering group has been established with members:

 Flintshire County Council employees who are veterans
 Representatives of key Council services, including Benefits, 

Education,  Housing, Social Services, 
 Soldiers , Sailors, Airmen and their families Association (SSAFA)
 Royal British Legion (RBL)
 A representative of the Armed Forces
 Flintshire Local Voluntary Council.

Councillor Andrew Dunbobbin is the Council’s Armed Forces Champion and 
is the chair of this group.

1.04 The Steering Group has completed a self-assessment against the Covenant 
and developed an action plan to progress its work. Key achievements are 
set out in the Annual report:

 updated webpages on the Council website providing information and 
support for the Armed Forces Community and links to key agencies 
such as Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board;

 a commitment to the Covenant in the Council Plan 2017/18;
 the implementation of a Reservist Policy providing additional two 

weeks leave for employees who are Reservists enabling them to 
attend their annual training camp and provide support for those 
mobilised for duty to assist them transition back to the workplace and 
retain continuous service status;

 offer guaranteed interviews for veterans who meet the essential 
criteria of the job role;

 receiving the Bronze award from the Defence Employer Recognition 
Scheme for the Council’s Veteran friendly employment policies and 
practices; 

 demonstrating commitment to the Armed Forces Covenant by 
promoting Reserves Day and Armed Forces Day;

Tudalen 20



 support from County Council to the Royal British Legion “Count Them 
In” campaign which is requesting that questions are included to 
identify those  serving in the Armed Forces within the next Census;

 supported Accommodation Schemes for veterans are available in 
Flintshire in partnership with First Choice Housing; 

 implemented the Welsh Government’s Housing Pathway for Ex 
Service Personnel to which recognises the specific issues faced by 
veterans and aims to ensure they receive the right support;

 promotion of the Welsh Government’s free swimming initiative for 
veterans and armed forces personnel, available at four swimming 
pools in the County; 

 included veterans within the population needs assessment as 
required by the Social Services and Well-being Act (2014); and

 promoted our commitment to the Covenant in different ways including 
participating in the North Wales Armed Forces Transition Fair raising 
the profile of Council services and employment opportunities.

1.05 Also included in the report are areas for improvement:
 

 for Council services to start capturing the profile of their customers to 
identify members of the Armed Forces Community. This will enable 
services to better understand the  make-up of the Armed Forces 
community in Flintshire and their needs;

 for schools to start capturing whether any pupils/students are children 
of serving members of the Armed Forces;

 to develop a training programme for employees in public facing 
services to ensure they are aware and understand specific issues 
and needs of the families and individuals affected by the Covenant;

 publication of a sign posting leaflet to services, specifically for the 
Armed Forces Community;

 supporting and developing projects suitable for MoD Covenant grant 
applications; 

 continue to celebrate and commemorate key events recognising the 
contribution of the Armed Forces, such as Armed Forces Day, 
Reservists Day;  and

 develop specialist hubs for the Armed Forces Community across the 
county to enable them to access specialist services and support.

1.06 North Wales Fire and Rescue Service will be joining the Flintshire Covenant 
and will formally sign the Covenant on 24th October 2017.  

1.07 The Council is also an active member of the Regional North Wales Regional 
Armed Forces Forum which includes all six North Wales local authorities 
and BCUHB.  A successful North Wales local authorities’ bid for two year 
Ministry of Defence (MOD) funding has led to the temporary appointment of 
two North Wales Armed Forces Liaison officers. One post for North West 
Wales and the other post for North East Wales. These posts will support 
local authorities implement the Covenant and work with services to meet the 
needs of the Armed Forces Community.

Tudalen 21



2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 There are no financial resource implications arising directly from this report.  
Covenant Funds are available from the MoD which will be pursued to 
support projects and activities across Flintshire to support the Covenant.  

2.02 Employees in public facing services will complete basic awareness training 
to develop a better understanding of the needs of the Armed Forces 
Community. 

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 The Armed Forces Steering Group has been involved in the activities and 
improvements identified in the Annual Report.

4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 Adhering to the commitments of the Covenant would ensure that Armed 
Forces, their families and veterans are treated fairly when accessing Council 
services.

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 Appendix 1: Armed Forces Covenant Annual Report 2016/17

6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 Armed Forces Covenant 

Contact Officer: Fiona Mocko, Strategic Policy Advisor
Telephone: 01352 702122
E-mail: fiona.mocko@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 Armed Forces Community: includes in-Service and ex-Service personnel, 
their families and widow(er)s.

Armed Forces Covenant: is a promise of mutual support between a civilian 
community and its local armed forces community.

Tudalen 22

https://www.armedforcescovenant.gov.uk/


1

Flintshire County 
Council

Armed Forces Covenant 
Annual Report 2016/17

Tudalen 23



2

Armed Forces Covenant Annual Report 2016/17

Introduction

I am very pleased to introduce Flintshire County Council’s first Armed 
Forces Covenant Annual Report, setting out the progress we have made 
since first signing the Covenant in 2013. 

During the past 12 months we have accelerated our commitment to the 
Covenant, refreshing our action plan and extending membership of the 
Steering Group.  I am proud and delighted to report that this has resulted 
in the Council being awarded the Bronze Award in the Employer 
Recognition Scheme.

We recognise the important role that the Armed Forces community make 
to our community and nation and we are committed to ensuring that we 
recognise their contributions and ensure that those who give the most do 
not suffer detriment when accessing our services. During the next 12 
months we will continue to push forward with our action plan, supporting 
the Armed Forces Community and raising public awareness of the 
contributions they make. With the support of the North East Wales 
Regional Armed Forces Liaison Officer I am confident we will continue to 
make excellent progress.

Councillor Andrew Dunbobbin
Armed Forces Champion

Tudalen 24

http://committeemeetings.flintshire.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=1330&LLL=0


3

Background 

The Armed Forces Community Covenant is a voluntary statement of mutual support 
between a civilian community and its local Armed Forces Community. It is intended 
to complement the Armed Forces Covenant, which outlines the moral obligation 
between the Nation, the Government and the Armed Forces, at a local level. 

The purpose of the Flintshire Covenant is to encourage support for the Armed 
Forces Community working and residing in Flintshire and to recognise and 
remember the sacrifices made by members of this Armed Forces Community, 
particularly those who have given the most. This includes in-Service and ex-service 
personnel, their families and widow(er)s in Flintshire.

 The Covenant encourages the integration of Service life into civilian life as well as 
encouraging members of the armed forces community to help in their local 
community. Flintshire County Council signed the Covenant in July 2013 and hosted 
the North Wales Armed Forces Day in June 2013. 

There are currently no army barracks in Flintshire, Royal Air Force (RAF) base in 
Sealand closed in 2006, however, according to research by the Royal British Legion 
(RBL) Flintshire has the highest number and proportion of veterans in North Wales- 
10,440 (21%). A veteran is someone who has served in Her Majesty’s Armed Forces 
and includes people who have served in the Reserves. 

This report sets out what we have achieved during the past 12 months and our key 
priorities for the next 12 months. It is set out under the following headings:

 What we have achieved during 2016/17
 Regional Armed Forces Forum
 Governance
 Next Steps

Tudalen 25

https://www.gov.uk/government/policies/armed-forces-covenant


4

What we have achieved during 2016/17

 Armed Forces Steering Group
We have refreshed the membership and terms of reference of our Armed Forces 
Steering Group which was originally established in March 2015.  Membership of the 
new Steering Group includes:

 The Ministry of Defence (MOD)
 Royal British Legion (RBL)
 Soldiers, Sailors, Airmen and their families Association (SSAFA)
 Flintshire County Council (FCC) employees who are veterans
 FCC services including – Benefits Team, Business and Communications 

Team, Customer Services, Education, Economic Regeneration, Housing, 
Human Resources, Leisure Services, Social Services. 

Councillor Andrew Dunbobbin is the elected member Armed Forces Champion and 
chairs the Steering Group. The new Regional North East Wales Armed Forces 
Liaison Officer will also be joining this group.

A copy of the terms of reference and action plan for the Steering Group are attached 
as Appendix 1 and 2 respectively.

Armed Forces Web pages on the Council website
We have dedicated six pages on the Council website promoting our commitment to 
the Armed Forces Covenant and providing information for the Armed Forces 
community. 

We provide links to the support provided by other agencies including Welsh 
Government and Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board (BCUHB).

Council Priority
We take seriously the commitment we have made to the Armed Forces Covenant 
and this is demonstrated in the Council’s priorities for 2017/18.  Under the priority of 
Modern and Efficient Council, we have agreed that we will: 

Ensure our Armed Forces Community and their families are not 
disadvantaged when accessing Council Services.

We will monitor our achievement through monitoring the achievements of the Armed 
Forces Covenant Action Plan.

A statement was read out during full County Council by the Armed Forces Champion 
Councillor Andrew Dunbobbin in March 2017 requesting the Council to support 
RBL’s “Count Them In” campaign. This campaign is asking the Office for National 
Statistics (ONS), to include questions about serving in the Armed Forces and being 
members of the Armed Forces community in the Census 2021. 

Tudalen 26

http://www.britishlegion.org.uk/get-involved/campaign/


5

Education
We do not currently collate information to ascertain the numbers of pupils/learners 
with parent (s) /carer (s) who are serving members of the Armed Forces (AF). 
Collating this data will be a priority during the next 12 months and will help us 
understand more about the size of the AF community in Flintshire and their needs.

We will be able to report on this in more detail in our 2017/18 annual report.

Employment
We were very proud to receive the Bronze award in the Defence Employer 
Recognition Scheme (ERS) awarded by the Ministry of Defence in January 2017. 
The ERS encourages employers to support defence and inspire others to do the 
same. There are three levels - Bronze, Silver and Gold. The award recognises that 
we are open to employing reservists, armed forces veterans, cadet instructors and 
partners of military personnel and that our values are aligned with the Armed Forces 
Covenant. 

Reserves Day

We proudly supported Reserves Day as we recognise the valuable contribution 
Council employees who are Reservists make to the Armed Forces, our community, 
our organisation and nation. Reservists give up their spare time to serve in the 
Reserve Forces, balancing their civilian life with a military career to ensure that 
should their country need them, they would be ready to serve. We raised the Armed 
Forces flag outside County Hall in Mold acknowledging our support.

Reserves Policy
   
We have introduced a Reserves policy making a commitment to support employees 
who are Reservists when they are mobilised for duty. This ensures they retain 
continuous employment status and there is support for their transition back to the 
workplace following active service. Reservists also receive an additional two weeks 
annual leave to enable them to attend annual camp, we recognise that the Council 
benefits from valuable skills they gain and bring back to the workplace.

Guaranteed Interview Scheme

Flintshire County Council has introduced a guaranteed interview scheme for Armed 
Forces veterans. The scheme supports the pledges in the Community Covenant. 
Veterans can find making the transition to civilian life extremely challenging, 
particularly in finding and securing lasting employment. The specific aims of the 
scheme are to: 

 Assist veterans in overcoming barriers to finding civilian employment. 
 Redress the balance for veteran’s re-employment prospects by giving them 

the chance to improve their transition and resettlement into civilian life. 
 Complement the re-employment support provided to veterans leaving the 

Armed Forces by the Ministry of Defence. 

Tudalen 27

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/defence-employer-recognition-scheme/defence-employer-recognition-scheme
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/defence-employer-recognition-scheme/defence-employer-recognition-scheme


6

 Contribute to the Councils economic and later life priorities, specifically in 
relation to developing an appropriately skilled workforce, and ensuring 
financial security and independence in later life. 

 Benefit from the transferable skills and qualities of veterans. 

When a veteran applies for a job, they will be able to indicate on the application form 
their veteran status. A guaranteed interview will be offered to veterans, provided the 
following criteria are met: 

 The Armed Forces were the veterans last long-term employer, 
 No more than three years has elapsed since the veteran left the Armed 

Forces, 
 The Veteran meets the essential criteria for the advertised role. 

The scheme is not a guaranteed job for veterans, as selection procedures will still 
ensure that the best candidate for the job is appointed, based on objective criteria in 
the role profile.

Housing
Veterans face many challenges on leaving the services which can include financial 
debt, lack of employment opportunities, addiction, mental health problems or 
relationship breakdowns. The Council works towards the Welsh Government’s 
Housing Pathway for Ex Service Personnel to ensure that veterans are treated fairly, 
their specific needs are recognised and they are allocated appropriate 
accommodation.

First Choice Housing, in partnership with Alabaré, has developed supported 
accommodation and move on schemes for veterans in Wales to help avoid 
homelessness. Accommodation available for veterans in Flintshire includes:

 Six bed High Support facilities
 Eight  bed Low Support facilities

Leisure Services

The Welsh Government fund free swimming for Armed Forces personnel and 
veterans who reside in Wales, this is available in the following swimming pools in the 
county:  Buckley, Flint, Holywell and Mold during public swimming sessions only. 
Veterans and armed forces personnel wanting to take advantage of the free 
swimming initiative must be in possession of an MOD Defence Privilege Card. Those 
without a card will be unable to access free swimming until they purchase a card 
from the MOD Defence Discount Service. These cards are available from 
www.defencediscountservice.co.uk.

Social Care

We promote equipment to help with disability on our Armed Forces pages of the 
Council website and signpost to other organisations who provide welfare, advice and 
support to the AF community, including BCUHB. 

Tudalen 28



7

As required by the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act (2014), a population 
needs assessment has been undertaken to identify health, care and support needs 
for the future. The needs assessment was completed at a regional level for the North 
Wales local authorities. The findings from the assessment showed that:

 There are an estimated 51,000 veterans living in North Wales, around 9% of 
the population over 16. 

 The number of veterans is predicted to decline over future years to around 
22,000 by 2030. 

 The majority of veterans are aged 65 and over so in future a greater 
proportion of the veteran population will be made up of younger people with a 
more diverse background. 

 Around one in five veterans have a long-term illness related to military 
service, such as musculoskeletal problems, hearing problems and mental 
illness. 

We need more detailed information to understand their needs. Research is currently 
being undertaken by Glyndŵr University to ascertain the needs of veterans, which 
will help shape future service provision.

Commemoration and Promotion Events
During the past 12 months we have actively promoted our commitment to the Armed 
Forces Covenant:

 November 2016 – We held a two minute silence on Remembrance Day, 
inviting our customers to join employees in remembering those who lost their 
lives in   the two world wars and later conflicts.

 January 2017 – we marked Holocaust Memorial Day, with a press release 
and workforce news item.

 February 2017 – we participated in the North Wales Armed Forces Transition 
Fair in Wrexham promoting Council services and employment opportunities.

 February 2017- we promoted the Armed Forces Covenant to the Town and 
Community Councils in Flintshire at the County Forum meeting and asked for 
them to nominate a representative to attend the Steering Group meetings and 
to work with the Council to promote the Armed Forces Covenant.

Tudalen 29



8

Regional Armed Forces Forum

We are an active member of the Regional Armed Forces Forum; the following 
organisations are also members:

 Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board (BCUHB) 
 Barnardo’s Family Service
 CAIS
 Ministry of Defence
 Prison Service
 Royal British Legion (RBL)
 Six North Wales local authorities
 Soldiers, Sailors and Airmen and Families Association (SSAFA)
 Welsh Government (WG)

The Regional Armed Forces Forum meets quarterly and shares good practice. The 
Forum have developed a joint action plan to provide a focus for their work and to be 
able to monitor progress. To date their achievements include:

 led by Wrexham County Borough Council, successfully secured an MOD 
grant to fund two Regional Armed Forces Liaison Officers to cover North East 
and North West Wales; and

 contracting Glyndŵr University to undertake research into the needs of the 
veterans in North Wales.

Governance

As the Armed Forces Covenant has been identified as a priority in the Council Plan 
2017/18, quarterly reports on progress to Chief Officers, Cabinet and relevant 
Scrutiny Committees. This will ensure we keep focussed on achieving the outcomes 
set out in our action plan.

The Steering Group will report to the Public Services Board (PSB) (via one of the 
PSB priority themes) on a quarterly basis.  

We will also produce an Annual Report which will be approved by Cabinet and full 
Council before being published.  

Tudalen 30



9

Next Steps

The priorities for the Armed Forces Steering Group for 2017/18 are:

 ensure services are capturing information from their customers to identify 
whether they are from the AF community and analyse this information to 
identify needs;

 developing Armed Forces “hubs” across the county where the AF community 
can access specialist support and advice;

 ensure schools are capturing whether pupils are children of serving members 
of the Armed Forces; 

 implement an employee training programme to raise awareness of the needs 
of the AF community;

 continue to celebrate and commemorate key events recognising the 
contribution made by the Armed Forces; 

 aim to achieve the silver award in the Employers Recognition Scheme; and
 research opportunities to access grants from the government to continue 

progressing the commitment we have made to the Armed Forces Covenant.

Thank you for reading this report. If you would like to find out more about the 
Council’s commitment to the Covenant or would like to make any comments on this 
report please contact:

Fiona Mocko, Strategic Policy Advisor, Flintshire County Council

E-mail:fiona.mocko@flintshire.gov.uk

Telephone: 01352 702122   

Tudalen 31



10

Appendix 1    Flintshire County Council – Armed Forces Community Covenant Local 
Steering Group Terms of Reference 

            

            

The Armed Forces Community Covenant is designed to complement, at a local level, 
the Armed Forces Covenant, which outlines the moral obligation between the nation, 
the government and the armed forces. The aim of the Community Covenant is to 
encourage local communities to support the service community in their area and 
promote understanding and awareness among the public of issues affecting the 
armed forces community.

The Armed Forces Covenant is a promise by the nation to ensure that those 
who serve, those who have served, and their families are treated fairly.

For Flintshire County Council and partner organisations, the community covenant 
presents an opportunity to coordinate support and advice to members of the armed 
forces community.

For the armed forces community, the community covenant encourages the 
integration of service life into civilian life and encourages members of the armed 
forces community to help their local community.

The Flintshire Community Covenant signed in July 2013 by the Royal British Legion, 
Armed Forces’ organisations1, third sector organisations2, NHS Trust, Department 
for Work and Pensions, Wales Probation, Coleg Cambria and the Council made the 
commitment to work closely together to ensure support is provided for the armed 
forces community.

LOCAL STEERING GROUP - TERMS OF REFERENCE

1 Royal Navy, British Army, Royal Air Force, Soldiers, Sailors and Armed Forces Association (SSAFA), Reserve 
Forces’ and Cadet’s Associations (RFCA), 
2 Flintshire Local Voluntary Council, North Wales Young Dragons, Citizens’ Advice Bureau – Flintshire, Pennaf 
Housing Association, Wales and West Housing Association.

Tudalen 32



11

AIMS

1. To encourage support for the Armed Forces Community working and residing 
in Flintshire and to recognise and remember the sacrifices made by members 
of this Armed Forces Community, particularly those who have given the most. 
This includes in-Service and ex-service personnel, their families and 
widow(er)s in Flintshire.

2. To foster opportunities for the civilian sector to give help, advice and support 
to serving and retired members of the Armed Forces and their families in 
Flintshire by joint dialogue and imaginative exploration of all possibilities. 

3. To assist the realignment of service provision to meet the changing needs of 
the military, their families and veterans, including the Reserves of all three 
forces.

4. To create a culture wherein Armed Forces organisations in Flintshire can offer 
support to their local civilian communities.

5. To integrate, where possible, military and civilian activities and events to the 
mutual benefit of both communities.

6. To explore education, training and employment opportunities for those leaving 
or about to leave the armed forces, veterans and their families.

7. To further develop, monitor and review the commitments made in the 
Flintshire Community Covenant Action Plan.

[As stated in existing Covenant

Improve the sharing and recording of information where appropriate to support serving and 
ex-service Armed Forces members whether Regular or Reserve and their families in 
Flintshire.

Provide strategic direction and approval for any bids made to the Community Grant.

Champion communication to publicise the work under the Flintshire Armed Forces 
Community Covenant and to ensure Armed Forces personnel know who to contact for 
support at a local level.

Receive quarterly progress reports from the sub groups (of Education, Employment
and Offending; Health, Wellbeing and Leisure and Housing and Community)]

Membership

To be reviewed:  

Governance

Tudalen 33



12

The Steering Group will report to the Public Services Board (PSB) (via one of the 
PSB priority themes) on a quarterly basis.  Secretariat support will be provided by 
the Corporate Business and Communications Executive Office Team.

Decision Making

Decisions will be arrived at by consensus and recorded in the minutes of the 
Steering Group.

Frequency of meetings

The Steering Group will meet twice yearly or more frequently if required and will be 
chaired by the Flintshire Armed Forces Champion.

Tudalen 34



13

Appendix 2        Armed Forces Covenant Action Plan

       

To encourage support for the Armed Forces Community working and residing in Flintshire and to recognise and remember the 
sacrifices made by members of this Armed Forces Community, particularly those who have given the most. This includes in-
Service and ex-service personnel, their families and widow(er)s in Flintshire.

 

Activity Responsibility Timeframe Outcome/Output Progress

1.1 Identify key Armed Forces 
events/remembrance days

FM May 2017 Calendar of events 
available to Steering 
Group

Complete

1.2 Develop action plan for each 
event to ensure that they are 
commemorated 

FM October 2017 Increased 
awareness AF and 
support available to 
AF community   

On-going

T
udalen 35



14

1.3 Further develop pages on 
Council website to promote 
AFC and encourage support to 
Armed Forces community

FM September 2017 AF community can 
access information 
easily.

Complete. 

1.4 Ensure use of AFC logo on 
Council publications and 
promotional material

KA/Graphic 
Design

December 2017 FCC is promoted as 
AF friendly and its 
commitment to the 
Covenant is visible 
on all documents 
and promotional 
material

Waiting for feedback from WG 
re the translation of the logo

1.5 Ensure AFC e-learning module 
is available for all new 
employees as part of their 
induction

Corporate 
Training/Regio
nal AFLO

March 2018 Employees 
understand the 
Council’s 
commitment to the 
AF community and 
have an awareness 
of their needs

WLGA have been requested to 
develop bilingual module for 
Wales which can be adapted 
locally

1.6 Develop specific workshops for 
public facing employees to 
support them to understand the 
needs of the AF community

Regional AFLO March 2018 Council services are 
aware of and deliver 
services that meet 
the needs of the 
local AF community

To be developed by AFLO 
when in post

T
udalen 36



15

1.7 Flintshire AF events are 
promoted and supported 
through the County Forum 

FM/KA October 2017 Town and 
Community 
Councils work with 
the Council to 
promote AF events

FM attended meeting with 
County Forum. County Forum 
to agree a representative to 
attend FCC Steering Group at 
their next meeting ( October 
2017) 

To foster opportunities for the civilian sector to give help, advice and support to serving and retired members of the Armed Forces 
and their families in Flintshire by joint dialogue and imaginative exploration of all possibilities. 

Activity Responsibility Timeframe Outcome/Output Progress

2.1 To explore the role of FLVC 
and the  Armed Forces 
Covenant

FM/KA September 2017 Third sector 
organisations 
actively support the 
AF Covenant  

Complete

2.2 To include AFC within criteria 
for accessing FCC grants

FM/KA December 2017 Grants provided by 
the Council support 
the Council’s 
commitment to AF 
covenant where 
applicable. 

Public money is 
spent supporting AF 
community

In progress

T
udalen 37



16

2.3 Commitment to AFC included 
as part of FCC’s community 
benefit clauses within the 
procurement process

Arwel 
Staples/Tom 
Booty/KA

September 2017 Opportunities to 
support for the AF 
community are 
maximised.

Public money spent 
on goods, works 
and services benefit 
the AF community.

Opportunities to 
train and employ 
local veterans are 
increased.

In progress

2.4 Explore the opportunities to 
include commitment to AFC 
within Community Asset 
Transfers (CAT) and 
Alternative Delivery Models 
(ADMS) 

KA/FM March 2018 Increased support 
for the AF 
community is 
available 

CATs and ADMS 
meet the needs of 
the AF community

In progress

To assist the realignment of service provision to meet the changing needs of the military, their families and veterans, including the 
Reserves of all three forces.

Activity Responsibility Timeframe Outcome/Output Progress

T
udalen 38



17

3.1 Services nominate a contact 
for AFC

KA/FM September 2017 The Steering Group 
has mechanisms in 
place to 
communicate 
effectively with all 
services in the 
Council.

There is a “joined-
up” approach to 
support for the AF 
community across 
the Council

Service representative:

Social Services

Customer Services

Benefits

Leisure

Communities First

Business Development

Corporate Business and 
Communications

HR 

Education

3.2 Ensure that all services who 
have customer databases, ask 
customers at the point of 
contact with the Council 
whether they have an AF 
connection

AF Steering 
Group/ service 
representatives

March 2018 Services 
consistently ask 
questions about AF 
connections and 
capture the data on 
their customer 
databases

Education- in progress

3.3 All services to amend equality 
monitoring questionnaire to 
include AF

Steering 
Group/service 
representatives

January 2018 There is a better 
understanding  of 
the profile of the AF 
community in 
Flintshire and 
access to and take-

To be started

T
udalen 39



18

up of services

3.4 To amend and monitor 
customer comments and 
complaints to capture AF 
community 

Ian McLaren 
(IMc) / RJ

December 2017 There is a better 
understanding of the 
satisfaction level of 
the AF community 
with Council 
Services and 
services which do 
meet needs.

To be started

3.5 Monitor, analyse and review 
complaints/comments to 
identify any trends to inform 
service improvements

IMc/RJ March 2018 There is a better 
understanding of the 
satisfaction level of 
the AF community 
with Council 
Services and 
services which do 
meet needs

To be started

3.6 To review data to identify 
services used by AF 
community

Steering 
Group/service 
representatives

March 2018 To gain an 
understanding of the 
profile of the AF 
community in 
Flintshire, their 
needs and the take- 
up of services. 

To be started

3.7 Audit and suggest 
amendments to Corporate and 
service portfolio policies to 

Regional AFLO December 2018 Services are able to 
meet the needs of 
the AF community

To start following appointment 
of AFLO

T
udalen 40



19

reflect AFC

3.8 Establish base line of services 
that are AF community friendly

Regional 
AFLO/ service 
representatives

December 2018 List of AF 
community friendly 
services available.

Action plan in place 
to ensure all 
services are AF 
community friendly 

In progress

3.9 Support Housing to embed 
Housing pathway for AFC

Regional AFLO September 2018 Housing officers 
understand the 
needs of AFC 

Housing information 
is accessible for 
AFC

Accommodation 
needs  of veterans 
ae met

In progress

 To create a culture wherein Armed Forces organisations in Flintshire can offer support to their local civilian communities.

Activity Responsibility Timeframe Outcome/Output Progress

4.1 Create a framework to promote 
opportunities for Council 
related and sponsored events 

Cptn 
NT/GM/PK/FM/
KA/Gwenno 

October 2018 AF volunteers 
participate in 
Council events.

FLVC now member of group 
and will help take this action 
forward alongside Regional 

T
udalen 41



20

using AF volunteers Jones (GJ) AF volunteers 
support local 
communities

AFLO

4.2 Promote FLVC on the Armed 
Forces  pages of website

FM May 2017 Increased number 
of AF Community 
become  volunteers 

Complete

4.3 AFC to provide Flintshire 
County Council (FCC) with 
information that can be 
promoted on the website 

Cptn 
NT/GM/PK

December 2017 An increased range 
of up to date  
information for the 
AFC is available on 
the website 

To be started

4.4 Develop AFC Volunteer 
network 

Regional AFLO March 2019 A sustainable 
network of AFC 
volunteers is in 
place and is actively 
involved in 
supporting veterans

To start when AFLO is in post

To integrate, where possible, military and civilian activities and events to the mutual benefit of both communities.

Activity Responsibility Timeframe Outcome/Output Progress

5.1 Develop annual 
communications plan

FM/KA December 2017 Co-ordinated 
messages cascaded  
within the county 
and Council

Complete

T
udalen 42



21

Collaborative 
working  to avoid 
duplication and 
make best use of 
resources

5.2 Implement training programme 
for public facing employees

AFLO March 2018 Employees 
understand the 
needs of the AF 
community

In progress

5.3 Promote the Veterans  
Discount Card

Cptn 
NT/PK/GM/MD

December 2017 Increased number 
of veterans apply for 
the discount card

Increased number 
of businesses apply 
to be registered. 

In progress- promoted through 
Council website

5.4 Review potential for Council 
discretionary services to apply 
to be registered

Service 
representatives

December 2017 Some Council 
services apply to be 
registered to accept 
the discount card

To be started

To explore education, training and employment opportunities for those leaving or about to leave the armed forces, veterans and 
their families.

T
udalen 43



22

Activity Responsibility Timeframe Outcome/Output Progress

6.1 Review organisations offering 
opportunities to the AF 
community, veterans and their 
families 

Regional AFLO December 2017 A list of 
organisations and 
services they offer is 
available  

List already started

6.2 Promote these organisations 
on the website

FM January 2018 Information is easily 
accessed.

Increased take-up of 
these services.

Known information is currently 
available on the website

6.3 Create opportunities for drop-in 
centres/hubs for AF community 
and veterans

Regional 
AFLO/Cheryl 
Marland 
(CM)/PF/MD/F
M

April 2018 AF community can 
access information 
and support in AF 
friendly environment

AF Hubs available 
in each Town centre

Hubs are 
sustainable and 
supported by all 
agencies

Initial meeting held with Jason 
Palmer, Conwy CBC

6.4 To produce periodic monitoring 
reports to FCC Chief Officer 

FM/KA First report due 
September 2017

COT are informed 
and up to date with 

Complete

T
udalen 44



23

Team (COT) identifying areas 
for improvement and further 
action

progress.

Barriers to progress 
are removed 

6.5 Complete an annual report to 
Cabinet and Corporate 
Resources and Overview 
Committee providing an 
overview of progress 

FM/KA First report April 
2018

Elected members 
are reassured that 
the Council is 
committed to the AF 
Covenant.

Elected members 
support the 
Council’s 
commitment to the 
AF Covenant

Complete

 Explore Funding Opportunities and Community Projects

Activity Responsibility Timeframe Outcome/Output Progress

7.1 Identify grants available to 
support the work of the AFC

FM/KA/

Regional AFLO

September 2017 List of grants 
available 

Complete

7.2 Scope projects to support 
applications and submit 

FM/KA/ March 2018 Applications for 
grants are submitted

In progress

T
udalen 45



24

applications for relevant grants Regional AFLO

Grant applications 
are successful 

A number of 
initiatives within the 
county are 
supported by grants

T
udalen 46



COUNTY COUNCIL

Date of Meeting Tuesday, 24 October 2017

Report Subject Annual Performance Report 2016/17

Report Author Chief Executive

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Annual Performance Report for 2016/17 reviews our progress against the 
Improvement Priorities as detailed in the Improvement Plan 2016/17.

The report reflects the overall progress that has been made against our priorities 
and the level of confidence we have in achieving the desired outcomes. It also 
shows the position against our 51 risks, with 7 remaining at a high level at year 
end.

Performance against the Improvement Plan measures was positive with 79% of 
agreed actions being assessed as making good progress and 21% likely to 
achieve the desired outcome. In addition, 42% of the performance indicators met 
or exceeded target for the year, whilst over half showed improvement or remained 
stable. Risks are also being successfully managed with the majority being 
assessed as moderate (45%) or minor/insignificant (42%).

Comparison nationally using the Public Accountability Measures (PAMs) revealed 
86% of indicators showed improved or sustained performance. Of the 22 
authorities across Wales Flintshire was ranked top as the most improved authority 
between 2015/16 and 2016/17. 

Tudalen 47

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 10



RECOMMENDATIONS

1 To adopt the 2016/17 Annual Performance Report for publication.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00 EXPLAINING THE CONTENT OF THE REPORT

1.01 The Annual Performance Report (the Report) meets the statutory 
requirement to publish an Improvement Plan as required by the Local 
Government (Wales) Measure (2009) (the Measure). The report must be 
published by 31st October each year. The purpose of the report is to 
account for the organisation’s previous year’s performance against its 
Improvement Priorities.

1.02 The requirements of the Measure are met through the “forward looking” 
document; the Improvement Plan 2016/17. This sets out the vision and 
priorities for the Council. The second statutory requirement of the Measure 
is met by this Annual Performance Report, which reviews progress on 
commitments made in the previous year.

1.03 The Annual Performance Report must be adopted by the full Council prior 
to publication.

1.04 The Annual Performance Report for 2016/17 reviews our progress against 
the Improvement Priorities as detailed in the Improvement Plan 2016/17. 
This assessment takes into consideration assessments of our performance 
for each of the Improvement Priorities through: 

 Progress against key actions and projects

 Progress against identified risks and challenges

 Performance indicator outturns (target and trend analysis)

 Regulatory, audit and inspection activity

1.05 Progress against Key Activities
Overall good progress has been made against the 2016/17 Improvement 
Plan priorities and there is a high level of confidence in the achievement of 
desired outcomes. The Report summaries progress against the key 
activities supporting the priorities as follows:
Progress:

 We are making good progress in 79% (101).

 We are making satisfactory progress in 21% (27)
Outcome:

 We have a high level of confidence in the achievement of 82% (47).

 We have a medium level of confidence in the achievement of 18% 
(10).

Tudalen 48



1.06 Progress against Risks and Challenges
Good progress was made in managing our risks. Analysis of the year end 
risk levels for the 51 strategic risks identified in the Improvement Plan is as 
follows: 

 51% (26) risks remained the same. 

 45% (23) risks reduced

 4% (2) risks increased

1.07 Performance Indicator Outturns
The Report summaries our performance against the Improvement Plan 
measures and also nationally using the Public Accountability Measures 
(PAMs).

Improvement Plan Measures
Assessment of actual performance against target:

 63% (52) of performance measures achieved target or better.

 30% (25) of performance measures missed target within an 
acceptable margin

 7% (6) of performance measures significantly missed target.

Analysis of trend was also undertaken. This is a comparison of current 
year performance with that of the previous year. 

Where trend analysis could be undertaken: -

 40 (52%) of performance measures showed improved performance;

 34 (44%) showed performance which had downturned when 
compared with the previous year; and 

 3 (4%) had maintained the same level of performance.

Public Accountability Measures
86% of these national measures both achieved targets and maintained or 
improved performance against 2015/16.
We are ranked as the top authority in Wales to show improvement 
between 2015/16 and 2016/17. 

1.08 Regulation, Audit and Inspection Activity
The Wales Audit Office publishes an Annual Improvement Report (AIR) 
each year on behalf of the Auditor General for Wales. The AIR published 
in June 2017 for Flintshire summarised the findings and recommendations 
from the various reports that have been produced.

Overall the Auditor General concluded that:

“The Council is meeting its statutory requirements in relation to continuous 
improvement.”

1.09 The statutory requirements of the Measure are met through a 
concentration on the Council’s Improvement Priorities.

Tudalen 49



1.10 The Report will be available via the Council’s website. Paper copies can 
be generated as required and the supporting documents which provide the 
more detailed information will be available as ‘hyperlinked’ documents.  A 
summary of the Report will be included within the e-magazine ‘Your 
Council’.

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 There are no specific resource implications within this report.

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 The Annual Performance Report must be approved by the full Council 
before publication.

3.02 Consultation is undertaken throughout the year by Cabinet and Overview 
and Scrutiny Committees reviewing the quarterly performance reports. 

A report on the full year’s progress against the Improvement Plan 2016/17 
was presented to Cabinet in June 2017. 

4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 An assessment of the risks identified in the Improvement Plan for 2016/17 
have been made within the Annual Performance Report.

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 Appendix 1 - Annual Performance Report 2016/17
Appendix 2 – Improvement Plan 2016/17 Risk Register
Appendix 3 - Improvement Plan Measures Data Table
Appendix 4 – Public Accountability Measures Data Table
Appendix 5 – Glossary of Terms 

6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 Improvement Plan 2016/17

Contact Office: Corporate Business and Communications Team
Telephone: 01352 701457
E-mail: corporatebusiness @flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 Annual Performance Report: accounts for the organisation’s previous 
year’s performance against its Improvement Priorities. It must be published 
by 31st October each year.

Tudalen 50



7.02 Improvement Plan: the document which sets out the annual priorities of 
the Council. It is a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 
2009 to set Improvement Objectives and publish an Improvement Plan.

7.03 Local Government (Wales) Measure (2009): A measure of the National 
Assembly for Wales to make provision about arrangements by local 
authorities and other authorities in Wales to secure continuous 
improvement in the exercise of their functions; to make provision for 
community strategies; and for connected purposes.

7.04 Public Accountability Measures (PAMs): a set of “outcome focussed” 
performance indicators that reflect those aspects of local authority work 
which local authorities agree are considered to be important in terms of 
public accountability, e.g. recycling, educational attainment, etc.

7.05 Performance Indicator (PI): a type of performance measurement used to 
evaluate the success of an organisation or of a particular activity in which it 
engages.

7.06 PI Outturn: the actual performance achieved for a performance indicator.

7.07 PI Target Analysis: comparison of actual performance compared with the 
target.

7.08 PI Trend Analysis: comparison of actual performance for the year with 
the previous year(s) performance.

7.09 Improvement Plan Measures: the performance indicators or milestones 
used to evaluate the success of activities in the Improvement Plan.

7.10 Wales Audit Office (WAO): works to support the Auditor General as the 
public sector watchdog for Wales. They aim to ensure that the people of 
Wales know whether public money is being managed wisely and that 
public bodies in Wales understand how to improve outcomes.

7.11 Audit General for Wales: Appointed by the Queen and independent of 
government the Auditor General for Wales is the statutory external auditor 
of most of the Welsh public sector.

7.12 Annual Improvement Report (AIR): is publicised by the Wales Audit 
Office (WAO) on behalf of the Auditor General for Wales. It brings 
together, with the co-ordination of other inspectorates such as Estyn and 
the Care and Social Services Inspectorate for Wales (CSSIW), a picture of 
the Council’s delivery and evaluation of services and it’s planning of 
improvement for the coming year.

7.13 Corporate Assessment: WAO’s assessment of the Council’s 
arrangements that enable progress and transformation, and that support 
continuous improvement and good performance.

Tudalen 51

http://www.audit.wales/about-us/auditor-general-wales


Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



 1 | 50

Annual Performance Report 2016/17
 

Tudalen 53



 2 | 50

Contents Page Numbers

Introduction 3
Consultation 5
Section 1 

 Assessment of Performance against our Improvement Priorities 6
 Risk Management 8
 Performance Data Summary 8

Section 2 
 Detailed Improvement Priority Reporting 12

Section 3 
 Equality 44
 Welsh Language 44
 Sustainable Development 45
 Partnership and Collaboration Activity 45
 Regulation, Audit and Inspection 46
 Corporate Health and Safety 48

Appendices 
Appendix A – Improvement Plan 2016/17 Risk Register 
Appendix B – Improvement Plan Measures Data Table
Appendix C – National Indicators Data Table
Appendix D – Glossary of Terms

Hyperlinked 
Documents

How to contact us for further information and to give feedback 50

List of Tables and Charts
Table 1 Improvement Priorities 2016/17
Table 2 Summary of 2016/17 Priority Performance
Table 3 Advisory proposals for improvement from Auditor General
Chart 1a How we performed against our 2016/17 target measures
Chart 1b Performance trend for our Improvement Plan measures
Chart 2a Performance against target for the national statutory measures
Chart 2b Performance trend for the national statutory measures
Chart 3 Number of national measures by quartile position

Tudalen 54



 3 | 50

Introduction

The Annual Performance Report (APR) gives an overview of the performance of the 
Council during 2016/17 against the priorities we set. 

The report covers: -

 Progress against key actions and projects.
 Actual and comparative performance information against local and nationally set 

performance indicators.
 An assessment of how well the Council is managing the strategic risks and 

challenges it faces.
 The outcomes of external regulatory work and the Council's response to improve 

governance and public services as a result.
 Bullet point here deleted

GG

The publication of this Annual Performance Report meets the statutory requirement to 
publish an annual ‘backward looking’ report on our Improvement Plan as part of the Local 
Government (Wales) Measure (2009). The Improvement Plan, our ‘forward looking’ 
publication, meets the other statutory requirement. In meeting these requirements the 
Council demonstrates a sound system of internal control which supports the effective 
discharge of its functions.

Setting Priorities

The Council has competing pressures and priorities. Some priorities are ‘self-selecting’ to 
meet national government social policy objectives such as housing and education. Others 
are set more locally. 

The priorities have been shaped by councillors across our Cabinet and the Overview and 
Scrutiny functions to ensure continuity of analysis for past, present and future performance 
against which the Council can be judged.  There is widespread ownership of the priorities 
within the Council and with our key partners in the public, private and voluntary sectors. 

This set of eight priorities supported by a series of sub-priorities (seen overleaf in Table 1) 
has helped the Council to concentrate on the things where attention was most needed 
during 2016/17. The remaining priorities from previous years have been managed as more 
routine business outside of the Plan.   

The Council acts as a representative democratic body and sets its priorities based on the 
evidence it has gathered from many sources. Our elected members are in touch with local 
views through:-

 Democratic representation.
 Partnership Forums.
 Statutory consultation.
 Direct community/user consultation.

Tudalen 55



 4 | 50

Table 1: Improvement Priorities 2016/17

Priority Sub - Priority Planned Impact
Appropriate and Affordable 
HomesHousing
Modern and Efficient and 
Adapted Homes

Improve the choice and quality of 
local housing

Independent Living
Integrated Community Social 
and Health Services

Enabling more people to live 
independently and well at homeLiving Well

Safeguarding Ensuring adults, young people, and 
children are safeguarded

Business Sector Growth and 
Regeneration

Economy 
and 

Enterprise
Growing the economy and creating 
jobs

Apprenticeships and TrainingSkills and 
Learning Modernised and High 

Performing Education 

Improving learning provision and 
opportunities to achieve better learner 
outcomes

Safe 
Communities Community Safety Keeping people and communities 

safe

Maximising IncomePoverty Protecting people from poverty

Transport Infrastructure and 
services

Safely accessing employment, local 
services and facilitiesEnvironment Sustainable Development and 

Environmental Management Protecting our local environment

Developing Communities Supporting communities to become 
more resilientModern and 

Efficient 
Council Improving Resource 

Management
Front line services are efficiently and 
effectively supported

Note: The colour scheme used in this table is used throughout the document for ease of 
recognition.

Tudalen 56



 5 | 50

Consultation

Consultation and engagement with our customers and communities takes place on a 
number of different levels: representative democracy through our elected members, 
structured engagement through, for example, our County Forum (with Town and 
Community Councils), formal needs assessments through our strategic partnerships, 
surveys and feedback, and workshops and roadshows. Different methods are used 
according to circumstances, the type of audience, and the reach of coverage sought.

Between April 2016 and March 2017 we undertook a range of consultations with impacted 
stakeholders. Examples of these are:

 Recycle More Survey (March - April 2016)

 Renewable Energy 10 Year Action Plan (May - June 2016)

 Our Flintshire, Our Future (November 2016)

Prompted by unprecedented forecast cuts to the Council budget, we have held a series of 
public consultations to find out local views on council services and how they should be 
protected. This consultation was called Our Flintshire, Our Future. In this exercise we set 
out the severity of the situation and people were asked whether they would support some 
of the choices the Council would need to make in the future

Tudalen 57

http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/County-Forum/County-Forum.aspx
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/County-Forum/County-Forum.aspx


 6 | 50

Section 1

Assessment of our Performance against Improvement Priorities for 
2016/17

For 2016/17 the Council had 8 Improvement Priorities as detailed in its Improvement Plan.  
The first 7 priorities are around public services and the final priority is about the corporate 
organisation as a ‘social business’.  

Table 2 below shows a summary of the year end “progress” and confidence in meeting 
“outcome” assessment for each priority based on the following red, amber, green (RAG) 
status key.

All activities in the Report have been graded as described in the ‘key’ below.  These are 
(RAG) graded for progress and/or performance.  An analysis is made of the number of 
activities in each RAG category to provide a collective grade for each priority and sub-
priority heading.  Where there is an equal number of 2 gradings, then the lower one is 
always used.  The Outcome RAG status below was assessed as part of the end of year 
reports in June.

PROGRESS RAG Status Key OUTCOME RAG Status Key

R Limited Progress - delay in 
scheduled activity; not on track R Low - lower level of confidence in 

the achievement of outcome(s)

A
Satisfactory Progress - some 
delay in scheduled activity, but 
broadly on track

A
Medium - uncertain level of 
confidence in the achievement of 
the outcome(s)

G Good Progress - activities 
completed on schedule, on track G High - full confidence in the 

achievement of the outcome(s)

Table 2: Summary of 2016/17 Priority Performance

Priority / Sub-priority Progress Outcome

Housing G A

 Appropriate and Affordable Homes G G

 Modern, Efficient and Adapted Homes A A

Living Well G G

 Independent Living G G

 Integrated Community Social and Health 
Services

G G

 Safeguarding G G

Economy and Enterprise G G

 Business Sector Growth and 
Regeneration

G G

Tudalen 58



 7 | 50

Skills and Learning G G

 Apprenticeships and Training G G

 Modernised and High Performing 
Education

G G

Safe Communities A A

 Community Safety A A

Poverty G G

 Maximising Income G G

Environment G G

 Transport Infrastructure and Services G A

 Sustainable Development and 
Environmental Management

G G

Modern and Efficient Council A A

 Developing Communities A A

 Improving Resource Management G A

Section 2 of this report (page 12) gives a more detailed assessment for the “progress”  
against each of the 14 sub-priorities which support the 8 Improvement Priorities. Each 
assessment contains a link to the full report for the sub-priority as presented to the relevant 
scrutiny committee at year end.

Tudalen 59



 8 | 50

Risk Management

The Council adopted the Improvement Plan for 2016/17 in July 2016.  This provided the 
Council with the opportunity of realigning its strategic risks to the priorities and sub-priorities 
within the Plan. 

Analysis of the year end risk levels for the 51 strategic risks identified in the Improvement 
Plan is as follows: -

 11 (22%) are low (green)
 10 (20%) are minor (yellow)
 23 (45%) are medium (amber) 
 7 (13%) are high (red)

Trend analysis was also undertaken, comparing risk levels at the end of the year with those 
at the start of the year. The analysis showed that: -

 23 (45%) risks had reduced
 26 (51%) risks remained the same
 2 (4%) risks had increased

A summary table of the risks at year end 2016/17 is shown at Appendix A. 

Performance Data Summary

National Performance Summary (All Wales Position)
The Welsh Government and the Local Government Data Unit released 2016/17 
performance data for all local authorities in Wales (and Public Accountability Measures) in 
September 2017. This was accompanied by an overview of national trends as in previous 
years.  The Local Government Performance Bulletin is a supporting document to this 
report.

Improving Our Performance
Performance for 2016/17 against our Improvement Plan Measures is summarised in an 
outturn performance indicator table (Chart 1a).  63% of indicators achieved target or better 
compared to 60% in 2015/16. Only 6% of indicators significantly missed targets compared 
to 23% during 2015/16.  

Year on year improvements are summarised in Chart 1b.  This shows 56% of indicators 
either improving or maintaining good levels of performance.

Tudalen 60

file://flintshire.gov.uk/shared/FCC_Fileshare_05/PPP/Performance%20Indicators/Local%20Government%20Performance%20Bulletin%202015-16%20FINAL%20(002).pdf


 9 | 50

Analysis of year end levels of performance identified: -

Chart 1a: How we performed against our 2016/17 target measures
 

52
63%

25
30%

6
7%

Improvement Plan Measures -
Performance Against Target

Achieved target or
better

Missed target but
within an
acceptable margin
Significantly
missed target

Chart 1b: Performance trend for our Improvement Plan measures

 

  

 
 

Improved
Downturned
Maintained

Improvement Plan Measures - Performance 
Trend

Tudalen 61



 10 | 50

Chart 2a: Performance against target for the national statutory measures*

How we performed against national statutory Public Accountability Measures (PAMs). 

18
86%

2
9%

1
5%

Public Accountability Measures -
Performance against Target

Achieved target or
better

Missed target but
within an acceptable
margin

Significantly missed
target

Chart 2b: Performance trend for the national statutory measures*

Analysis of the number of indicators for which performance had improved, been maintained 
or downturned.

 

 

Maintained or 
Improved
Downturned

Public Accountability Measures - Performance 
Trend

*see Appendix C for full details of the national statutory measures

Tudalen 62



 11 | 50

Chart 3: Local Authority Improvement

At a local level, of the 25 indicators that were comparable between 2015/16 and 2016/17, 
Flintshire improved in 17 (68%), and had the highest improvement in Wales.

 

Flintshire’s quartile performance shows continued improvement between 2015/16 and 
2016/17. More significantly it indicates that Flintshire is the most improved authority during 
2016/17 when compared with 2015/16.

Tudalen 63



 12 | 50

Section 2
Detailed Improvement Priority Reporting

HOUSING Progress Good Outcome Medium

Appropriate and Affordable 
Homes Progress Good Outcome High

1. During 2016/17 we said we would deliver a proactive Housing Solutions service to 
prevent homelessness for as many households as possible by:

 The number of housing enquiries resolved at first point of contact.
 Maintaining the percentage of all potentially homeless households for whom 

homelessness was prevented for at least 6 months.

What we did:

During 2016/17 there were 3,362 customers making contact for housing service 
advice and assistance.  2,130 of these enquiries were managed at the first point of contact 
and referred directly to the appropriate services.  The remaining 1,232 were referred for 

more specialist advice.  By managing 63% at the 
first point of contact we have used the capacity 
of specialist teams to concentrate on the more 
complex and urgent cases in line with statutory 
duties.  

Despite good progress there have been 
additional challenges throughout 2016/17 
including a decline in the availability of suitable 
private rented accommodation as a 
homelessness prevention solution. There has 

also been an increase in the number of complex 
cases requiring specialist resource.  

2. Stimulate the growth of affordable housing by:

 Increasing the numbers of new Council and affordable homes through the 
Strategic Housing Regeneration Programme (SHARP).

 Maximising the number of affordable homes provided through the planning 
system. 

 Increase the numbers of new affordable homes provided through the Social 
Housing Grant (SHG) programme. 

What we did:

Approval was given to appoint Wates Residential as the Council's development 
partner for five years with the aim of developing 500 homes (200 social rented and 

300 affordable) at a range of sites across the county with regeneration and community 

Tudalen 64



 13 | 50

benefits. Construction at the Custom House site in Connah's Quay started in May 2016 
and was completed in December. Tenants moved into their new homes as soon as 
ownership transferred from the developer, Wates Residential, to the Council. Construction 
at the Walks site in Flint began in summer 2016 and is scheduled for completion by April 
2018. 

12 new Council homes were completed through the SHARP Programme at the 
former Custom House School site, and work will continue into 2017/18. 

Flintshire has secured 285 properties incorporating shared equity for local first time 
buyers through developers contributions.  Developers have also gifted properties to 

North East Wales (NEW) Homes to the value of £3m.  We have secured 9 gifted units for 
NEW Homes and a further 42 sold as shared equity: Oakenholt (2), Broughton (18), Wepr 
Park (16), and Buckley (6).

Delivery through the Social Housing Grant programme achieved 24 additional units: 
10 were for supported housing for people with learning disabilities, 3 in Mold, 7 in 
Connah’s Quay and, a further 14 general units in Mold.

Modern, Efficient and Adapted 
Homes Progress Satisfactory Outcome Medium

1. During 2016/17 we said we would deliver financial support to repair, improve, and 
adapt private sector homes by:

 Repairing and improving 40 private sector dwellings through the Council’s capital 
programme and Welsh Government’s National Home Improvement Loan.

 Maintaining the timeliness of adaptions, particularly those delivered through 
Disabled Facilities Grants.

What we did:

This year the take up of home renovation loans was less than targeted.  The Home 
Improvement Loan Scheme has been identified nationally as being of low demand 

and is being reviewed by the Welsh Government. 

The average number of days taken to complete a Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) for 
children has improved. During the year we achieved an average of 249 days 

compared with 455 in 2015/16. DFG’s for adults have taken an average of 248 days 
compared with 293 in 2015/16. 

* Disabled Facilities Grants are measured in accordance with national guidance. Flintshire County Council manage adaptations for the 
entire duration of a child’s needs which may extend over many years. 

2. Reduce the number of long term vacant homes by:

 Bringing empty homes back into use for residential living through the Welsh 
Government’s Houses into Homes Scheme.

Tudalen 65



 14 | 50

What we did:

The first round of Houses into Homes loan funding is starting to be repaid and recycled 
to support new projects. The provision of additional Houses into Homes loan funding 

will help this further. The extension of the loan repayment period from three to five years, 
and an increase on the maximum loan available to an applicant to £250,000, should 
increase uptake.  A total of 25 homes were brought back into use during 2016/17compared 
with 34 during 2015/16.

3. Deliver the six year asset management strategy to meet 
the Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) for all Flintshire 
Council Homes by,

 Completing WHQS work schemes to a value of 
£21m, in line with the Housing Asset Management 
Strategy.

  What we did:

The Capital Works Team have continued with the 
positive work achieved in year 1 and progress has 

continued into year 2. Most of these contracts were procured 
last year with the option to extend based upon contractor 
performance. The WHQS Capital Programme will be 
completed by 2020.  Capital work timeliness targets have 
improved for the installations of windows, external doors, 
kitchen replacements, bathrooms, electrical systems, and smoke 
detectors.

The Off Gas Programme in Treuddyn was completed late last year. However, due to 
low oil prices uptake has been low. The Penyffordd Off Gas Installation is now also 

complete. As the current cost of oil has risen from 23.8 p/litre to 54.2 p/litre an increase in 
installations is expected as occupiers decide to switch their energy source.

Tudalen 66



 15 | 50

LIVING WELL Progress Good Outcome High

Independent Living Progress Good Outcome High

1. During 2016/17 we said we would ensure care home provision within Flintshire 
enables people to live well and have a good quality of life by:

 Delivering the dementia awareness training programme to the care home 
workforce.

 Working with Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board (BCUHB) to develop an 
action plan around supporting the quality and breadth of nursing provision.

 Addressing pressures in domiciliary care and the care home market, and 
improve recruitment and retention. 

What we did:

We worked with 16 residential homes and 3 nursing homes to implement "Progress for 
Providers", which consists of a range of guidance and training which help care workers to 
deliver person-centred care, and enables care providers to assess themselves against the 
new Flintshire standards.

We worked with Bangor University to train care, domestic and auxiliary workers in 12 
care homes in how to have creative conversations with people with dementia.  16 care 
home providers and 9 activity providers are using the Dementia Friendly Facebook page. 

 Flintshire and BCUHB jointly developed a programme to monitor the quality of nursing 
care in Flintshire.

2. Support greater independence for individuals with a frailty and, or disability, 
including those at risk of isolation by:

 Establishing a baseline for the people offered advice and support through the 
Single Point of Access (SPOA).

 Ensuring that the workforce are equipped to provide person centred care in line 
with the requirements of the Social Services and Well-being Act.

What we did:

We implemented the Information, Advice and Assistance Service within the SPOA. 
2,302 adults were provided with advice or assistance through this service during the 
year.  

 We invested in new equipment which allows care packages traditionally requiring two 
carers to be delivered by one person, which is less intrusive in the home. To support this 
we worked with Occupational Therapists in hospitals to review existing packages of care 
for people who could benefit from this new approach.  Providers of support for people with 

Tudalen 67



 16 | 50

learning difficulties received training on "Multi-Me", technology that assists people through 
their television; this is now being used in a Specialist High School for young people with 
specific learning needs. We used Intermediate Care Funds to implement the ‘Progression 
Model’ in a further four supported living houses and providers are meeting regularly to 
share good practice.

3. Improve outcomes for Looked After Children by:

 Developing a unified Corporate Parenting Strategy 
 Supporting children in stable, local placements
 Improving the stability of school placements and the transfer process where 

moves are needed
 Strengthen partnership working with Health to ensure timely access to health 

assessments

What we did:

A plan to move forward with a refreshed Corporate Parenting Strategy was endorsed 
by Social and Health Care Overview & Scrutiny Committee in September. A national review 
of good practice in Corporate Parenting has been undertaken across Wales and our 
Strategy is compliant.  The strategy sets out our commitments around Education, Health 
and Well-being, Stability and Security and Leaving Care. 
 

Invest to Save funding was utilised to recruit a temporary post to work across 
Education and Social Services to strengthen contract monitoring arrangements for high 
cost residential placements for young people. 

Although school placement stability has not met this year’s target we have improved 
the percentage of Looked After Children who have fewer than 3 moves from 13.38% to 
11.9%. The Council continues to work to retain placement stability wherever possible. Only 
extreme personal circumstances dictate a move. 

61.5% of Looked After Children were provided with a timely health assessment by 
BCUHB. This has reduced by 6.85%. Remedial actions being taken by BCUHB have 
included standardisation of documentation and processes across North Wales, a review of 
clinic appointment slots available in Flintshire and discussions with a view to increasing the 
capacity to undertake Health Assessments. 

Tudalen 68



 17 | 50

Integrated Community Social and 
Health Services Progress Good Outcome High

1. During 2016/17 we said we would ensure that effective services to support carers 
are in place as part of the integrated social and health services by:
 
 Developing and implementing the action plan resulting from the review of the 

carers’ strategy.

What we did:    
    

We started to change the way that disability services work by bringing together 
charities and voluntary agencies under one service level agreement as a cooperative. The 
Revised Carers Strategy continues to be delivered by the Carers Strategy Group. Core 
actions identified for 2017/18 include a review of assessment and referral processes for 
Carers and a review of all currently commissioned services to ensure we deliver the best 
outcomes for Carers. 

2. During 2016/17 we aimed to influence the use 
of Intermediate Care Funds (ICF) to support 
effective discharge from hospital and ensure 
a smoother transition between Health and 
Social Care services by:  

 Agreeing the priorities and 
implementation plan for funding for 
2016/17

 Improving the rate of delayed transfers of 
care for social care reasons.

What we did:  
      

Partners in Flintshire continued to work actively to ensure that Intermediate Care 
Funds (ICF) are used to support people to stay at home with an integrated service that 
meets their health and social care needs. Regular North East Wales regional review 
meetings are held and protocols are in place to manage any slippage or underspend. The 
rate of delayed transfers for 2016/17 was lower than last year and remains low in 
comparison to the Wales average.

 The Council has maintained the rate of delayed discharges below last year’s rate. 
Delayed discharges for social care reasons tend to be where there are complex mental 
health needs. All delays are jointly monitored regularly by Social Care and Betsi Cadwaladr 
University Health Board (BCUHB) and, early resolutions for people are prioritised.

3. During 2016/17 we said we would work through the Children’s Services Forum and 
participation group to improve access to Child and Adolescent Mental Health 
Services (CAMHS) by:

Tudalen 69



 18 | 50

 The number and average waiting time for Looked After Children to access 
CAMHS.  

What we did:        

 The latest report from Betsi Cadwaladwr University Health Board (BCUHB) shows that 
the Flintshire CAMHS have been successful in reducing the waiting lists for Primary Mental 
Health. We are now meeting the Welsh Government target of 28 days. BCUHB prioritise 
Looked After Children for fast tracking into CAMHS and, by working jointly with colleagues 
in the Local Authority, provide appropriate packages.

4. During 2016/17 we said we would further develop dementia awareness across the 
county by:

 The number of events (and take up) aimed at raising awareness of dementia 
across the County. 

 The number of dementia friendly towns in Flintshire  

What we did:      
  

 There are three Dementia Friendly communities in Flintshire, and four other 
communities are applying for this status. Dementia Friendly Communities have held events 
throughout the year, including Business Awards for Mold and Buckley.  We now have 38 
Dementia Friendly businesses, and 10 memory cafes.

 Two projects for inter-generational work were delivered and we have 6 schools where 
all pupils are Dementia Friends.  We also developed an Early Onset Peer Support service 
with people living with dementia.

Safeguarding Progress Good Outcome High

1. During 2016/17 we said we would strengthen arrangements within all Council 
portfolios to have clear responsibilities to address safeguarding by: 

 Developing a corporate safeguarding policy which operates as a framework for 
each service within the Council.  

 Development of a performance framework and reporting cycle.  
 Review corporate and service policies and procedures to identify breadth and 

depth of safeguarding coverage. 

What we did:   
     

A corporate safeguarding policy has been agreed. We will be reviewing all Social 
Services policies and strategies starting in September 2017 to ensure that they take 
safeguarding issues into account.

Tudalen 70



 19 | 50

 Each portfolio has a nominated lead and a safeguarding panel has been set up. 

2. Ensure that the workforce are trained in line with the new Codes of Practice for 
Safeguarding by: 

 Carrying out a training needs analysis across the Council.  
 Referral rates from services other than Social Services.

What we did:   

E-learning modules on Safeguarding are now available on Flintshire Academi. 
Interactive half day workshops were delivered during May and June 2016. 

Three safeguarding referrals were recorded as originating from portfolios in the Council 
other than Social Services. Employees recording referrals have been asked to ensure that 
the source of the referral is clearly specified. We expect to see an increase during 2017/18.

3. Working with our partners we will ensure that our response rates to referrals remain 
within statutory targets by maintaining: 

 Statutory procedural targets for child and adult protection.  

The new guidelines for adult safeguarding include a recommendation that all reports 
of concerns should have a determination within 7 days. We started measuring the 
timescales for enquiries in October, and for the second half of the year the Safeguarding 
Unit made an initial determination on 74% of reports within 7 days. Procedures were 
reviewed in line with new guidance in order to improve performance against the national 
timescale.  Against the outcome measure, risk was managed for 100% of adult protection 
referrals during the year. 

Performance on the timeliness of child protection conferences was challenged by a 
rise in the number of children on the Child Protection Register with impacts on being able 
to hold timely conferences. 74% of initial child protection conferences were held within 
timescales, and 98% of review conferences were on time.

Tudalen 71



 20 | 50

Economy and Enterprise Progress Good Outcome High

Business sector growth and 
regeneration Progress Good Outcome High

1. During 2016/17 we said we would promote Strategic / Regional positioning in 
readiness for future accelerated growth by:

 Contributing to the development and delivery of a clear cross border economic 
growth strategy for Flintshire.

 Success in gaining approval and/or funding for programmes which will support 
economic growth.

What we did:

 The Council has played a central role in developing an Economic Growth Deal Bid for 
North Wales with the UK and Wales 
Governments. This role has included 
maintaining positive cross-border 
working arrangements within the 
Mersey Dee Alliance (MDA). Flintshire 
strategic development sites and 
transport needs feature in the North 
Wales Growth Vision and the Cheshire 
Warrington Local Enterprise Growth 
Plan. 

The aim, for the end of the year, was to have contributed to the publication of the 
Infrastructure Prospectus for the Mersey Dee region and to have continued to build support 
within Welsh and UK Government for the Growth Vision for North Wales and the Mersey 
Dee area. This has been fully achieved.

2. Maximise the economic value of transformation projects by:

 Monitoring and supporting the implementation of the transformation projects.
 Supporting supply chain development.
 Converting business enquiries to investment within Flintshire.

What we did:        

The Vibrant and Viable Places (VVP) is in its final year of delivery and all projects are 
now complete. ‘Pipeline’ projects were developed to use any underspend funds that Welsh 
Government might make available and £435,000 of extra funding was secured as a result. 
There are close working arrangements in place between the contractor for the Strategic 
Housing and Regeneration (SHARP), Wates Living Space, and the Communities First 
programme to ensure that unemployed people are offered pre-employment support and 
work experience opportunities. 

Tudalen 72



 21 | 50

Ten supply chain events have been delivered throughout the year in partnership with 
Business Wales, procurement services and the Mersey Dee Alliance.

During 2016/17 181 business enquiries were received, of which 158 converted to 
investment, resulting in a conversion rate of 87.2%.

3. During 2016/17 we said we would facilitate the creation of jobs by :

 Creating jobs within Flintshire, and;
 Creating jobs within Flintshire through our large scale capital programmes 

(WHQS and SHARP)

What we did:     

During 2016/17 we responded to 181 new business enquiries which resulted in an 
average conversion rate from enquiry to investment of 87.2% with 1,480 new jobs created. 
Of the 1,480 new jobs 572 are within the Deeside Enterprise Zone.  7 new social 
enterprises started in Flintshire resulting in 12 new jobs and a further 9 social enterprises 
have been supported in development. 34 business events have been delivered and 2,718 
business delegates engaged with from across the region. 

 The tourism sector across Flintshire currently supports 3,163 direct jobs and 
generates £238m annually from 3.5m staying visitors and 2.7m day visitors. 

All programmes continued into 2016/17 due to continuation of the Welsh Housing 
Quality Standard scheme. As a direct result of this 42 local jobs that were created have 
been retained. The number of jobs created continues to improve as further contracts are 
procured.  Future progress will be maintained through the new Flintshire Apprentice 
Academy.

393 jobs were created during 2016/17. Phase 1 of the Strategic Housing and 
Regeneration Programme (SHARP) started in May 2016 at the former Custom House
Lane School site in Connah's Quay with 116 jobs created. The next development started 
at The Walks site in Flint in July 2016 with 257 jobs created. The latest development at 
the Redhall Garage site in Connah's Quay during March 2017 has created 20 jobs.

4. Strengthen the economic benefits of town centres and the visitor economy by :

 Supporting the development and management of visitor facilities in key urban 
areas and along the Dee coastline. 

 Facilitating private sector investment in town centres.
 Expanding the North East Wales Ambassadors programme in Flintshire.

Tudalen 73



 22 | 50

What we did:     

Delivery of the Coastal Communities Fund has improved access to and awareness of 
the Dee coastline having installed small scale visitor infrastructure and interpretation at key 
points. The tourism service has grown the Ambassadors programme with 30 Flintshire 
participants promoting the area as part of the North East Wales brand and improving 
destination planning and management for visitors.

 The level of vacant units across Flintshire towns is 10% indicating a gradual rising 
level of vacancy in line with the national trend. The service has started the process of 
developing a new plan for supporting town centres in the future which will extend into next 
year. Delivery of the Coastal Communities Fund has improved access and awareness of 
the Dee coastline including the installation of a visitor information and interpretation 
facilities.

3 projects have received development support from the Council, however none have 
yet moved to development stage.

 

Tudalen 74



 23 | 50

Skills and Learning Progress Good Outcome High

Apprenticeships and Training Progress Good Outcome High
 

1. Work with the public, private and voluntary sectors to maximise the number of 
apprenticeships, traineeships and work experience opportunities.  

2. Increase training and apprenticeship opportunities through the Futureworks 
Flintshire Apprenticeship Academy and major capital programmes.

3. Support the Young Entrepreneur Programme with the Flintshire Business 
Entrepreneurship Network (BEN).

4. Further develop the Youth Engagement and Progression work programme for 
learners in danger of disengaging. 

What we did:     

Work has continued to build on the progress made in the previous year. The Flintshire 
Apprenticeship Academy is established and partnership working with Future Works is 
underway. Opportunities to capitalise on apprenticeships, traineeships and work 
experience are being maximised through a range of forums, events and partnership 
working. Flintshire Business Week (September 2016) had a specific seminar focusing on 
this priority. Information promoting local and regional opportunities for young people is 
published as a Careers Wales newsletter which is circulated regularly to Flintshire schools. 

Wates Residential, Flintshire's development partners for the Strategic Housing and 
Regeneration Programme (SHARP), has created 

12 apprenticeship opportunities during 2016/17, 
4 of these apprenticeships were created via 
Futureworks Flintshire shared apprenticeship 
scheme. 

 As part of the conditions attached to the 
contract to deliver SHARP the development 
partner delivers community benefits which 
include the provision of traineeships on the 
construction sites. Working closely with 
Flintshire's Communities First team, the 
developers, Wates Residential, have provided 

24 out of a total of 32 traineeships to help people 
get into employment.

During 2016/17 the programme concentrated on delivering business planning 
sessions ensuring that the Enterprise Club members’ objectives and goals were met 
through the support of the Business Entrepreneur Network (BEN).
 

Tudalen 75



 24 | 50

 Work continued throughout 2016/17 in line with the Welsh Government Youth 
Engagement and Progression Framework requirements. Regular meetings were 
scheduled with schools and other education providers and attended by a range of 
appropriate support agencies. The Learner Profiling Tool was used to identify young 
people at risk. TRAC began in April 2016 targeting young people between the ages of 11 
and 19 who were considered at risk of disengagement. TRAC is a 2 year partnership 
project between Wrexham County Council, Coleg Cambria and Careers Wales providing 
resources to deliver a range of effective support to targeted young people at risk of 
becoming not in education, training or employment (NEET). 1.7% of young people post 16 
are NEET, which maintains the Council’s good record.

Since September 2016, 87 placements were offered to Key Stage 4 learners in 
Flintshire on the following vocational courses ; Hair & Beauty, Motor Vehicle, Small Animal 
Care, and Construction. A further 43 places were taken up on the military preparation 
courses, with 14 preparing for their second year of the course. The TRAC project is 
operational and has established links with all Flintshire secondary schools and Pupil 
Referral Units. A total of 163 pupils were referred to the project to date for additional 
intervention. 

Modernised and High Performing 
Education Progress Good Outcome High

During 2016/17 we said we would make a difference through our Education & Youth 
Improvement and Modernisation Strategy by raising standards:

1. Working effectively with the Regional School Improvement Service (GwE) to:

 Develop leadership capacity in schools through school modernisation and 
regional working; 

 Share best teaching practice and resources across schools most in need; 
 Identify and target support for those schools most in need; 
 Develop the capacity of schools to respond to national initiatives and curriculum 

reforms; and 
 Improve skills in digital literacy, literacy and numeracy

What we did:

The Council and our Regional School Improvement 
partners continued to monitor schools and target 
appropriate support through 2016/17. Schools were 
targeted based on the outcomes of national 
categorisation and from Estyn inspections.

Where schools did not make the appropriate progress, 
despite high levels of support, the Council took action 
under the legislative guidance for Schools Causing 
Concern by issuing warning notices. 

Schools are increasing their participation in local and 
regional training events which enable the sharing of best 
practice, improving leadership capacity across all 

Tudalen 76



 25 | 50

curriculum areas and in particular, the national priorities of literacy, numeracy, and digital 
competence. Through the GwE Challenge and Support Programme, schools are 
encouraged to work in networks and clusters to disseminate best practice.

2. Reducing the impact of poverty and disadvantage through the national school 
improvement priority, Families First Programme (2015-17) and Flintshire’s 
Integrated Youth Services Strategy (2014-18), “Delivering Together”.

What we did:

 During 2016/17 secured Welsh Government (WG) Funding of £1.6m to enable re-
commissioning a full Families First Programme. The Council has followed the new 
guidance proposals to decommission parts of the programme which were no longer viable 
and worked with the voluntary sector.  The full programme is now being commissioned for 
delivery with effect from April 2018. This is on track and will be delivered fully and within 
financial budget. The programme has ensured that the new provision provides resources 
for the Early Intervention Hub, which is an innovative multi-agency approach to improve 
and support children’s life opportunities at an early stage.

3. Improving outcomes for Looked After Children and young people exiting the Youth 
Justice System.

What we did:

 Education, Training and Employment (ETE) has been prioritised with a new action 
plan. An internal review of recording and monitoring procedures has embedded robust 
recording into the system data collection. Delivery has been enhanced through the 
appointment of a Proactive Education Co-ordinator and improved partnerships with the 
third sector Symud Ymlaen organisation.

57% of Flintshire Youth Justice Service (YJS) school age young people are supervised 
in full time Employment, Training or Education (ETE) (Wales average is 46%). 71% are 
offered this level of provision. Flintshire is the 4th best performing Youth Justice Service in 
Wales in this respect (out of 15). This is an improvement on 2 years ago when Flintshire 
was in 13th place. This has been as a result of the continued partnership working with our 
colleagues in schools and colleges to support young people in maintaining educational 
placements despite sometimes challenging behaviour or other difficulties. 

Flintshire Youth Justice Service (YJS) performed well in the most recently published 
Youth Justice Board data young people age 16+  in education and training - 1st out of 15 
other services across Wales. However the number engaged in full time education, training 
or employment remains low and requires further joint work between the YJS and 
Education. Of particular concern are those young people leaving custody. The service 
works with these young people prior to their release date to ensure that there is education 
provision for them upon release including vocational qualifications (Agored Cymru) and 
skills to increase their employability in the future.

Tudalen 77



 26 | 50

4. Continuing to implement Band A of the 21st Century Schools Programme.

What we did:

 The construction projects at Coleg Cambria (Deeside 6th and at Holywell Learning 
Campus) were completed in August 2016. A revised Strategic Outline Programme for the 
remainder of the agreed funding envelope for Band A has been presented and approved 
in principal by Welsh Government (WG). Proposed Capital projects at Connah’s Quay High 
School and Penyffordd were approved in October 2016 and now form the remainder of the 
Band A programme. Remaining projects within Band A are being progressed in line with 
programme timelines. A combined Strategic Outline Case and Outline Business Case has 
been submitted and approved in principal by WG for the proposed project at Penyffordd. 
Wynne Construction have been engaged through the North Wales Construction 
Framework.

5. Developing and implementing a plan for the next phase of Schools Modernisation, 
through the 21st Century School (Band B) programme. 

What we did:

 This is a long term programme extending to 2024. School change projects can take 
3-5 years from inception to delivery. Welsh Government (WG) has confirmed its 
commitment that there will be a Band B 21st Century programme to follow Band A, which 
is expected to be programmed between 2019 and 2024. Local Authorities in Wales are 
awaiting further confirmation and detail from WG. Preparatory work is in progress for 
options for Band B. 

6. Securing a sustainable strategy for repairs and maintenance of school buildings.

What we did:

Repair and Maintenance backlog is a long term programme linked to the School 
Modernisation Programme. Business cases for capital improvement and Repairs and 
Maintenance (R & M) projects in schools continue to be submitted for consideration. The 
annual R&M allocation together with the continuation of the Council’s capital programme 
through two funding streams will support a sustainable strategy for repairs and 
maintenance (i.e. will reduce backlog maintenance); and provide an efficient school estate.  
Funding is limited and prioritisation of need is a constant challenge. 

7. Securing a sustainable set of transport policies and efficient delivery practices. 

What we did:

 Expert consultants were engaged to provide options for efficiencies for home to school 
transport. The Cabinet considered recommendations from a School Transport Task & 
Finish Group. The decision was not to proceed at this point. 

8. Developing an effective local approach to national inclusion reforms. 

Tudalen 78



 27 | 50

What we did:

The Welsh Government (WG) programme of reforms for Additional Learning Needs 
(ALN) continues to develop. Person Centred Planning (PCP) is the only area of the reforms 
that has been confirmed and funding allocated by Wales Government to support a training 
programme.  Full implementation of Wales Government reforms is not anticipated before 
2018.

The projects commissioned through the use of WG ALN Innovation Funding were 
completed by 31st March 2017. Additional funding has been allocated by WG for further 
projects in the 2017/18 financial year. The findings of the previous work undertaken has 
formed the basis for this work including a focus on developing effective transition using the 
Person Centred Planning approach and the development of an Additional Learning Needs 
Co-ordinator’s Handbook and support network.

Flintshire's Education Psychology Service have developed and implemented a training 
programme to ensure all schools have accessed initial training by July 2016. The next 
stage of the programme has been to identify Beacon schools who are fully embracing and 
embedding PCP into their practice.

Flintshire is above the Wales and regional average for the percentage of Key Stage 3 
learners achieving improved outcomes in Mathematics. We are ranked 5th in Wales which 
is 1 place above our benchmark of 6th.  At Key Stage 2 we have improved by 2.2% points 
to be at the highest level in the North Wales region and improved the local authority ranked 
position from 11th to 6th in Wales. 

Performance of Key Stage 4 learners in Mathematics has remained static for 
2016/17 against 2015/16 actuals.

Safe Progress Satisfactory Outcome Medium

Tudalen 79



 28 | 50

Communities

Community Safety Progress Satisfactory Outcome Medium

1. During 2016/17 we said we would  develop a plan to deliver the key outcomes of 
the North Wales Safer Communities Board (NWSCB) Community Safety Plan by: 

 Reviewing the performance of the delivery framework of the NWSCB.
 Public Service Board (PSB) adopting the key priorities of the regional 

Community Safety Plan.

What we did:

The North Wales Safer Communities Board Plan for 2016/17 was approved and 
regional priorities have been embedded within the local ‘People are Safe’ delivery plan 
under the guidance of the Public Services Board. 

2. Contribute to the delivery of the North 
Wales Community Safety Plan Priorities by:

 Reducing the impact of 
domestic abuse on high risk repeat victims. 

 Managing the impacts of substance 
misuse through improved service provision. 

 Managing the impacts of the Violence 
Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual 
Violence (Wales) Act 2015.

What we did:

The aim of the Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC) is to reduce 
repeat victimisation to those individuals at serious risk of harm. During 2016/17 there were 
lower incidents of repeat victimisation. 14% of high risk repeat victims were referred to the 
Flintshire MARAC indicating a 6% point reduction from the previous year and a 50% point 
reduction against target.  

The number of completed treatments provided to those with substance misuse 
problems has fluctuated throughout the year. The overall average for 2016/17 is 77.69% 
which is below the 2015/16 rate of 78.91%.

3. Reduce the fear of crime by making best use of the latest technologies including 
closed circuit television (CCTV) by:

 Agreement of a forward plan for the resilience of the control room (location and 
technology renewal).

 Agreement of a new business and funding plan for the future service.

Tudalen 80



 29 | 50

 Maintaining continuity of service during the service review.
 Maintaining continuity of Council and, Town and Community Council 

partnership funding during the review.

What we did:

The feasibility study is complete and the consultant’s report has been received to 
inform decision making.

Consultation with Town & Community Councils and other Stakeholders is now 
complete. 

Relocation of the CCTV control room has been postponed. Progress to Stage Two 
has not been finalised however the consultancy brief included preparation of detailed 
technical specifications, proposals, drawings and tender documentation for the upgrade of 
the CCTV control room equipment from analogue to state of the art digital technology. The 
procurement of re-deployable cameras (where possible) will be made to complement the 
static CCTV camera scheme.

Poverty Progress Good Outcome High

Tudalen 81



 30 | 50

Maximising Income Progress Good Outcome High

1. During 2016/17 we said we would provide advice and support services to help 
people protect their income by:

 Assisting Flintshire residents to claim additional Social Security and Tax 
Credits to which they are entitled. 

 Assisting people with Welfare Reform changes through the effective 
application of the Council’s Discretionary Housing Payment Policy. 

 Supporting Flintshire residents to better manage their financial commitments.
 Monitoring the speed of processing of Housing Benefit claims: i) new claims ii) 

change of circumstances.

What we did:

For the period 2016/2017, the successful outcomes from welfare rights interventions 
with Flintshire households generated additional benefit income of £1,579,380 for the 

year. 

During the year the demand from residents for access to advice and support providers 
was managed by the Advice and Housing Support Referral Gateways. As the 

Universal Credit full service is introduced within Flintshire from the beginning of 2017/18 
support is being concentrated on residents who will become Universal Credit claimants.

The Council continues to provide advice 
and support services to help residents 
maximise their household income through 
accessing the correct entitlement of social 
security benefits and managing their debts. 
The total number of residents supported to 
better manage their financial commitments was 
21 during 2016/17due to there being more 
limited advisory capacity.  

 Performance was affected during the first half of the year due to recruitment and 
retention issues. Although the Council’s performance target was been missed, we did 
achieve the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) target of 24 days.

2. Helping people get closer to work and / or be work ready through a range of 
Government and European funded programmes:

 The numbers of local people getting closer to work or becoming ready to enter 
work having benefitted from accessing Government or European funded 
programmes.

What we did:

Tudalen 82



 31 | 50

The Council and third sector providers have delivered support packages to 
households to enable them to get closer to work through the Supporting People 

Programme. During 2016/17 439 people engaged in education or learning opportunities 
and 610 people engaged in employment or volunteering opportunities. 

 Communities First has a number of initiatives ensuring people enter employment 
from weekly job clubs to annual jobs fairs. To date we have been supported 99 people 

into full and part time employment.

Communities First have worked with clients to enable them to be as work ready as 
possible, by supporting them through a number of courses including Health and 

Safety. 247 clients gained a qualification in 2016/17.

3. Deliver energy efficient measures to homes in Flintshire by:

 Reducing the overall annual fuel bill for residents.
 Increasing the number of homes receiving energy efficient measures.
 Creating and launching a national energy efficiency materials and supplier 

framework. 

What we did:

The Council secured £35k of Welsh Government 
Warm Homes funding for Whole-House 

Assessments.  The funding was used to provide solid 
wall insulation, efficient heating, and other energy 
efficiency improvements. 

The Gas Infill projects remain on track, and 
further opportunities for next financial year are 

being explored together with Capital Works. The pilot 
project utilising air source heat pumps, solar 
technology and battery storage installations are now 
complete. 

The Affordable Warmth and Healthy Homes Healthy People projects continue to help 
those most vulnerable in our communities. Overall this year we have completed 1,247 

measures in 877 properties, saving tenants £288k annually for the lifetime of the measures, 
and a lifetime carbon savings of 33,000 tonnes.

We have allocated the full grant amount of £325k from National Energy Action's (NEA) 
Warm and Healthy Homes.  The domestic energy retrofit framework for Wales is now 

live which should deliver further savings.

Environment Progress Good Outcome Good

Tudalen 83



 32 | 50

Transport Infrastructure and 
Services Progress Good Outcome Medium

 
1. During 2016/17 we said we would use available grant funding to support Council 

priorities for accessing employment, health, leisure and education by: 

 Submission of successful funding bids to Welsh Government for local transport 
funding. 

 Successfully delivering schemes funded through the Local Transport Fund - 
infrastructure.

 Preparing the existing route map and integrated network map for “Active 
Travel” 

 Securing funding via the Rural and Community Development Fund – 
community transport. 

What we did:

During 2016/17 Welsh Government funding was received for Road Safety Grant 
Schemes.  Those completed include the A5026, Lloc - Junction Improvement, A5104 
Penymynydd to Warren Hall and, Liverpool Road/Alltami Road. 

  
Welsh Government did not deliver the revised mapping system that was to be used 

for capturing Active Travel proposals by all Local Authorities during 2016/17 therefore it 
was decided to use our current mapping system to develop the proposals to enable the 
agreed timetable to be achieved. Active Travel proposals were presented at the 
Community and Town Councils Forum in June, followed by commencement of the 
Statutory 12 week consultation period in July. Informal engagement events were managed 
with the Flintshire Disability Forum, Schools and the Local Access Forum

Several community transport schemes were discussed at working groups and drop 
in events during May and June. Close working with communities has enabled local 
innovative schemes to be developed. One Community Transport Hub has been 
established and 5 other schemes have been developed through working with stakeholders 
including the Community Councils that are due to commence in 2017/18

2. Prioritise the Council’s road infrastructure for repairs and maintenance, and 
implement programmes of work within available funding in order to improve the 
resilience, efficiency and reliability of the transport network by:

 Monitoring the condition of the highway’s infrastructure
 Undertaking inspections to ensure reinstatements meet the required standards 

and raise the standard of works on Flintshire’s network. 

What we did:

Tudalen 84



 33 | 50

 Part 1 of the scheduled programme of work was completed between April and October 
2016 which included carriageway surface dressing and resurfacing.  Carriageway 
‘patching’ was also completed during the year.   

Performance for the percentage of street work inspections undertaken to ensure the 
reinstatement of road conditions met the required standards was 15% for 2016/17 
exceeding the target of 12.5%. The inspections undertaken have a threefold effect in (1) 
ensuring standards remain at an acceptable level (2) reducing repeat reinstatements and 
(3) reducing repeat site revisits. 

3. Use available funding to support the Council’s priorities to improve road safety on 
the County’s highway network by:

 Delivering Welsh Government (WG) funded Grant Aided Safety Schemes to 
address collision trends and concentrations on the road network through the WG 
Grant Aid Programme.

 Delivering WG funded schemes identified as part of Safe Routes in Communities.
 Delivering WG funded road safety initiatives to reduce the risk of collisions of high 

risk groups (older drivers, newly qualified young drivers and, motorcyclists)  

What we did:

Scanner Surveys of road conditions were made available to the Council in November 
2016 for A, B, and C roads considered to be in overall poor conditions. The results show 
an improvement from 4.02% in 2015/16 to 3.35% during 2016/17. 

 34 road safety initiatives aimed at high risk older drivers were completed for the year 
against a target of 27. There was an increase in the latter part of the year due to a change 
in local advertising. 

The yearly total of 29 road safety initiatives aimed at newly qualified young drivers 
shows an increase in the latter half of the year due to the actions undertaken following 
advice from the Young Persons Steering Group. However the outturn is lower than the 
predicted target of 44.  Attendance on the Pass Plus Cymru course has been in decline in 
previous years. The Young Persons Steering group is continuing to consider alternative 
promotions with Flintshire to support an increase in uptake.

Welsh Government funding was secured for BikeSafe Motorcycle Training for 
residents of Flintshire. The BikeSafe workshop explores the main riding hazards that a 
motorcyclist may encounter by delivering theory presentations and observed rides. In 
addition to the BikeSafe workshop, a First Bike On Scene (FBOS) First Aid for Riders 
course was also made available to residents of Flintshire.  65 courses were delivered 
during the year which included residents from outside the area undertaking the training 
within North Wales. 

4. Work closely with communities to develop, innovate and, sustain community 
transport schemes by:

Tudalen 85



 34 | 50

 Working with interested local communities to develop a Community 
Transport Strategy 

 Developing community transport schemes to compliment the core network 
of bus services 

 Development of community transport “hubs” within available funding.

What we did:

Working groups were set up within the 21 communities that signed up to development 
of innovative and sustainable community transport schemes. Group meetings took place 
throughout August and September 2016. The purpose of the working groups was to 
organise public drop-in events to identify the demand within each area. A series of drop- 
in events were held across the County with the wider community and stakeholders to 
explain how people could get involved in the project. 

Only 1 Community Transport Hub was introduced during 2016/17 in the Higher 
Kinnerton area.  Communication has been maintained with the community and is ongoing 
to ensure the success and sustainability of the scheme. Work has been carried out within 
the communities; officers have attended Community Council meetings, and facilitated drop 
in sessions to help develop community transport schemes. Several potential community 
transport schemes have been identified and several schemes are due to commence in 
2017/18. Promotion of the schemes and close working with communities has enabled 
innovative schemes to be identified and developed.

Sustainable Development & 
Environmental Management Progress Good Outcome High

1. During 2016/17 we said we would establish an environment working group to ensure 
that the Council adopts an integrated approach to service delivery which meets the 
aims and objectives of the Single Environment Grant (SEG) by:

 Gaining approval to the grant submission.
 Establishing a Single Environment Group.
 Monitoring progress and claiming the equivalent grant funding.

What we did:

 The Single Environment Working Group (SEWG) was established in June and has 
met twice since. 

The Group has successfully co-ordinated the actions of the two portfolios to meet the 
aims of the Single Environment Grant Claim (SEG) claim. SEWG are tracking the latest 
position on 2017/18 SEG level. 

2. Agree the Local Development Plan’s (LDP) vision and objectives, and options to 
accommodate growth by:

Tudalen 86



 35 | 50

 Undertaking a renewable energy assessment for the LDP in partnership with 
Wrexham Council which will inform the pre-deposit and later deposit plan.

 Agree a revised timetable and delivery agreement with Welsh Government 
leading to the pre-deposit plan.

 Publicising the pre-deposit plan.
 Completing the public consultation on the pre-deposit plan

What we did:

 Consultation on strategic options was completed in December 2016 and feedback 
reported to the Planning Strategy Group at its February 2017 meeting where the growth 
and spatial option was agreed.

Council Members considered a draft of the emerging Preferred Strategy at the March 
2017 Planning Strategy Group meeting and endorsed the emerging plan, including the 
vision, objectives, selected growth and spatial option, and draft strategic policies. 

Officers were given delegated powers to proceed to complete the draft Preferred 
Strategy including the preparation of supporting documents ready for consideration in the 
summer, following the Council elections.

3. Reducing our Carbon footprint by:

 Creating two solar farms on Flintshire County Council land.
 Installing an electricity link between Brook Hill Landfill site and Alltami Depot or 

agree a virtual private network with Scottish Power to fully utilise the energy 
generated and reduce costs

 Securing planning approval for the introduction of a waste transfer station in 
Greenfield.

 Creating a waste transfer station in Greenfield
 Improving recycling performance
 Reducing our carbon emissions

What we did:

Overall energy consumption figures show a reduction for all fuel types as follows: 
Electricity -2.64 %, Gas -3.49%, Oil -38.72%, LPG -24.84%. 

 A reduction in carbon emissions of 3.69% (weather corrected figure) with overall 
reduction for the County's carbon emissions of 4.78% (non-weather corrected) compared 
to 2015/16 figures

Activities completed during the year were lighting refurbishment at Greenfield Business 
Centre and Hawarden Village School LED lighting, and 3 photo voltaic installations at 
Derwen School, Mynydd Isa Infants and Broughton CP.

Tudalen 87



 36 | 50

We created a waste transfer station at Greenfield which became operational at the end 
of April 2017. Kerbside collection rounds will started to tip there 3 days a week In August 
2017.

4. Reviewing the Flood Risk Management Strategy by:

 Completing Flintshire’s Local Flood Risk Management Plans
 Developing a list of priority flood alleviation schemes based on transparent 

criteria

What we did:

Preparation of a pre-consultation Draft Flood Risk Management Plan (FRMP) is 
complete. Following consultation the final approved Flood Risk Management Plans are 
expected to be published in autumn 2017.

 Following flooding incidents in June 2016, officers undertook a significant number of 
site investigations that   were subsequently used to inform funding bids to Welsh 
Government. This funding has enabled emergency works at locations throughout Bagillt 
and Greenfield

5. Reducing the occurrence and impact of environmental crime. by:

 Identification of environmental crime hotspots from local intelligence and service 
requests

 Targeted enforcement campaigns in hotspot areas

What we did:

During 2016/17 over 3900 Fixed Penalty Notices (FPN) were issued. The success of 
the pilot will be assessed.
 

Informal consultation with elected members led to the approval by Cabinet of the 
introduction of a Public Space Protection Order (PSPO). This will give the enforcement 
team further powers to enforce against fouling and dog control offences. The introduction 
of the PSPO will allow the enforcement team to enforce dog exclusion zones in sensitive 
areas such as children’s play grounds and sports pitches.

Modern and 
Efficient Council Progress Satisfactory Outcome Medium

Tudalen 88



 37 | 50

Developing Communities Progress Satisfactory Outcome Medium

1. During 2016/17 we said we would develop the community and social sector through 
developing and growing social enterprises in Flintshire, in turn supporting and 
creating new forms of local business by: 

 Monitoring the number of new social enterprises developed.
 Monitoring the number of social enterprises supported to thrive and prosper.
 Monitoring community benefits delivered by new social enterprises.

What we did:

 During the year 11 new social enterprises were developed compared with 5 in 
2015/16, these include: 

 Holywell Leisure Centre, Toe to Toe, and 
Connah's Quay Nomads which formed a new 
social enterprise to take on Connah's Quay 
Youth Centre.  

 Buckley Boxing Club formed a new social 
enterprise to take on Bistre Youth and 
Community Centre, and Flintshire 
Counselling was established to provide 
affordable counselling services to citizens 
who cannot access mainstream provision. 

 Beyond the Boundaries, a beauty salon was developed specifically to create work 
and training opportunities for young people with disabilities. 

 Emotional Learning Foundation was developed to change the way in which 
education is delivered with primary schools in order to educate young people to 
accept and deal with their emotions, both positive and negative. 

 Art and Soul Tribe was developed to address the issue of bullying and use an 
alternative fashion show to convey their messages. 

 Cambria Band provide the opportunity for local people to learn to play instruments 
and become involved with social activities relating to the celebration of local events 
and activities. 

 Pepperpot Childcare is an inclusive ‘wrap around’ childcare venture operating in 
Deeside. It will create 19 jobs, as well as training and work placement opportunities. 

 Trelogan Community Centre manage a community building in the centre of the 
community for the benefit of local residents.

Tudalen 89



 38 | 50

A wide range of business support, advice and guidance was provided to 24 social 
enterprises operating within Flintshire over the last year compared with 12 during 2015/16, 
the beneficiaries of this support include: 

 Holywell Leisure Centre
 Toe to Toe
 Connah's Quay Nomads
 Buckley Boxing Club
 RainbowBiz
 West Flintshire Community Enterprises
 Groundwork North Wales
 Flintshire Counselling CIC
 Mold Rugby Club
 The Clocktower
 Beyond the Boundaries CIC
 Emotional Learning Foundation CIC
 Amser Babi Cymraeg
 BREW
 Parkfields community Centre
 Neighbourhood Economics
 Art and Soul Tribe CIC
 Cambria Band CIC

2. Encourage volunteers and active citizens by:

 Monitoring the impact of the local volunteering policy. 

What we did:

Encouraging volunteers and active citizens is a longer-term programme. The 
volunteering policy has been shared with the Public Services Board (PSB) and work is in 
progress with public sector partners under the "community resilience" priority of the Board. 

3. Ensure community benefit through our commissioning of goods and services by:

 Establishing a Community Benefits Board with an action plan.
 Monitoring the percentage of Community Benefit clauses included in new 

procurement contracts.

What we did:

The Community Benefits Board is concentrating on Academy Apprenticeships so its 
wider impacts are limited. Since the introduction of the new Contract Procedure Rules 
(CPR's) and Commissioning Form in November 2016, all projects above £1m now include 
Community Benefit clauses. The Commissioning Forms are being reviewed by the 
Corporate Procurement Team for all projects above £25k - therefore the inclusion of 
Community Benefits in contracts will be increasing.  

Tudalen 90



 39 | 50

4. Design and implement Alternative Delivery Models (ADMs) to sustain important 
services to meet future need by:

 Monitoring the level of efficiencies ADMs have supported. 
 Monitoring the number of services sustained through delivery via alternative 

models.

What we did:

An activity plan for 2016/17 was developed with a key group of social enterprises that 
aimed to provide leadership and further support to the sector. The plan included: 

 Two specific contracts targeted at the sector 
 Business support and Dragons Den sessions
 A new business award in business week specific to the social enterprise sector; and
 The development of a community benefits policy for Flintshire. 

This is a three year plan which aims to be complete by 31st March 2018 and is currently 
two thirds of the way through and on target.

5. Empower communities to run and manage facilities in their locality through the 
Community Asset Transfers (CAT) by:

 Monitoring the number of public assets safely transferred to the community.
 Monitoring community benefits delivered by Community Asset Transfers. 

What we did:

 During 2016/17 19 Community Asset Transfers were either complete or nearing legal 
completion. These are:

• Argoed community centre and library (Café Isa);
• Bistre Youth and Community Centre;
• Connah’s Quay Swimming Pool (Cambrian Aquatics);
• Connah’s Quay Youth Club;
• Connah’s Quay Allotments (Mill Lane);
• Connah’s Quay Scouts Building;
• Connah’s Quay Cricket Club;
• Former Registrar’s Office, Holywell;
• Greenfield Bowling Club;
• Gwernaffield Village Hall;
• Hope Library; 
• Holywell library (Toe to Toe);
• Holywell Leisure Centre;
• Mancot Library;
• Maes Pennant Playing Field, Mostyn;
• Mold RFC;
• Mosytn Bowling Club,

Tudalen 91



 40 | 50

• Scout Groups, various;
• Trelogan Community Centre.

To support existing transfers 4 monitoring visits have been completed with the 
remainder planned early in 2017/18.  

6. Ensure our Armed Forces Community and their families are not disadvantaged 
when accessing Council Services by:

 Monitoring the achievements of the Armed Forces Covenant Action Plan. 

What we did:

Flintshire has been active during the year to ensure that the Armed Forces community 
are not disadvantaged when accessing Council services. We have been awarded the 
Ministry of Defence's Bronze award of Employee Recognition Scheme and are pursuing 
the Silver award. Regional funding from the Ministry of Defence has been secured and will 
support two 2 year co-ordinator positions working across six authorities to support the 
delivery of the Covenant’s objectives. 

Improving Resource 
Management Progress Good Outcome Medium

1. During 2016/17 we said we would develop and implement a renewed three year 
financial plan that reflects anticipated funding, costs and efficiencies to support 
strategic decision making by: 

 Revising our plan to meet the £38m funding gap.
 Matching our priorities with revenue and capital investment. 
 Achieving our efficiency targets. 

What we did: 

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) was 
adopted by the Cabinet. The amber outcome rating is due to 
uncertainty over future funding settlements.   The provisional 
Local Government settlement was received on 19th October 
2016 and was more favourable than forecast within the 
MTFS. This was due to the funding being mainly flat lined to 
the 2016/17 level whilst the MTFS projection had assumed a 
cut of 1.5%. The annual budget was developed and agreed 
in three stages between September and February.

  
Total efficiency achieved for 2016/17 was £9.557m 

against a target of £10.521m – an achievement rate of 91% 

2. Implement the People Strategy to ensure the Council has sufficient capacity and 
capability to operate effectively as a smaller organisation by:

Tudalen 92



 41 | 50

 Participation in the Flintshire Academies Training and Development 
Programmes.

 Monitoring the impact of people performance management. 
 Monitoring the impact of the new Employee Development and Talent. 
 Management of employee retention
 Monitoring the impact of the People Strategy in service portfolios  

What we did: 

The updated People Strategy for 2016-19 was approved by Cabinet in November 
2016. The strategy reflects organisational needs and aligns capacity to priorities. In the 
interim period of strategy revision, resources have been prioritised to meet the top 
organisational needs including service reviews, efficiency led service model changes, the 
transition to Alternative Delivery Models, and workforce scale and cost reduction 
programmes.

Participation in the Flintshire Academies Training and Development Programmes was 
a new measure for 2016/17 and, refers to a place of study or learning which covers 
Leadership & Management, general and/or Role specific personal development, Equality 
and Diversity, Welsh Language, Health & Safety, First Aid, and ICT.  During the year 868 
employees attended some form of training. 

65% of employees received an annual appraisal during 2016/17.  Work is ongoing to 
ensure that annual appraisals take place in a timely way for all employees and are recorded 
on iTrent.

Sickness absence has reduced to 9.87 working days per shift per full time equivalent 
employee during 2016/17 compared with 10.5 in 2015/16. 

The percentage of employee turnover during 2016/17 was 12.36%. This shows a 
change from the comparative figures for 2015/16 (10.64%) as is due, in part, to the 
inclusion of Community Playworkers and employees within services included in Alternative 
Service Models where services have been transferred out.

3. Rationalise the Council’s use of corporate accommodation by:

 Reducing the floor space and costs of occupied office accommodation.
 Increasing the number/percentage of employees who work in an agile way. 

What we did: 

The Council's corporate accommodation is being rationalised through reducing floor 
space, costs of occupied office accommodation, and increasing the number/percentage of 
employees working in an agile way. Continued optimisation of space at both Flint Offices 
and Alltami progresses alongside phased County Hall rationalisation. The relocation of 

Tudalen 93



 42 | 50

services from Phase 4 to Phases 1 and 2 has freed up an additional 3,571 square metres 
within County Hall. The cumulative total vacated space is 5,579 square metres.

 During this year the running costs of the remaining corporate accommodation was 
£1,324,861. This equates to a 31% reduction from the baseline figure. The equivalent 
figure for 2016/17 is a reduction of £604,139.

The percentage of employees working in an agile way within County Hall was 87% 
which denotes a ratio of 819 workspaces to 944 employees.

4. Optimise purchasing efficiencies through the use of regional and national 
procurement collaborations and through the increased use of electronic solutions 
by:

 Creating efficiencies through the use of local, regional and national 
procurement arrangements.

 Reducing the cost of procurement through the use of end to end electronic 
purchasing.

What we did: 

During the year progress has been made in delivering purchasing efficiencies through 
the use of regional and national procurement collaborations as a result of working with the 
National Procurement Service, and identifying joint collaborative opportunities with 
Denbighshire County Council.

The largest spend service areas have continued to engage and make use of the 
Proactis Portal for day to day tendering activities resulting in greater compliance with the 
Contract Procedure Rules as well as delivering process efficiencies. 

5. Embrace digital channels as the default in service design where possible to provide 
access to online services at a time and location convenient to the customer by:

 Increasing the number of transactional services online and via the Flintshire 
App. 

 Increasing the take up of online services.
 Responding to customer feedback to ensure information is accessed at the first 

point of contact online.

What we did: 

  The new Customer Service Strategy was approved by 
Cabinet and sets out the Council’s plan to transform customer 

Tudalen 94



 43 | 50

access to Council services over the next five years; this will include a review of how 
customers currently access Council services and opportunities to modernise all face to 
face, telephone and digital access channels. 

The number of online digital transactions increased with 11,142 customers choosing 
to correspond with the Council online via the website. There was also a 19% increase in 
the number of people using the Council’s website. Customer Support Services continue to 
work closely with ICT to prioritise services for transformation.

During 2016/17 the number of digital enquiries i.e. website, e-forms, Mobile App and 
Live Chat increased each quarter with over 31,000 online enquiries received during the 
year. The final quarter saw the highest increase with 11,809 enquiries received compared 
to 7,460 to the previous quarter. There was also a rise in the number of people browsing 
the NEW Homes website with 1,421 users choosing to explore housing opportunities 
online.

During 2016/17 website usage was consistent, over 765,000 people visited Flintshire’s 
website during the year. On average this equated to over 191,000 visitors each quarter. 
Over 4.7 million web pages were viewed during the year. There was an increase in the 
number of users to the Council’s website in quarter 4 with 214,196 users visiting the 
website. Each user visited 2.29 on average times during the quarter. Over 1.3 million web 
pages were viewed meaning that website users looked at around 6 pages during their visit 
to our website.

Section 3
Equality 

The Council takes seriously its duty to promote equality, eliminate discrimination and foster 
good relations through all its activities. The Council published an updated Strategic 

Tudalen 95



 44 | 50

Equality Plan in 2016; this is being incorporated into CAMMS (Performance management 
system) to ensure that progress and achievements can be monitored more effectively and 
regular updates provided.

 We are developing an electronic system for integrated impact assessments. This is 
scheduled to be in place by autumn 2017.   It will ensure equality and Welsh language 
impact assessments are systematically undertaken as part of business and policy 
decisions to inform decision–making.

We participated in the first Diversity Festival for Flintshire promoting the Council’s 
commitment to equality and increasing access to services. 

We completed an Equal Pay audit which will be published on our website. The audit 
concentrated on the pay difference between men and women but future pay audits will 
include other protected groups.

Progress continues to remain inconsistent across service portfolios, incorporating the 
Strategic Equality Plans within the Council’s new business planning process will contribute 
to more efficient reporting.  A key area of improvement is the collation of baseline data to 
identify areas of significant inequality where we need to target our resources to improve 
outcomes for our customers. 

We need to accelerate the employee diversity audit to ensure that a detailed equal pay 
audit can be undertaken in September 2017.

Welsh Language Standards (WLS) 

The Council is committed to meeting the Welsh Language Standards ensuring that we can 
provide high quality services in both English and Welsh. We have undertaken several 
activities during the past 12 months to identify the profile of Welsh language skills across 
the organisation and to raise the visibility and audibility of the language:  

The percentage of employees who completed the Welsh language skills audit 
increased from 42% to 82% during 2016/17. Identifying the language skills of employees 
helps managers plan to deliver bilingual services. We aim to achieve 100% completion rate 
by 31st March 2018.

We supported Menter Iaith to celebrate a successful St David’s Day in Flint town. 
There are plans to continue supporting celebrations of St David’s Day in the community.  

 The Council’s Welsh Language Network has been involved in initiatives to raise the 
profile of Welsh language within the Council.

In partnership with Menter Iaith and Coleg Cambria we promoted the Welsh language 
to local businesses as part of Business Week activities.

We can only deliver excellent services in Welsh if there are sufficient numbers of 
employees with the appropriate Welsh language skills at each service delivery point 
and in each workplace where there is contact with the public.  We need to review 

Tudalen 96



 45 | 50

our Human Resource Management policies to ensure we can attract and retain 
Welsh speakers and ensure that we are able to provide opportunities for employees 
to develop and maintain their Welsh language skills.

Link to detailed year end Welsh Language Annual Report .

Sustainable Development 

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 is about improving the social, 
economic, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales. The Act recognises that Wales 
faces a number of challenges now and in the future, such as climate change, poverty, 
health inequalities, jobs and growth. It also recognises the need to work together and think 
about the long term impacts of decisions in order to tackle these issues. 

Within the Council work has been undertaken during the year which has focused on 
securing vital services for the future. This has been evidenced earlier in the report through, 
for example:

 Our own change in operational model and integration of business units
 Increased collaborative and partnership working
 Greater levels of consultation with local people e.g. Our Flintshire, Our Future
 Continuous development of alternative service delivery models.

Our work to sustain services continues into 2017/18 and is evident in our Council Plan 
for 2017/18 particularly in sections such as ‘Developing Communities’ where we support 
communities to become more resilient and self-sufficient.

Partnership and Collaboration Activity

Flintshire has a longstanding and proud track record of partnership working. The 
communities it serves expect the statutory and third sector partners to work together, to 
work to shared priorities and, through collective effort, to get things done. The Public 
Services Board, is at the heart of promoting a positive culture of working together and 
concentrates energy, effort and resources on some of the big social issues of today.     

The Flintshire Public Services Board was established on 1st April 2016 as a result of the 
“Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act” coming into effect.  The Flintshire PSB is 
made up of senior leaders from a number of public and voluntary organisations: Flintshire 
County Council, Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board, Natural Resources Wales, 
North Wales Fire & Rescue Services (statutory members), North Wales Police, Public 
Health Wales, Flintshire Local Voluntary Council, Coleg Cambria, Glyndwr University, 
Wales Community Rehabilitation, National Probation Services Wales, Police & Crime 
Commissioner and Welsh Government (invited PSB members).  Together these 
organisations are responsible for developing and implementing the Well-being Plan for 
Flintshire which is due to be published in May 2018. 

Whilst the PSB realise there is much that could be done to add value to public services 
and to the communities of Flintshire they have identified a number of priorities for 2017/18 

Tudalen 97

http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Diversity-and-Equality/Welsh-Language/Welsh-Language-Annual-Report-2015-2016-2.pdf
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Improvement-Plan-201718/Council-Plan-2017-23.pdf


 46 | 50

that support the seven goals of the “Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act”.  These 
being:-

 Well-being and Independent Living
 Safe and Resilient Communities
 Community Safety
 Economy
 Environment

Regulation, Audit and Inspection 

The Council is regulated by a number of organisations throughout the year.  These include, 
amongst others the Wales Audit Office (WAO), Estyn for Education and the Care and 
Social Services Inspectorate (CSSIW).

The WAO publish an annual report on behalf of the Auditor General for Wales in 2016/17 
called the Annual Improvement Report. This report summarises the outcomes of all work 
that the WAO have undertaken during the year.  The Auditor General has not made any 
statutory recommendations with which the Council must comply.  Four advisory proposals 
for improvement have been made which are listed in table 3 below:

The Council has responded with an action plan against which progress is regularly 
monitored.

Table 3
Issue date Brief description Conclusions Proposals for improvement
Governance
May 2017 Good governance when 

determining service 
changes
 
Review of the Council’s 
governance arrangements 
for determining service 
changes. 

The Council’s governance 
arrangements for 
determining significant 
service change are generally 
effective with some 
opportunities to further 
strengthen its approach. We 
came to this conclusion 
because: 

The Council has a clear 
vision and strategic approach 
for determining service 
change;
 
Governance and 
accountability arrangements 
for service change decision-
making processes are clear, 
comprehensive and well-
understood; 

Options appraisals relating to 
service change are robust, 
transparent and wide-
ranging;
 
The Council has effective 
arrangements to engage 

The Council’s governance 
arrangements could be strengthened 
by: 
P1 Clearly defining the role of 
Scrutiny Committees in reviewing the 
impact of individual service changes, 
and by encouraging committees to 
reflect this role in their Forward Work 
Plans 

P2 Ensuring that Equality Impact 
Assessments associated with service 
change are of a consistently high quality. 

P3 Ensuring that internal reviews of 
its governance arrangements – such 
as the Annual Governance 
Statement – explicitly consider 
governance in relation to decisions 
about service change. 

Tudalen 98



 47 | 50

with, and inform, 
stakeholders about 

service change proposals, 
their potential implications 
and the processes involved 
in reaching a decision; 

Corporate arrangements for 
monitoring the impact of 
service change are generally 
clear, but there is scope to 
clarify the role of scrutiny; 
and 

The Council continues to 
review and refine its 
governance and decision-
making arrangements and 
responds positively to 
external audit feedback. 

Use of resources
November 
2016

Annual audit letter 2015- 
16 
Letter summarising the 
key messages arising 
from the Auditor General’s 
statutory responsibilities 
under the Public Audit 
(Wales) Act 2004 and his 
reporting responsibilities 
under the Code of Audit 
Practice. 

The Council complied with its 
responsibilities relating to 
financial reporting and use of 
resources 

The Council has appropriate 
arrangements in place to 
secure economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness in its use 
of resources; and
 
Work to date on certification 
of grant claims and returns 
has not identified significant 
issues that would impact on 
the 2015-16 accounts or key 
financial systems. 

None

January 
2017 

Savings planning 
Review of the Council’s 
financial savings 
arrangements, including 
how well it is delivering 
the required savings and 
whether it has robust 
approaches to plan, 
manage and deliver 
budget savings, at a pace 
that supports financial 
resilience. 

The Council has a sound 
financial planning framework 
and it continues to 
strengthen its financial 
planning to better support 
future financial resilience. 
We came to this conclusion 
because:
 
Savings achievement 2015-
16 

The Council has reported 
achievement of 83% of its 
planned 2015-16 savings in 
year and can demonstrate 
that individual savings have 
been delivered. 

Financial planning 

P1 Strengthen financial planning 
arrangements by ensuring that all 
savings proposals are sufficiently 
developed before the start of the 
financial year in which they are to be 
implemented. 

Tudalen 99



 48 | 50

arrangements 
The Council has an effective 
corporate framework for 
financial planning and plans 
to lengthen the term of the 
MTFS to five years to 
address the current lack of 
indicative plans for future 
years. 

Savings Plan 2016-17 
The Council forecasts that it 
is will achieve 90% of its 
2016-17 revised planned 
savings but some of its 
savings proposals are not 
sufficiently well developed 
when the budget is 
approved. 

Improvement planning and reporting

July 2016 Wales Audit Office 
annual improvement 
plan audit 
Review of the Council’s 
published plans for 
delivering on 
improvement objectives. 

The Council has complied 
with its statutory 
improvement planning duties. 

None

November 
2016

Wales Audit Office 
annual assessment of 
performance audit 
Review of the Council’s 
published performance 
assessment. 

The Council has complied 
with its statutory 
improvement reporting 
duties. 

None

Reviews by inspection and regulation bodies
No reviews by inspection and regulation bodies have taken place during the time period

Corporate Health and Safety 

The Council is committed to its duties and responsibilities as an employer for health and 
safety. The management of workplaces that are safe to the health of all Council employees, 
sub-contractors, stakeholders and members of the public is one of our main priorities. To 
meet this priority we plan to meet the requirements of the Health and Safety at Work Act 
1974 and other associated legislation as far as is reasonably practicable. 

 The Council continues to provide a robust system for accident/incident/near miss 
reporting and all accidents that are reported under RIDDOR to the Health & Safety 
Executive (HSE) are investigated. All statistical data is gathered by Corporate Health and 
Safety and provided to the relevant portfolios/services for detailed trend analysis.

The Corporate Health and Safety Steering Group continue to meet on a quarterly basis 
playing a major part in identifying risk management priorities and demonstrating health and 
safety leadership. Each Portfolio have presented the group with annual health and safety 
reports, reviewed and updated health and safety action plans, detailed 
accident/investigation statistics and claims data for 2016/17.

Tudalen 100



 49 | 50

All Portfolio’s support the Council priorities with regard to health and safety and include 
health and safety within formal meetings, meeting regularly to discuss health and safety 
issues ensuring they are part of the strategic and operational planning process and that 
strategic business decisions within their Service(s) are subjected to systematic hazard and 
risk analysis. 

A comprehensive programme of health and safety training continues to be made 
available. Relevant health and safety training needs are identified through learning and 
development appraisals and delivered both internally and externally.

Initiatives for 2016/17 have included:

• Development of new accident/incident reporting system which will provide an 
electronic form and compatibility with new ICT systems – to be rolled out end of 
2017

• Continue to raise awareness of the importance of completing the  e-learning 
programmes to complement  agile working

 Programme of Asbestos & Legionella Awareness Training for premises managers
• Hand Arm Vibration training and programme of monitoring
 Development of formal health and safety service level agreements to support the 

Alternative Delivery Models and Schools.

 It is important that employees and managers ensure health and safety management 
arrangements are reviewed and/or maintained and monitored through periods of change. 
The Corporate Health and Safety Steering Group and Chief Officers Team will continue to 
seek assurances from each of the Portfolios of these arrangements and the Corporate 
Health and Safety Team will continue to monitor effectiveness of health and safety 
arrangements through a rolling programme of inspection/accident investigations and 
audits.

Appendices 
Appendix A – Improvement Plan 2016/17 Risk Register
Appendix B – Improvement Plan Measures Data Table
Appendix C – National Indicators Data Table
Appendix D – Glossary of Terms

Feedback and how to Obtain Further Information

There are a number of related documents which support this Annual Performance Report. 
These can be obtained through the following links: 

 Flintshire County Council Improvement Plan 2016/17 

 National Performance Bulletin 2016/17

 Flintshire Social Services Annual Performance Report 2016/17

Tudalen 101



 50 | 50

 Annual Strategic Equality Plan Report 2016/17

 Welsh Language Monitoring Report 2016/17

Thank you for reading our Annual Performance Report for 2016/17

A public summary of this report will be published before December and will be available on 
the Council’s website and via our e-magazine.

Your views and suggestions about how we might improve the content and layout of the 
Annual Performance Report for future years are welcome.

In addition, should you wish to know more about our priorities for 2017/18 onwards please 
read our Council Plan 2017/23. Again, your views about future priorities, plan content and 
layout are welcome.

Please contact us on:
Tel: 01352 701457
Email: corporatebusiness@flintshire.gov.uk 

Tudalen 102



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Strategic Risk Report 2016-17 
Flintshire County Council 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Print Date: 26-May-2017 

T
udalen 103



Flintshire County Council Risk Report 

26-May-2017 Page 2 of 30 

 

 

 
 

Risk Summary 
 

Strategic Risks 
 

Initial Risk Assessment  Current  Risk Assessment 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Minor 9.80% (5) 

- Moderate  64.71% (33) 

- Major 25.49% (13) 

- Insignificant 21.57% (11) 

Minor 19.61% (10) 

- Moderate  45.10% (23) 

- Major 13.73% (7) 

T
udalen 104



Flintshire County Council Risk Report 

26-May-2017 Page 3 of 30 

 

 

 
Strategic Risks 

1 Housing 
 

 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

IP1.1.1R1 Homelessness will remain a 
growing area of demand due to the 
current economic climate. 

Strategic Risk Katie Clubb - 
Community 

Support Services 
Manager 

Suzanne 
Pemberton - 
Supporting 

People Manager 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: An increase in demand by potentially homeless clients would have an impact on capacity within the service. The lack of available housing to meet this demand 
would result in an increase for temporary housing. 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: The service has completed a forecasting model which highlights the areas of greatest risk and includes an action plan to mitigate against 
them. The action plan includes activities to increase availability and reduce barriers to finding suitable and affordable accommodation. 
The roll out of full service universal credit and the local housing allowance cap present further risks to numbers presenting as homeless and finding suitable housing options which 
will be reflected in the forecasting model. 
 
Last Updated: 15-May-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST99 The supply of affordable housing 
will continue to be insufficient to 
meet community needs. 

Strategic Risk Clare Budden - 
Chief Officer - 

Community and 
Enterprise 

Denise Naylor - 
Customer 
Services 

Manager, 
Melville Evans - 

Strategic Housing 
and Regeneration 

Programme 
(SHARP) 

Programme 
Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Impact would increase pressure on housing solutions and homelessness services. 

T
udalen 105



Flintshire County Council Risk Report 

26-May-2017 Page 4 of 30 

 

 

 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: The Council's Strategic Housing And Regeneration Programme (SHARP) continues to progress, with the first scheme of 12 new Council homes 
completed on the site of the former Custom House School site, Connah's Quay. Work also commenced on The Walks, Flint which will deliver 92 Council (30) and affordable homes 
(62) and 40 properties at smaller sites at Connah's Quay, Leeswood and Mold. In March 2017, Cabinet approved site feasibility and investigation works on a further 22 site across 
Flintshire which will potentially deliver a further 363 Council and affordable properties. With these properties, the total programme will comprise 507 homes which includes 277 
Council properties, 157 affordable rent properties and 73 affordable purchase properties. 
The Housing Programmes Team is a statutory consultee to planning applications and ensures the delivery of affordable housing provision on market led schemes in line with 
planning policy and local needs. This includes developers providing gifted units for affordable rent through NEW Homes Ltd or through Shared Equity where we currently have 285 
properties (which excludes those that have been sold). 

The Council also oversees the delivery of the Social Housing grant (SHG) with local housing association partner. 
NEW Homes continues to grow with a further 14 affordable properties transferred to the management of the company. A further 12 are scheduled for 2017/18. 
Affordable properties delivered through the planning system during 16/17 was 46. 

 
Last Updated: 25-May-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST100 The increased work programme to 
deliver the Welsh Housing Quality 
Standard (WHQS) will not be met 
due to the scale of the programme. 

Strategic Risk Clare Budden - 
Chief Officer - 

Community and 
Enterprise 

Sean O'Donnell - 
Contract 
Surveyor 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Contractors under performing against targets may have an adverse effect on budgets 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: The risk remains low as both Year 1 and Year 2 of the capital programme were delivered in full. 
Year 3 surveys / scoping works have already commenced and the majority of contracts have now commenced the delivery works onsite. 
All work streams are progressing well with many of the contracts anticipated to be completed and finalised in Quarter 3. 
A review of the journey to date is to be undertaken by the Capital Works Manager with the Programme being refreshed to capture and incorporate any Acceptable Fails (Tenant 
Refusals etc.) thus further improving the delivery programme in terms of completing the works as soon as possible rather than resulting in a large 'pepper pot' programme later in 
the final year. 
A revised structure has also been approved with the recruitment progress currently at 90% with only 5 positions left to advertise and fill. 
 
Last Updated: 24-May-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

T
udalen 106



Flintshire County Council Risk Report 

26-May-2017 Page 5 of 30 

 

 

 
ST102 Council funding for adaptations 

and home loans will not be 
sufficient to meet demand. 

Strategic Risk Niall Waller - 
Enterprise and 
Regeneration 

Manager 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Adaptations are a statutory duty for the Council. Demand in excess of current budgets would create a financial pressure on the Capital Programme. 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: Demand for DFG funding has increased as the delivery of DFGs has increased in speed. Although demand has exceeded budget provision 
savings in other areas of the service have offset this. 
 
Last Updated: 28-Apr-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST103 Financial assistance available to 
repair homes is not taken up by 
residents. 

Strategic Risk Niall Waller - 
Enterprise and 
Regeneration 

Manager 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Available resources will not be fully utilized and the programme may not realise its full impact in bringing quality homes into Flintshire. 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: The budget for repairs to homes has been fully utilised this year. 

 
Last Updated: 28-Apr-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 

Initial Risk 
Rating 

Current Risk 
Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST104 Customer expectations for the 
timeliness of adaptations 
undertaken through disabled 
facilities grants will not be met due 
to competing demands on 
resources. 

Strategic Risk Niall Waller - 
Enterprise and 
Regeneration 

Manager 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: The Council has a statutory duty to deliver Disabled Facilities Grants (DFGs) and failure to do so in a timely manner risks challenge and reputational impact. 

T
udalen 107



Flintshire County Council Risk Report 

26-May-2017 Page 6 of 30 

 

 

 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: lmprovements to the adaptation process are currently being made including reducing bureaucracy of the programme, developing a framework 

for suppliers to speed up procurement, a new IT system to facilitate case management and improving the purchase of frequently used equipment. These measures are expected  to 

bring down the timescale  for adaptations. 

 
Last Updated: 28-Apr-2017 

T
udalen 108



Flintshire County Council Risk Report 

26-May-2017 Page 7 of 30 

 

 

 
2 Living Well 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST105 Fragility and sustainability of the 
care home sector. 

Strategic Risk Neil Ayling - Chief 
Officer - Social 

Services 

Jane M Davies - 
Senior Manager, 
Safeguarding & 
Commissioning 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Reduced quality of care, increased difficulties with recruitment and retention of staff, and reduced capacity in the care home sector. 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: A five day summit with Betsi Cadwaldwr University Health Board and the six North Wales Authorities was held to discuss fragility and the 
impact on admissions into acute hospitals and early discharge. Monthly follow up sessions are taking place in North East Wales to take forward the agreed actions. Providers are 
involved in these discussions and, fee setting is ongoing. The project manager has undertaken initial research and identified both 'quick wins' and medium to long term 
opportunities to support the sector, and is working with new providers to support their entry into the Flintshire market. The pressure on the Welsh Government to increase the 
cap on day care has resulted in an increase from £60 to £70 per week with incremental progression to £100 per week over time to support the sector. Although progress is being 
made the level of risk remains red due to the ongoing fragility of the sector. 

 

 
 
 
Last Updated: 25-May-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST107 The quality of care home services 
will not meet required standards. 

Strategic Risk Neil Ayling - Chief 
Officer - Social 

Services 

Jacque Slee - 
Performance 
Lead ʹ Social 

Services 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Closed 

 

Potential Effects: Negative impact on reputation of the Council. 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: The roll out of "Progress for Providers" continues; one page profiles and the welcome pack have been implemented in 16 residential homes 
and 3 nursing homes. Contract officers are now implementing further person centred tools, with bespoke training delivered for staff. Care homes will start assessing themselves 
against the new Flintshire standards from April 2017.  This risk has been mitigated to Green and is now closed. 
 
Last Updated: 27-Apr-2017 

T
udalen 109



Flintshire County Council Risk Report 

26-May-2017 Page 8 of 30 

 

 

 
 

 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST108 Children and vulnerable families 
are not fully supported where 
multi-agency services and partners 
do not move toward an early 
intervention and prevention 
approach 

Strategic Risk Craig Macleod - 
Senior Manager, 

Children's Services 
& Workforce 

Ray Dickson - 
Children's 
Fieldwork 

Services Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: High re-referral rates, statutory requirement to provide Information, Advice and Assistance not met, escalation of needs and high cost intervention, duplication of 
effort across agencies 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: Project arrangements for developing an Early Intervention Hub are in place with appropriate governance and delivery infrastructure. Specific 
work streams have been developed and lead officers identified to take them forward.  Within Social Services there is a high demand for targeted support and early intervention 
services. Management decisions are being made on how finite resources can be best deployed based on individual circumstances and presenting/associated risk. Additional funding 
has been identified through the Intermediate Care Fund to facilitate support to children, young people and families with complex needs, through targeted support to help prevent 
their problems from escalating. 
 
Last Updated: 24-Apr-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST109 Demand and aspirations for 
independent living will not be met. 

Strategic Risk Neil Ayling - Chief 
Officer - Social 

Services 

Susie Lunt - 
Senior Manager, 

Integrated 
Services 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Insufficient capacity within existing extra care provision 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: Flint Extra Care scheme ʹ to be known as Llys Raddington ʹ is under construction and remains on track to complete in the spring of 2018. The 
site is at the heart of the town and will provide 73 apartments, with a mix of 1-bed and 2-bed apartments. There is specific provision for people living with dementia. 
The development of a new Extra Care scheme in Holywell is now progressing well. A preferred site has been identified at the vacant Ysgol Perth y Terfyn school near the town 
centre. The Council are working closely with Wales & West Housing Association to complete outline designs and prepare a full planning application by July 2017. Successful 
planning processes will enable construction to commence with a target completion in the first half of 2019. 
With positive progress on both projects, this risk is now decreasing. 
 
Last Updated: 08-May-2017 

T
udalen 110



Flintshire County Council Risk Report 

26-May-2017 Page 9 of 30 

 

 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST110 Funding between Health and the 
Council does not transfer smoothly 
e.g. Continuing Health Care (CHC), 
Intermediate Care Funds (ICF), and 
Primary Care Funds. 

Strategic Risk Neil Ayling - Chief 
Officer - Social 

Services 

Susie Lunt - 
Senior Manager, 

Integrated 
Services 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Closed 

 

Potential Effects: Increased costs to the Council 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: £227K has been reclaimed as a result of the work on tracing Continuing Healthcare Care (CHC) funding. 
Work is continuing on producing a set of operational standards with Betsi Cadwaladwr University Health Board (BCUHB); these will form the basis of a North Wales regional 
workshop to agree operational standards for health & social care. In terms of Intermediate Care Fund (ICF), meetings with BCUHB are regularly held to agree ongoing and new 
funding arrangements. This risk is now closed. 

 
Last Updated: 25-May-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST111 Service provision is not co- 
ordinated/integrated. 

Strategic Risk Neil Ayling - Chief 
Officer - Social 

Services 

Susie Lunt - 
Senior Manager, 

Integrated 
Services 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Ineffective joint services 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board (BCUHB) successfully recruited to two key management positions within the organisation which has 
created some collaborative stability this year. 
 
There is BCUHB management attendance at the Health, Wellbeing and Independence Board which meets every quarter. The BCUHB/FCC Strategic Partnership continues to meet 
quarterly chaired by Flintshire County Council (FCC) Chief Executive. 
 
Partnership Friday is held monthly and is attended by BCUHB managers and FCC Chief Officers; BCUHB managers also attend Heads meetings as relevant to discuss specific issues. 
Discussions are taking place regionally and locally in relation to how best to take forward the development of pooled budgets. The level of risk remains amber due to the 
Council's ability to achieve this by 2018 as required by the Act. 
 
Last Updated: 08-May-2017 

T
udalen 111



Flintshire County Council Risk Report 

26-May-2017 Page 10 of 30 

 

 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST112 Safeguarding arrangements do not 
meet the requirements of the 
Social Service and Well-being 
(SSWB) Act. 

Strategic Risk Neil Ayling - Chief 
Officer - Social 

Services 

Jane M Davies - 
Senior Manager, 
Safeguarding & 
Commissioning 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Criticism from Regulator 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: A specific module on safeguarding in line with the act has been delivered to employees in Social Services. Safeguarding procedures are being 
amended in line with the Act, and training will be delivered on these. E-learning modules on Safeguarding are now available on Flintshire Acadami. Interactive half day workshops 
will be delivered June 2017. 
 
Last Updated: 25-May-2017 T

udalen 112



Flintshire County Council Risk Report 

26-May-2017 Page 11 of 30 

 

 

 
3 Economy and Enterprise 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST113 The Northern Powerhouse and 
Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) 
could pose risks to the growth of 
the Flintshire economy if there is 
not devolution of powers and 
freedoms to match those being 
developed in England. 

Strategic Risk Clare Budden - 
Chief Officer - 

Community and 
Enterprise 

Niall Waller - 
Enterprise and 
Regeneration 

Manager, 
Rachael Byrne - 

Enterprise 
Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: If a significant growth deal package is agreed for Cheshire / Warrington area then it will bring the local partners the ability to manage the economy locally with 
new investment as well as devolved powers that allow a responsive approach to meeting local needs. This has the potential to make the area more attractive to new business 
investment and to enable the maximum benefits from economic growth to reach local people. 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: There has been extensive work to make the case for increased devolution of powers as part of the development of the North Wales Growth 
Vision. There have been positive discussions with Welsh Government in relation to the future role of the Economic Ambition Board and the emerging approach to regional working 
as an alternative to Local Government Reorganisation which may help with this process. 
 
Last Updated: 28-Apr-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST114 Infrastructure investment does not 
keep pace with needs and business 
is lost to the economy. 

Strategic Risk Clare Budden - 
Chief Officer - 

Community and 
Enterprise 

Niall Waller - 
Enterprise and 
Regeneration 

Manager 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: The potential impact would include businesses choosing not to locate in Flintshire, existing businesses finding it harder to justify remaining in the area and a 
worsening quality of life where, for example, traffic congestion increases. 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: Flintshire has worked with partners across North Wales and the North West of England in developing ambitious visions for economic growth 
for both North Wales and the Cheshire Warrington area. Both visions set out the economic benefits that can be realised in the region and the infrastructure needed to deliver 
them. These have been submitted to the UK Government for consideration. Further work is also underway to identify barriers to developing the key strategic development sites in 
Flintshire. Welsh Government has announced major road infrastructure investment in Flintshire and is developing a North Wales Metro which will modernise transport 
infrastructure in the region. 
 
Last Updated: 28-Apr-2017 

T
udalen 113



Flintshire County Council Risk Report 

26-May-2017 Page 12 of 30 

 

 

 
 

 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST115 Support for businesses in Flintshire 
does not meet needs and fails to 
encourage investment. 

Strategic Risk Clare Budden - 
Chief Officer - 

Community and 
Enterprise 

Niall Waller - 
Enterprise and 
Regeneration 

Manager, 
Rachael Byrne - 

Enterprise 
Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: i) Lower level of investment ii) Lower level of employment iii) Failure to realise wider benefits to the county from business investment 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: The Council has been working closely with potential investors and the rate of conversion remains high. Flintshire Business Week 2016 was very 
successful with a number of well attended events and remains a popular and cost effective way of engaging with and supporting the business community, enabling them to 
network and trade together. Despite the small size of the Flintshire service responses and support from businesses is very positive. 
 
Last Updated: 28-Apr-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST116 Devolved powers in Wales do not 
match those in England. 

Strategic Risk Clare Budden - 
Chief Officer - 

Community and 
Enterprise 

Niall Waller - 
Enterprise and 
Regeneration 

Manager 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Areas with a greater range of devolved powers have the potential to manage their economy in a more responsive manner and are able to take decisions quickly 
across a wide range of service areas. This gives them a considerable advantage in creating the conditions for successful business growth and neighbouring areas are likely to 
struggle to compete for new business investment. 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: There has been considerable progress in the development of a growth bid for North Wales and positive discussions with both UK and Welsh 
Government about the next steps in its development. Cross border partnership working is extremely strong and Welsh Government have welcomed the development of cross 
border elements for the vision. 
 
Last Updated: 28-Apr-2017 

T
udalen 114



Flintshire County Council Risk Report 

26-May-2017 Page 13 of 30 

 

 

 
4 Skills and Learning 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST117 Local employers and learning 
providers do not work closely 
enough to identify and meet the 
skills based needs of the future 

Strategic Risk Jeanette Rock - 
Principal 

Education Officer 
Inclusion 

Claire Homard - 
Senior Manager - 

School 
Improvement 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Flintshire residents are not appropriately skilled to meet the labour market requirements. 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: Labour Market Intelligence is feeding into the forums to provide further evidence of employee skill needs for the future. The Construction 
Industry Training Board (CITB) have just started a pilot project which creates direct links between local schools and construction companies to develop awareness of the range of 
future employment opportunities and the associated skills required. 
 
Last Updated: 23-Feb-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST118 Training places will not match 
current or future employer 
aspirations and needs 

Strategic Risk Jeanette Rock - 
Principal 

Education Officer 
Inclusion 

Claire Homard - 
Senior Manager - 

School 
Improvement 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Flintshire residents will not have access to a suitable range of qualifications which will facilitate successful recruitment within the local area. 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: Labour Market Intelligence generated by the North Wales Economic Ambition Board is circulated to providers to raise awareness of training 
requirements. Discussions around the information are taking place through the existing forums. 
 
Last Updated: 29-Nov-2016 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST119 Timescales of European Social Fund 
(ESF) programmes will not meet 
local targets and requirements. 

Strategic Risk Jeanette Rock - 
Principal 

Education Officer 
Inclusion 

Claire Homard - 
Senior Manager - 

School 
Improvement 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

T
udalen 115



Flintshire County Council Risk Report 

26-May-2017 Page 14 of 30 

 

 

 
Potential Effects: Reduced time to make best use of the ESF funding resulting in low project impact on young people who are at risk of disengagement and becoming NEET (Not in 
Education, Employment or Training). 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: A training session has been held with school-based staff to review TRAC eligibility and systems. This has facilitated a greater understanding for 
the purpose of the project along with processes that need to be undertaken to access and exit the provision. The full employee complement and greater process awareness should 
facilitate increased participant involvement. 

 

 
 
 

Last Updated: 17-Feb-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST120 Schools do not receive and/or 
make best use of the support they 
need from the Council and 
Gwasanaeth Effeithiolrwydd (GwE) 

Strategic Risk Claire Homard - 
Senior Manager - 

School 
Improvement 

Jeanette Rock - 
Principal 

Education Officer 
Inclusion 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Schools are less well informed about developments and what their actions to ensure continued improvement should be. Progress in improving outcomes for 
learners is reduced. 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: Schools considered to pose a risk because there is evidence they are not making best use of the support provided by the Council or GwE will be 
targeted as part of the School Performance Monitoring Group and challenged to engage. Persistent failure to engage could result in the issuing of a Warning Notice by the Chief 
Officer to the school under the Schools Causing Concern guidance from Welsh Government 
 
Last Updated: 26-May-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST121 Numbers of school places not 
matching the changing 
demographics. 

Strategic Risk Damian Hughes - 
Senior Manager, 

School Planning & 
Provision 

Claire Homard - 
Senior Manager - 

School 
Improvement 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Higher teaching ratios, unfilled places, backlog maintenance pressures 

T
udalen 116



Flintshire County Council Risk Report 

26-May-2017 Page 15 of 30 

 

 

 
Lead Supporting Officer Comments: Reducing unfilled school places via school organisation change is an ongoing process. School change projects can take between three and five 
years from inception to delivery before reductions of unfilled places can be realised. This continues to be an ongoing process linked to the school modernisation programme. To 
supplement this the Council will continue to work closely with schools to consider innovative ways for reduction in capacity on a school by school basis (i.e. alternative use of school 
facilities by other groups) with the objective of meeting national targets of circa 10% unfilled places in all school sectors. The recent school organisation change determinations will 
result in a reduction in unfilled places across both primary and secondary schools. As a snapshot, the Holywell Learning Campus project has reduced unfilled places in this area by 
around 450 places. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Last Updated: 17-May-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST122 Limited funding to address the 
backlog of known repair and 
maintenance works in Education & 
Youth assets 

Strategic Risk Damian Hughes - 
Senior Manager, 

School Planning & 
Provision 

Claire Homard - 
Senior Manager - 

School 
Improvement 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Schools unable to operate effectively, potential school down time, negative impact on curriculum delivery 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: Continuation of the School Modernisation programme is one of the strategic options available to address the repair and maintenance backlog. 
The programme continuation will also: 
i) Support a reduction of unfilled places 
ii) Provide a more efficient school estate and concentrate resources on teaching by removal of unwanted fixed costs in infrastructure and leadership 
iii) Ensure that the condition and suitability of the school estate is improved. 
Additionally, in future years capital business cases for improvement and repairs, and maintenance projects in schools will be submitted via the Council's business case process for 
consideration. 

 

 
 
 
Last Updated: 17-May-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

T
udalen 117



Flintshire County Council Risk Report 

26-May-2017 Page 16 of 30 

 

 

 
ST123 Leadership capacity does not 

match school needs 
Strategic Risk Claire Homard - 

Senior Manager - 
School 

Improvement 

Jeanette Rock - 
Principal 

Education Officer 
Inclusion 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Flintshire learners do not leave with suitable qualifications to enable them to progress into further education or employment. Overall school standards decrease 
with an increase in schools entering into an Estyn category and requiring significant levels of intervention to improve. 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: All schools in Flintshire currently have appropriate leadership arrangements in place. Out of 64 primary schools there are two Acting Head 
positions - one in relation to potential school reorganisation and one in relation to the temporary secondment of the substantive Head to the Regional School Improvement 
Service. In the secondary sector where there are 12 schools, two have interim Headteacher posts to cover vacancies, which will be advertised to secure substantive appointments. 
 
Last Updated: 19-Dec-2016 

T
udalen 118



Flintshire County Council Risk Report 

26-May-2017 Page 17 of 30 

 

 

 
5 Safe Communities 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST124 Lack of sustainable funding to 
deliver nationally determined 
community safety priorities. 

Strategic Risk Sian Jones - Public 
Protection 
Manager 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Unable to deliver services 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: All external grants were received during 2016/17 and appropriate financial claims and monitoring information were provided to the funders. 

 
Last Updated: 16-May-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST125 Retention of experienced and 
skilled staff due to the short term 
grant funding regime. 

Strategic Risk Sian Jones - Public 
Protection 
Manager 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Staff shortages may impact on service delivery. 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: The Community Safety Partnership received continued funding during 2016/17 that enabled the services they commission to be continued. 

 
Last Updated: 03-May-2017 

T
udalen 119



Flintshire County Council Risk Report 

26-May-2017 Page 18 of 30 

 

 

 
6 Poverty 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST126 Demand for advice and support 
services will not be met. 

Strategic Risk Katie Clubb - 
Community 

Support Services 
Manager 

Pam Davies - 
Housing Options 

Team Leader 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Service providers with insufficient resources to meet demand will quickly build up long waiting lists and residents will not be able to access timely advice that 
prevents problems from escalating to ones that require more costly specialist interventions. 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: From October 2016, the Council¶s Welfare Rights Team have been based in the Citizen Advice Flintshire Mold office. The 

collaboration with Citizen Advice Flintshire was introduced to maximise the efficient use of service resources and increase the number of households helped to 
access correct entitlement of social security benefits. In addition, the Advice and Housing Support Gateways have continued to help providers to manage demand 
from households experiencing social welfare problems as a result of the ongoing transformation of the social security system. 

 

 
 
 
Last Updated: 15-May-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST127 Debt levels will rise if tenants are 
unable to afford to pay their rent. 

Strategic Risk Katie Clubb - 
Community 

Support Services 
Manager 

Jen Griffiths - 
Benefits 
Manager 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: In 2018, the reductions to the financial support provided by welfare benefits to help low-income tenants pay their housing costs and the expansion of the 
Universal Credit Full Service across Flintshire will increase the number of households accruing rent arrears. In addition, some households, e.g., single people aged under 35, will find 
that wef April 2018; their social housing property is no longer an affordable housing option. 

T
udalen 120



Flintshire County Council Risk Report 

26-May-2017 Page 19 of 30 

 

 

 
Lead Supporting Officer Comments: Due to the continued, slow introduction of Universal Credit within Flintshire in 2016/17, the number of claimants who are also 
tenants remains low and there was little increase in the number of Universal Credit claimants during the year. The Advice and Housing Support Gateways refer cases 
to the Specialist Debt Officer where necessary and the personal budgeting service delivered by Citizen Advice Flintshire has coped with the demand from Universal 
Credit claimants. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Last Updated: 15-May-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST128 The local economy will suffer if 
residents have less income to 
spend. 

Strategic Risk Katie Clubb - 
Community 

Support Services 
Manager 

Jen Griffiths - 
Benefits 
Manager 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: The welfare reforms will reduce income levels in Flintshire by an average of £500 per working age adult pa by 2018. This will have a wider knock-on effect for the 
Flintshire economy given households (particularly lower-income households) will have less money to spend on local goods and services. 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: In 2016/17 Flintshire residents received specialist advice and support to access ongoing social security benefits worth 

£1,579,380 increasing the spending power of these households within the local economy. 
 
 
 
 
 
Last Updated: 15-May-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST129 Residents do not take up the 
energy efficiency measures 
available. 

Strategic Risk Niall Waller - 
Enterprise and 
Regeneration 

Manager 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: i) Available resources not used to their full potential ii) Household energy bills higher than needed iii) Fuel poverty remains higher than needed 

T
udalen 121



Flintshire County Council Risk Report 

26-May-2017 Page 20 of 30 

 

 

 
Lead Supporting Officer Comments: There has been a strong level of demand for energy efficiency measures and in particular for the external wall insulation offered in Deeside. All 
available resources have been fully used. 

 
Last Updated: 28-Apr-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST130 Available funding for energy 
efficiency measures may fall short 
of public demand. 

Strategic Risk Niall Waller - 
Enterprise and 
Regeneration 

Manager 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: i) Public frustration, and reduced funding may impact on the Council's reputation. ii) Opportunities to reduce household costs and fuel poverty may not be fully 
realised. 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: There remains more demand for energy efficiency measures than the current level of funding allows, in particular for solar panels and external 
wall insulation. Expectations are being managed as far as possible and other sources of funding to increase the level of provision are being actively considered. 
 

 
Last Updated: 28-Apr-2017 

T
udalen 122



Flintshire County Council Risk Report 

26-May-2017 Page 21 of 30 

 

 

 
7 Environment 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST131 Sufficient funding to ensure our 
highways infrastructure remains 
safe and capable of supporting 
economic growth. 

Strategic Risk Stephen Jones - 
Chief Officer - 

Streetscene and 
Transportation 

Barry Wilkinson - 
Highways 
Networks 
Manager 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Closed 

 

Potential Effects: A lack of sufficient funding would result in a worsening condition of the highway infrastructure across Flintshire. 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: Preventative and corrective work has been completed across a number of improvement and maintenance schemes of the highest ranked sites 
within the network as planned, in accordance with received funding. 

 

 
 
 
Last Updated: 26-May-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST132 Sustainable transport options do 
not remain attractive to users. 

Strategic Risk Stephen Jones - 
Chief Officer - 

Streetscene and 
Transportation 

Katie Wilby - 
Transportation 
and Logistics 

Manager 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Increase in individual car usage. Increase in deteoriation of the highway. Not meet the requirements of the Active Travel Wales bill. 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: Work is ongoing with Welsh Government and regional partners through the Local, Regional and National Transport Plans looking at transport 
interventions such as integrated ticketing, quality partnerships, vehicle quality standards, infrastructure improvements and development of alternative services such as community 
based transport services. 
 
Last Updated: 17-Feb-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

T
udalen 123



Flintshire County Council Risk Report 

26-May-2017 Page 22 of 30 

 

 

 
ST133 Sufficient funding will not be found 

to continue to provide subsidised 
bus services. 

Strategic Risk Stephen Jones - 
Chief Officer - 

Streetscene and 
Transportation 

Katie Wilby - 
Transportation 
and Logistics 

Manager 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Decrease in bus services to residents, particularly in rural areas. 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: Work is ongoing to make existing services more sustainable and provide support for the bus industry in partnership with Welsh Government 
with a Bus Summit held on 23.01.2017. The Bus Summit was facilitated by Welsh Government and aimed to bring together industry users, providers, and policy makers in devising 
a forward looking sustainable strategy for the bus industry in Wales. 
Existing supported bus services are operating within current financial levels for 2016-2017. 
 
Last Updated: 17-Feb-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST134 Reduction of the Single 
Environment Grant. 

Strategic Risk Andrew Farrow - 
Chief Officer - 
Planning and 
Environment 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Potential reduction in future service provision 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: Reduction of the Single Environment Grant remains a risk as Welsh Government have continued with a reduced settlement for 2017-18. This 
has been raised as a budget pressure for 2017-18. 
 
Last Updated: 19-May-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST135 Recycling programmes are not 
supported by the public and 
employees. 

Strategic Risk Stephen Jones - 
Chief Officer - 

Streetscene and 
Transportation 

Harvey Mitchell - 
Waste and 

Ancillary Services 
Manager 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Decreasing income from resale of recyclates. Increased infraction charges. Carbon reduction targets not met. 

T
udalen 124



Flintshire County Council Risk Report 

26-May-2017 Page 23 of 30 

 

 

 
Lead Supporting Officer Comments: Recycling tonnages have improved on the previous year. A Countywide education campaign was carried out prior to Christmas to inform 
residents of an increase in the range and type of materials we collect. Further food specific campaigns are planned for March.  This will continue to be monitored given the 
increase in what can be recycled and that the public are becoming more aware of the range of materials that can now be collected. 

 
Last Updated: 23-Feb-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST136 Limitations on suitable Council sites 
with sufficient area for larger scale 
renewables schemes and suitable 
connections to the electric grid. 

Strategic Risk Andrew Farrow - 
Chief Officer - 
Planning and 
Environment 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Unable to generate power through FCC controlled renewables sources. Continue to pay market prices for energy. 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: A list of potential sites has been generated in partnership with the Green Growth Wales team, these are being reviewed and a programme for 
each will established during 2017-18. 
 
Last Updated: 19-May-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST137 Funding will not be secured for 
priority flood alleviation schemes. 

Strategic Risk Andrew Farrow - 
Chief Officer - 
Planning and 
Environment 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Flood schemes will not be delivered 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: Grant availability continued to be monitored throughout 2016-17 and a capital bid to potentially address flood risk schemes was also 
developed. The Mold scheme has been raised as a potential National Development Framework project which will provide greater strength when seeking capital. A review of the 
permitted Mold scheme is also in progress. 
 
Last Updated: 19-May-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

T
udalen 125



Flintshire County Council Risk Report 

26-May-2017 Page 24 of 30 

 

 

 
ST138 Customer expectations around the 

delivery of flood alleviation 
schemes are not effectively 
managed. 

Strategic Risk Andrew Farrow - 
Chief Officer - 
Planning and 
Environment 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Flood schemes will not be delivered 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: The customer expectation (which is improving) is that flood risk can be eliminated or managed through the delivery of flood alleviation 
schemes by the Local Authority. This may not always be possible due to technical, environmental, financial or other constraints. Potential schemes must be able to demonstrate 
positive benefit cost ratios and then be considered and prioritised on a national risk based approach. Considering the current pressures on public funding, the money available for 
addressing flood risk is unlikely to be adequate and pressures will only increase with the rising future risk brought about by further development and a changing climate. As such 
flood risk management and local resilience will need to be improved by everyone working together and by those at risk from flooding taking responsibility to protect and help 
themselves. 
 
Last Updated: 19-May-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST139 Environmental crime programmes 
are not supported by the public 
and employees. 

Strategic Risk Stephen Jones - 
Chief Officer - 

Streetscene and 
Transportation 

Harvey Mitchell - 
Waste and 

Ancillary Services 
Manager 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Continued problems with littering, graffiti and loss of environmental quality 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: In Quarter 3 the introduction of a pilot scheme carrying out environmental enforcement using a specialist contractor has so far been successful 
with the number of FPN ͛s issued exceeding 2,800. 
There is anecdotal evidence suggesting that there has been a reduction in the amount of litter being dropped in our town centres. 
 
Last Updated: 17-Feb-2017 

T
udalen 126



Flintshire County Council Risk Report 

26-May-2017 Page 25 of 30 

 

 

 
8 Modern and Efficient Council 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST140 The capacity and appetite of the 
community and social sectors. 

Strategic Risk Ian Bancroft - 
Chief Officer - 
Organisational 

Change 1 

Dawn Holt - 
Alternative 

Delivery Models 
and Transforming 

Social Services 
Programme 

Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: No increase in the number and strength in community and social sectors which in turn will limit the capacity for communities to assist in community asset 
transfer and other programmes. 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: For 2016/17 we have ten Community Asset Transfers that are either complete or nearing legal completion (plus an additional 3 that are not 
quite at this stage but will be soon and an additional 2 that have been completed with schools and communities as Transfer of Control Agreements rather than Asset Transfers, if 
these are included it makes a total of 15 in 2016/17). In addition 5 services have now been agreed by Cabinet to progress into 3 Alternative Delivery Models. This demonstrates the 
capacity and appetite of the community and social sectors to work with the council to sustain important services for local communities. 
 
Last Updated: 26-May-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST141 The willingness of the workforce 
and Trade Unions to embrace 
change. 

Strategic Risk Ian Bancroft - 
Chief Officer - 
Organisational 

Change 1 

Dawn Holt - 
Alternative 

Delivery Models 
and Transforming 

Social Services 
Programme 

Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Organisational change objectives cannot be met. 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: Detailed work has taken place with staff and trade unions on the asset transfers and the five services that are establishing Alternative Delivery 
Models. In each case an agreed position has been reached with staff and trade unions which demonstrates their appetite to work co-operatively on this agenda. 
 
Last Updated: 26-Apr-2017 

T
udalen 127



Flintshire County Council Risk Report 

26-May-2017 Page 26 of 30 

 

 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST142 Market conditions which the new 
alternative delivery models face. 

Strategic Risk Ian Bancroft - 
Chief Officer - 
Organisational 

Change 1 

Dawn Holt - 
Alternative 

Delivery Models 
and Transforming 

Social Services 
Programme 

Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: New Alternative Delivery Models will see a decrease in income and ultimately be un-sustainable. 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: Final diligence on all 5 services establishing ADM's is nearing completion. This has included final market assessments which demonstrate each 
of the three new ADM's can compete and co-operate in the markets they are entering. 
 
Last Updated: 25-Apr-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST143 Limitations on public funding to 
subsidise alternative models. 

Strategic Risk Ian Bancroft - 
Chief Officer - 
Organisational 

Change 1 

Dawn Holt - 
Alternative 

Delivery Models 
and Transforming 

Social Services 
Programme 

Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Alternative Delivery Models become unsustainable as it cannot meet costs with reduced funding from the Council.. 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: Final diligence work for each of the three new Alternative Delivery Models shows that the level of public funding available in the foreseeable 
future is adequate to support the new companies. 
 
Last Updated: 26-May-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

T
udalen 128



Flintshire County Council Risk Report 

26-May-2017 Page 27 of 30 

 

 

 
ST144 Procurement regulations stifling 

our ability to develop local 
community and third sector 
markets 

Strategic Risk Arwel Staples - 
Strategic 

Procurement 
Manager 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Closed 

 

Potential Effects: Unlikely increase in spend with Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs) and third sector suppliers 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: A new corporate procurement strategy has been developed. The strategy has now been approved and one of the key outcomes is local 
supplier development, increased use of community benefits, and increased spend with Social Enterprises. 
A number of Training Workshops have been undertaken to promote the new Strategy. 
The introduction of the Commissioning Form will also facilitate consideration of SME and Third Sector friendly procurement initiatives for individual projects. As a result there 
should be greater opportunities for the local and third sector markets due to relevant lotting of tenders as well as making tender documents more market friendly. 

 

 
 
 
Last Updated: 18-Apr-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST145 Newly established Social 
Enterprises fail in their early stages 
of development 

Strategic Risk Ian Bancroft - 
Chief Officer - 
Organisational 

Change 1 

Dawn Holt - 
Alternative 

Delivery Models 
and Transforming 

Social Services 
Programme 

Manager, Mike 
Dodd - Social 

Enterprise 
Development 
Lead Officer 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: New social enterprises are not sustainable and go into liquidation 

T
udalen 129



Flintshire County Council Risk Report 

26-May-2017 Page 28 of 30 

 

 

 
Lead Supporting Officer Comments: Work on Alternative Delivery Models and Community Asset Transfers will result by early 2017 in four new large social enterprises operating in 
Flintshire. These include: Cambrian Aquatics, Holywell Leisure Centre, Flintshire Leisure and Libraries, HF Trust. These organisations strengthen the social enterprise sector in 
Flintshire and will enable through their learning and sharing of co-operative practice the sector to deal with issues in early stages of social enterprise start up. This will add to the 
work of the social enterprise sector working group which has a plan to support the sector during 2017. 

 

 
Last Updated: 26-May-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST146 Newly established Community 
Asset Transfers fail in their early 
stages of development 

Strategic Risk Neal Cockerton - 
Chief Officer - 
Organisational 

Change 2 

Dawn Holt - 
Alternative 

Delivery Models 
and Transforming 

Social Services 
Programme 

Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: New social enterprises are not sustainable and go into liquidation 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: Monitoring of Community Asset Transfer (CAT) achievements in their first year has started. This includes meeting with each organisation 
discussing their financial situation and achievement of community benefits. At this stage no significant risks of failure has been identified. 
 
Last Updated: 15-May-2017 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST147 The scale of the financial challenge. Strategic Risk Gary Ferguson - 
Corporate Finance 

Manager 

Sara Dulson - 
Finance Manager  

 
 

 
 

 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: The Council does not have sufficient funding to meet it's priorities and obligations. 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: The Final Local Government Settlement for 2017/18 has since been received and is more favourable than the figure projected within the 
forecast. The annual budget for 2017/18 has now been set. The risks remain high for future budget years. 
 
Last Updated: 24-Apr-2017 

T
udalen 130



Flintshire County Council Risk Report 

26-May-2017 Page 29 of 30 

 

 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST148 The capacity and capability of the 
organisation to implement 
necessary changes. 

Strategic Risk Sharon Carney - 
Lead Business 

Partner 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Organisational change objectives cannot be met. 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: Organisational change programmes are broadly on time and on budget. 

 
Last Updated: 29-Nov-2016 

Risk Action Title Lead Officer Start Date End Date Percentage 
Complete 

Progress Comments 

Detailed workforce plans for each portfolio Sharon Carney- 
Lead Business 
Partner 

03-Apr-2017 31-Mar-2018 80 Each portfolio has completed a high level workforce 
plan for their senior management teams and the next 
two or three tiers. The next step is for portfolio's to 
assess the future broader workforce requirements 
taking into account any future changes that will 
impact upon the staffing within the respective service 
areas. 

 
 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 

Initial Risk 
Rating 

Current Risk 
Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST149 The pace of procurement 
collaborations and our limited 
control over their development. 

Strategic Risk Gareth Owens - 
Chief Officer - 
Governance 

Arwel Staples - 
Strategic 

Procurement 
Manager 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Procurement efficiencies will not be realised. 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: The National Procurement Service (NPS) has increased the pace of procurement collaboration delivery with 30+ framework agreements in 
place and further projects identified. The work programme delivery is being closely monitored. 
 
However actual benefits to the Council from the NPS framework agreements is varied, therefore further monitoring of actual benefits is required going forward. 
Further meetings have been held with the National Procurement Service to develop an Action Plan to determine if tangible efficiencies can be obtained from collaborative 
framework agreements already delivered. 

 
Last Updated: 18-Apr-2017 

T
udalen 131



Flintshire County Council Risk Report 

26-May-2017 Page 30 of 30 

 

 

 
 

 

Risk Ref. 
 

Risk Title 
 

Risk Type 
 

Lead Officer 
Supporting 

Officers 
Initial Risk 

Rating 
Current Risk 

Rating 

 

Risk Trend 
 

Risk Status 

ST150 Public attitude to accessing 
services on-line. 

Strategic Risk Clare Budden - 
Chief Officer - 

Community and 
Enterprise 

Rebecca Jones - 
Customer 

Services Team 
Leader 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Open 

 

Potential Effects: Targeted efficiencies to be achieved through people switching to accessing services will not be met. 
 

Lead Supporting Officer Comments: The new Customer Service Strategy has been approved by Cabinet and sets out the Council¶s plan to transform customer access to Council 

services over the next five years; this will include a review of how customers currently access Council services and opportunities to modernise all face to face, telephone and digital 
access channels. In quarter 4, the Council continued to see the number of online digital transactions rise with 11,142 customers choosing to correspond with the Council online via the 
website. There was also a 19% increase in the number of people using the Council¶s website. Customer Support Services continue to work closely with ICT to prioritise services for 
transformation. 

 
Last Updated: 10-May-2017 

 

T
udalen 132



1

Achievement Measures
2015/16 

Baseline Data

2016/17 

Target
2016/17 Outturn

Performance 

RAG

Performance 

Trend

The number of new Council and affordable homes through 

the SHARP programme

N/A - new 

measure
12 12 G Not Applicable

The number of new affordable homes provided through the 

planning system

N/A - new 

measure
35 42 G Not Applicable

The number of affordable homes provided through the Social 

Housing Grant (SHG) programme

N/A - new 

measure
21 24 G Not Applicable

Number of housing enquiries resolved at first point of contact
N/A - new 

measure

N/A - baseline 

to be 

established

2130 Not Applicable Not Applicable

HHA/013 - The percentage of all potentially homeless 

households for whom homelessness was prevented for at 

least 6 months.

98.3% 87% 54% R Downturned

Repair / improve 40 private sector dwellings through the 

Council's capital programme and Welsh Government's 

national Home Improvement Loan 

23 40 14 R Downturned

PSR/009a - The average number of calendar days taken to 

deliver a Disabled Facilities Grant for children and young 

people.

521 days 316 249 G Improved

PSR/009b - The average number of calendar days taken to 

deliver a Disabled Facilities Grant for adults.
348.4 247 248.55 G Improved

Appendix B - Improvement Plan Measures Table

Priority Housing: Appropriate and Affordable Homes

T
udalen 133



2

Achievement Measures
2015/16 

Baseline Data

2016/17 

Target
2016/17 Outturn

Performance 

RAG

Performance 

Trend

IPH2M1 - Number of empty homes brought back into use 34 35 25 A Downturned

Capital Works Target - Roofs & Associated Components
N/A - new 

measure
210 131 R Not Applicable

Capital Works Target - Windows
N/A - new 

measure
42 131 G Not Applicable

Capital Works Target - External Doors
N/A - new 

measure
42 131 G Not Applicable

Capital Works Target – Heating Upgrades 192 190 123 R Downturned

Capital Works Target – Kitchen Replacements 1393 1030 1266 G Downturned

Capital Works Target – Smoke Detectors 508 500 566 G Improved

Capital Works Target – Bathroom Replacements 1688 1398 1792 G Improved

Capital Works Target - Electrical Systems
N/A - new 

measure
50 69 G Not Applicable

T
udalen 134



3

Achievement Measures
2015/16 

Baseline Data

2016/17 

Target
2016/17 Outturn

Performance 

RAG

Performance 

Trend

Monitoring numbers of agency staff used
N/A - new 

measure
18 18 G Not Applicable

Number of care homes which are a 'Service of Concern' 3 12 5 G Improved

Number of care homes in 'Escalating Concerns' 0 1 1 G Downturned

Number of adults who received advice or assistance from the 

information, advice and assistance service during the year 

and have not contacted the service again (New National 

Outcomes Framework for Social Services)

N/A - new 

measure

N/A - baseline 

to be 

established

983 Not Applicable Not Applicable

Priority:  Living Well

T
udalen 135



4

Achievement Measures
2015/16 

Baseline Data

2016/17 

Target
2016/17 Outturn

Performance 

RAG

Performance 

Trend

Number of adults who received a service provided through a 

social enterprise, co-operative, user led service or third sector 

organisation during the year (New National Outcomes 

Framework for Social Services)

N/A - new 

measure

N/A - baseline 

to be 

established

620 Not Applicable Not Applicable

Achievement of outcomes for people with a learning disability
N/A - new 

measure

N/A - baseline 

to be 

established

No Data Not Applicable Not Applicable

The number of communities committed to becoming 'Age-

Friendly'

N/A - new 

measure

N/A - baseline 

to be 

established

2 Not Applicable Not Applicable

Stability of school placements 13.38 10 11.9 A Improved

Timeliness of health assessments 68.35 68 61.48 A Downturned

Educational attainment of looked after children 248.22 270 310.64 G Improved

T
udalen 136



5

Achievement Measures
2015/16 

Baseline Data

2016/17 

Target
2016/17 Outturn

Performance 

RAG

Performance 

Trend

The percentage of identified carers of adult service users who 

access the 'Bridging the Gap' respite and report it having a 

posititve impact on their caring role.

N/A - new 

measure

N/A - baseline 

to be 

established

86 Not Applicable N/A

SCA/018c - The percentage of identified carers of adult 

service users who were assessed or reassessed in their own 

right during the year who were provided with a service.

89% 82% 93.85% G Improved

T
udalen 137



6

Achievement Measures
2015/16 

Baseline Data

2016/17 

Target
2016/17 Outturn

Performance 

RAG

Performance 

Trend

The rate of delayed transfers of care for social care reasons 

(SCA/001)
3.4 2 3.01 A Improved

Number of Looked After Children (LAC) waiting to access 

CAMMS

N/A - new 

measure
N/A 2 Not Applicable Not Applicable

Average waiting time for Looked After Children (LAC) 

accessing CAMMS

N/A - new 

measure
N/A 4 Not Applicable Not Applicable

T
udalen 138



7

Achievement Measures
2015/16 

Baseline Data

2016/17 

Target
2016/17 Outturn

Performance 

RAG

Performance 

Trend

Number of events aimed at raising awareness of dementia 

across the county

N/A - new 

measure
N/A 38 Not Applicable Not Applicable

Embedding safeguarding awareness and procedures within 

appropriate policies (policy reviews)

N/A - new 

measure
N/A 1 Not Applicable Not Applicable

Increased referral rates from services other than Social 

Services

N/A - new 

measure
N/A 3 Not Applicable Not Applicable

SCA/019 The percentage of adult protection referrals where 

the risk was managed
100% 98% 100% G Maintained

SCA/014 The percentage of initial child protection 

conferences held within 15 days of the strategy discussion
86% 95% 74% R Downturned

SCC/034 The percentage of child protection reviews 

completed within timescales
99.3% 98% 98.10% G Downturned

T
udalen 139



8

Achievement Measures
2015/16 

Baseline Data

2016/17 

Target
2016/17 Outturn

Performance 

RAG

Performance 

Trend

Delivery of supply chain development events 0 8 10 G Improved

Number of new jobs in Flintshire 2139 1200 1480 G Downturned

Percentage of enquiries converted to investment in Flintshire 74.2% N/A 87% Not Applicable Improved

Number of jobs created and sustained in Flintshire 2,139 1,200 1480 G Downturned

Number of jobs created as a result of large capital 

programmes (Welsh Housing Quality Standard)
43 36 42 G Downturned

Number of jobs created as a result of large capital 

programmes (Strategic Housing and Regeneration 

Programme)

0 N/A 393 Not Applicable Improved

Number of town private sector investment proposals 

supported

N/A - new 

measure

N/A - baseline 

to be 

established

3 Not Applicable Not Applicable

Number of new ambassadors created 0 15 15 G Improved

Priority:  Economy and Enterprise

T
udalen 140



9

Achievement Measures
2015/16 

Baseline Data

2016/17 

Target
2016/17 Outturn

Performance 

RAG

Performance 

Trend

Number of training and apprenticeship oppportunities: 

Apprenticeships

N/A - new 

measure

N/A - baseline 

to be 

established

12 Not Applicable Not Applicable

Number of training and apprenticeship oppportunities: 

Traineeships

N/A - new 

measure

N/A - baseline 

to be 

established

32 Not Applicable Not Applicable

Increase number of training and apprenticeship opportunities 

through Futureworks Flintshire Apprenticeships Academy and 

our major capital programmes (WHQS & SHARP)

12 10 5 A Downturned

The number of entrepreneurs supported through the Flintshire 

BEN

N/A - new 

measure

N/A - baseline 

to be 

established

64 Not Applicable Not Applicable

Improved local skills base to improve employability and 

earning prospects through improved qualifications: Number of 

Flintshire residents qualified to NVQ Level 2

N/A - new 

measure

N/A - baseline 

to be 

established

76.3% Not Applicable Not Applicable

Improved local skills base to improve employability and 

earning prospects through improved qualifications: Number of 

Flintshire residents qualified to NVQ Level 3

N/A - new 

measure

N/A - baseline 

to be 

established

51.5% Not Applicable Not Applicable

Priority:  Skills and Learning

T
udalen 141



10

Achievement Measures
2015/16 

Baseline Data

2016/17 

Target
2016/17 Outturn

Performance 

RAG

Performance 

Trend

Improved local skills base to improve employability and 

earning prospects through improved qualifications: Number of 

Flintshire residents qualified to NVQ Level 4

N/A - new 

measure

N/A - baseline 

to be 

established

29.2% Not Applicable Not Applicable

Increased numbers of learners achieving the Level 1 

threshold
96.2% 97.1% 95.3% A Downturned

Securing high levels of 16 years olds in education, 

employment and training
98.7% 98.8% 96.3% A Downturned

Reducing the percentage of 18 – 24 year olds claiming 

Jobseekers Allowance
5.0% 5.10% 3% G Improved

(European Social Fund TRAC) Number of people gaining a 

qualification or work relevant certification

(European Social Fund TRAC) Number of people completing 

a work experience placement or volunteering opportunity

(European Social Fund Adtrac) Number of people gaining a 

qualification or work relevant certification

(European Social Fund Adtrac) Number of people completing 

a work experience placement or volunteering opportunity

(European Social Fund Opus) Number of people gaining a 

qualification or work relevant certification

Measures discontinued from April 2016

T
udalen 142



11

Achievement Measures
2015/16 

Baseline Data

2016/17 

Target
2016/17 Outturn

Performance 

RAG

Performance 

Trend

(European Social Fund Opus) Number of people completing a 

work experience placement or volunteering opportunity

(Communities 4 work) Number of people gaining a 

qualification or work relevant certification

N/A - new 

measure

N/A - baseline 

to be 

established

2 Not Applicable Not Applicable

(Communities 4 work) Number of people completing a work 

experience placement or volunteering opportunity

N/A - new 

measure

N/A - baseline 

to be 

established

2 Not Applicable Not Applicable

The percentage of learners achieving the Foundation Phase 

Indicator
87.0% 87.9% 86.9% A Downturned

IPSL1M1 - The percentage of learners achieving GCSE grade 

C or above in Mathematics
69.4% 74.4% 69.4% A Maintained

IPSL1M2 - The percentage of learners assessed as achieving 

Level 5 or above at the end of Key Stage 3, in Mathematics
92.0% 93.8% 92.7% A Improved

IPSL1M3 - The percentage of learners assessed as achieving 

Level 4 or above at the end of Key Stage 2, in Mathematics
90.9% 87.9% 92.3% G Improved

Percentage of Foundation Phase learners achieving improved 

outcomes in Mathematics
90.2% 88.4% 90.2% G Maintained

IPSL1M4 - The percentage of learners achieving GCSE grade 

C or above in English
72.2% 88.4% 71.6% A Downturned

Measure discontinued from April 2016

T
udalen 143



12

Achievement Measures
2015/16 

Baseline Data

2016/17 

Target
2016/17 Outturn

Performance 

RAG

Performance 

Trend

IPSL1M5 - The percentage of learners assessed as achieving 

Level 5 or above at the end of Key Stage 3, in English
91.4% 93.0% 91.1% A Downturned

IPSL1M6 - The percentage of learners assessed as achieving 

Level 4 or above at the end of Key Stage 2, in English
90.1% 87.3% 91.2% G Improved

Percentage of Foundation Phase learners achieving improved 

outcomes in English
89.0% 86.2% 88.4% G Downturned

Percentage of Key Stage 4 learners achieving improved 

outcomes in Welsh (first language)
54.6% 74.7% 68.0% A Improved

Percentage of Key Stage 2 learners achieving improved 

outcomes in Welsh (first language)
86.4% 85.4% 84.3% A Downturned

Percentage of Key Stage 3 learners achieving improved 

outcomes in Welsh (first language)
80.0% 92.1% 96.8% G Improved

Percentage of Foundation Phase learners achieving improved 

outcomes in Welsh
91.2% 85.6% 88.1% G Downturned

T
udalen 144



13

Achievement Measures
2015/16 

Baseline Data

2016/17 

Target
2016/17 Outturn

Performance 

RAG

Performance 

Trend

EDU/003 – The percentage of learners achieving the Core 

Subject Indicator at Key Stage 2
87.9% 87.0% 89.82% G Improved

EDU/004 - The percentage of learners achieving the Core 

Subject Indicator at Key Stage 3
87.1% 86.5% 88.3% G Improved

Improvement of outcomes in Capped Wider Points score, 

including an increasing proportion of A* and A grades
342.1 362.7 343.3 A Improved

EDU/017 - The percentage of learners achieving the Level 2 

Threshold inclusive of Mathematics and English and/or Welsh 

1
st
 Language

60.6% 69.9% 61.9% A Improved

IPSL1M7 - Improve performance of cohort of learners entitled 

to Free School Meals (FSM) in achieving the Level 1 Indicator 

(Five GCSE passes A* to G or vocational equivalent)

92.1% 96.6% 94.1% A Improved

IPSK1M8 - Improve performance of cohort of learners entitled 

to Free School Meals (FSM) in achieving the Level 2+ 

Indicator (Five GCSE passes A* to C or vocational equivalent 

including Mathematics and English and/or Welsh 1
st 

Language)

35.2% 43.9% 33.6% R Downturned

IPSK1M9 - Improve performance of cohort of learners entitled 

to Free School Meals (FSM) in The Capped Points Score 

indicator.  (Points achieved in best eight course outcomes)
308.1 338.7 308.4 A Improved

T
udalen 145



14

Achievement Measures
2015/16 

Baseline Data

2016/17 

Target
2016/17 Outturn

Performance 

RAG

Performance 

Trend

Improve performance of cohort of learners entitled to Free 

School Meals (FSM) in achievement of the Core Subject 

Indicator at Key Stage 3

71.3% 76.5% 76.20% A Improved

The percentage of young people of school age in the youth 

justice system that are offered 25 hours ETE
80.0% 40.0% 71% G Downturned

The percentage of young people of school age in the youth 

justice system that are offered 16+ ETE
75.0% 55.0% 58% G Downturned

Achievement Measures
2015/16 

Baseline Data

2016/17 

Target
2016/17 Outturn

Performance 

RAG

Performance 

Trend
The percentage of high risk repeat victims of domestic abuse 

referred to the Flintshire MARAC
20.0% 28.0% 14.3% G Improved

Monitoring the number of formal consultations for public 

space protection orders (PSPOs)
New Measure

N/A - baseline 

to be 

established

No Data Not Applicable Not Applicable

IPSC1M4 - Achieve a waiting time of less than 20 days from 

referral to treatment (KPI 2)
90.9% 80.0% 85.1% G Downturned

IPSC1M5 - Substance Misuse Treatment Completes (KPI 6) 78.9% 80.0% 77.7% A Downturned

Priority:  Safe CommunitiesT
udalen 146



15

Achievement Measures
2015/16 

Baseline Data

2016/17 

Target
2016/17 Outturn

Performance 

RAG

Performance 

Trend

Amount of additional Social Security and Tax Credits paid to 

Flintshire residents as a result of the work undertaken by FCC 

(WEL/001)

£2.1m £1.5m £1.5m G Downturned

Speed of processing Housing Benefit claims - new claims 81 80.0 84.06 A Downturned

Speed of processing Housing Benefit claims - change of 

circumstances
32.9 32.0 23.4 G Improved

Priority:   Poverty

T
udalen 147



16

Achievement Measures
2015/16 

Baseline Data

2016/17 

Target
2016/17 Outturn

Performance 

RAG

Performance 

Trend

Amount of monthly discretionary housing payment (DHP) paid 

to support people to adjust to Welfare Reform changes
£290,694 N/A £434,668

Not 

Applicable
Improved

Number of residents supported to better manage their 

financial commitments
168 N/A 21

Not 

Applicable
Downturned

(European Social Fund TRAC) Number of people entering 

employment

(European Social Fund Adtrac) Number of people entering 

employment

(European Social Fund Opus) Number of people entering 

employment

The following indicators are provided for information and monitoring only and are not suitable for setting targets against

Measures discontinued from April 2016

T
udalen 148



17

Achievement Measures
2015/16 

Baseline Data

2016/17 

Target
2016/17 Outturn

Performance 

RAG

Performance 

Trend

(European Social Fund Communities 4 Work) Number of 

people entering employment

N/A - new 

measure

N/A - baseline 

to be 

established

4
Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

(Families First) Number of people gaining a qualification or 

work relevant certification

(Families First) Number of people completing a work 

experience placement or volunteering opportunity

(Flying Start) Number of people entering employment

(Flying Start) Number of people gaining a qualification or work 

relevant certification

(Flying Start) Number of people completing a work experience 

placement or volunteering opportunity

(Communities First) Number of people entering employment
N/A - new 

measure

N/A - baseline 

to be 

established

99
Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

(Communities First) Number of people gaining a qualification 

or work relevant certification

N/A - new 

measure

N/A - baseline 

to be 

established

247
Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

(Communities First) Number of people completing a work 

experience placement or volunteering opportunity

N/A - new 

measure

N/A - baseline 

to be 

established

59
Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

(Supporting People) Number of people recording a positive 

outcome under the outcome measure 'Engaging in education 

and learning'.

N/A - new 

measure
616.0 1034 G

Not 

Applicable

Measures discontinued from April 2016

T
udalen 149



18

(Supporting People) Number of people recording a positive 

outcome under the outcome measure 'Engaging in 

employment / volunteering opportunities'.

N/A - new 

measure

N/A - baseline 

to be 

established

1049
Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Number of private homes receiving energy efficiency 

measures
1,356 800 877 G Downturned

Overall annual fuel bill reduction for residents £296,030 £150,000 £288,000 G Downturned

T
udalen 150



19

Achievement Measures
2015/16 

Baseline Data

2016/17 

Target
2016/17 Outturn

Performance 

RAG

Performance 

Trend

THS/012 - The percentage of principal (A) roads, non-

principal (B) roads and non principal (C) roads that are in 

overall poor condition*

4% 7% 3.35% G Improved

Percentage of inspections undertaken to ensure 

reinstatements meet required standards so as to improve the 

standard of works undertaken on Flintshire's network

N/A - new 

measure
12.5% 15.0% G

Not 

Applicable

Road safety initiatives to reduce the risk of collisions of high 

risk groups: older drivers
24 27 34 G Improved

Road safety initiatives to reduce the risk of collisions of high 

risk groups: Newly qualified young drivers
43 44 29 R Downturned

Road safety initatives to reduce the risk of collisions of high 

risk groups: Motorcyclists
63 63 65 G Improved

Priority: Environment

T
udalen 151



20

Achievement Measures
2015/16 

Baseline Data

2016/17 

Target
2016/17 Outturn

Performance 

RAG

Performance 

Trend

Number of community transport hubs developed within 

available funding

N/A - new 

measure

N/A - baseline 

to be 

established

1
Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

EEFLM1 - Carbon Reduction Commitment - Reduce our 

carbon footprint through delivery of our Carbon Reduction 

Strategy (non domestic portfolio)

1.1% 5% 3.69% A Improved

Achievement Measures
2015/16 

Baseline Data

2016/17 

Target
2016/17 Outturn

Performance 

RAG

Performance 

Trend

The number of new social enterprises developed 5 3 11 G Improved

The number of social enterprises supported to thrive and 

prosper
12 7 24 G Improved

Number of volunteers in volunteering placements 541

N/A - baseline 

to be 

established

548
Not 

Applicable
Improved

Percentage of contracts awarded in the financial year over 

£1m with community benefit clauses included in contract 

documents

N/A - new 

measure

N/A - baseline 

to be 

established

100%
Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Percentage of contracts awarded in the financial year under 

£1m with community benefit clauses included in contract 

documents

N/A - new 

measure

N/A - baseline 

to be 

established

100%
Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Priority: Modern and Efficient Council

T
udalen 152



21

Achievement Measures
2015/16 

Baseline Data

2016/17 

Target
2016/17 Outturn

Performance 

RAG

Performance 

Trend

The level of efficiencies alternative delivery models (ADMs) 

have supported

N/A - new 

measure

N/A - baseline 

to be 

established

No Data
Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

The number of services sustained through delivery via 

alternative models

N/A - new 

measure

N/A - baseline 

to be 

established

No Data
Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

The number of public assets transferred to the community
N/A - new 

measure
15 10 A

Not 

Applicable

The amount of efficiency targets achieved £10.6m £10.5m £9.5m A Downturned

Number of participants in Flintshire Academy Training and 

Development Programme

N/A - new 

measure

N/A - baseline 

to be 

established

868
Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Increase percentage of staff that receive an annual appraisal
N/A - new 

measure

N/A - baseline 

to be 

established

65 A
Not 

Applicable

Percentage of employee turnover (excluding early retirement 

and voluntary redundancy) 
0.00% 8% 12.36% R

Not 

Applicable

CHR/002 – The number of working days/shifts per full time 

equivalent (FTE) local authority employee lost due to sickness 

absence.

10.50 10.00 9.87 G Improved

T
udalen 153



22

Achievement Measures
2015/16 

Baseline Data

2016/17 

Target
2016/17 Outturn

Performance 

RAG

Performance 

Trend

Reduction in square meters of occupied office 

accommodation
22.0% 25% 34% G Improved

Reduction in the running costs of corporate accommodation 19.9% 25% 31% G Improved

Agile working - desk provision as a percentage of staff 

(County Hall)
98% 89% 87% G Improved

IPME4M3 - Achievement of efficiency savings achieved due 

to the use of National, Regional and Sectoral procurement 

frameworks

£1,822,470 £400,000 £640,596 G Downturned

Efficiencies achieved through the use of end to end electronic 

purchasing

Increase the number of transactional services online and via 

the Flintshire app

N/A - new 

measure
N/A 50853

Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Increase the take up of online services
N/A - new 

measure
N/A 1317256

Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Measure discontinued from April 2016

T
udalen 154



Appendix C - NSI PAM Data Table

A R Improved Downturned Maintained

Indicator

Annual 

Outturn 

2015/16

Annual Target 

2016/17

Year End 

Outturn 

2016/17

RAG 
Performance 

Trend

LCL/001(b): The number of visits to Public Libraries during the year, 

per 1,000 population - Annual PI

4,535 Visits per 

1,000
5,000

3935 per 

1,000
R Downturned 

LCS/002(b): The number of visits to local authority sport and leisure 

centres during the year per 1,000 population where the visitor will  be 

participating in physical activity 

9501 Visits per 

1,000
9,739 8,740 R Downturned 

PSR/002: The average number of calendar days taken to deliver a 

Disabled Facilities Grant
307.74 days 247 248 G Improved

PSR/004: The percentage of private sector dwellings that had been 

vacant for more than 6 months at 1st April that were returned to 

occupation during the year through direct action by the local authority 

- Annual PI

8.8% 8.76% 9.05% G Improved

PLA/006(b): The number of additional affordable housing units 

provided during the year.
20.7% N/A 24.65% N/A Improved

PPN/009: The percentage of food establishments which are 'broadly 

compliant' with Food Hygiene standards
96.5% 93% 96.55% G Maintained

STS/005(b): The percentage of highways inspected of a high or 

acceptable standard of cleanliness - Annual PI
93.2% 95% 94.40% A Improved

STS/006: The percentage of reported fly tipping incidents cleared 

within 5 working days
97.8% 95% 96.50% G Improved

WMT/004(b): The percentage of municipal Waste collected by local 

authorities sent to landfill
7.38% 20% 0.52% G Improved

WMT/009(b): The percentage of municipal waste collected by local 

authorities and prepared for resuse and/or recycling
58.5% 59% 68.20% G Improved

THS/007: The percentage of adults aged 60+ who hold a 

concessionary bus pass
78.8% 80% 81.60% G Improved

Streetscene & Transportation

Organisational Change

Social Services

Planning & Environment

T
udalen 155



Appendix C - NSI PAM Data Table

Indicator

Annual 

Outturn 

2015/16

Annual Target 

2016/17

Year End 

Outturn 

2016/17

RAG 
Performance 

Trend

THS/012: The percentage of principal (A) roads, non-principal (B) 

roads and non-principal (C) roads that are in overall poor condition - 

Annual PI

4.02% 7% 3.40% G Improved

THS/012a: The percentage of principal (A) roads that are in overall 

poor condition - Annual PI

THS/012b: The percentage of non-principal (B) roads that are in 

overall poor condition - Annual PI

THS/012c: The percentage of non-principal (C) roads that are in 

overall poor condition - Annual PI

CHR/002: The number of working days / shifts per full-time 

equivalent (FTE) local authority employee lost due to sickness 

absence

10.5 days / 

shifts
10 9.87 G Improved

CAM/037: The percentage change in the average Display Energy 

Certificate (DEC) score within local authority public buildings over 

1,000 sq metres

3.00% 2.33% 2.70% A Improved

EDU/002(i): The percentage of all pupils (including those in local 

authority care), in any local authority maintained school, aged 15 as 

at the preceding 31 August that leave compulsory education, training 

or work based learning without an approved external qualification - 

Annual PI

0.0% N/A 0% N/A Maintained

EDU/002(ii): The percentage of pupils in local authority care in any 

local authority maintained school, aged 15 as at the preceding 31 

August that leave compulsory education, training or work based 

learning without an approved external qualification - Annual PI

0.0% N/A 0% N/A Maintained

EDU/003: The percentage of pupils assessed at the end of Key 

Stage 2, in schools maintained by the local authority, achieving the 

Core Subject Indicator, as determined by Teacher Assessment - 

Annual PI

87.91% 87% 90.10% G Improved

Education & Youth

4% 7% G Improved

People & Resources

3.35%

T
udalen 156



Appendix C - NSI PAM Data Table

Indicator

Annual 

Outturn 

2015/16

Annual Target 

2016/17

Year End 

Outturn 

2016/17

RAG 
Performance 

Trend

EDU/004: The percentage of pupils assessed at the end of Key 

Stage 3, in schools maintained by the local authority, achieving the 

Core Subject Indicator, as determined by Teacher  - ssessment - 

Annual PI

87.11% 86.5% 88.40% G Improved

EDU/006(ii): The percentage of pupils assessed, in schools 

maintained by the local authority, receiving a Teacher Assessment in 

Welsh (first language) at the end of Key Stage 3 - Annual PI

5.5% N/A 3.90% N/A Downturned 

EDU/011: The average point score for pupils aged 15 at the 

preceding 31 Aug, in schools maintained by the local authority - 

Annual PI

541.8 Points 558.6 Points 521.4 Points A Downturned 

EDU/015(a): The percentage of final statements of special education 

need issued within 26 weeks including exceptions - Annual PI
89.7% 90% 96.30% G Improved

EDU/015(b): The percentage of final statements of special education 

need issued within 26 weeks excluding exceptions - Annual PI
98.6% 100% 100% G Improved

Indicator

Annual 

Outturn 

2015/16

Annual Target 

2016/17

Year End 

Outturn 

2016/17

RAG 
Performance 

Trend

EDU/016(a): The percentage of pupil attendance in primary schools - 

Annual PI
94.7% 94.9% 94.70% G Maintained

EDU/016(b): The percentage of pupil attendance in secondary 

schools - Annual PI
94.2% 94.3% 94.30% G Improved

EDU/017: The percentage of pupils aged 15 at the preceding 31st 

August, in schools maintained by the local authority who achieved the 

Level 2 threshold including a GCSE grade A*-C in English or Welsh 

first language and mathematics - Annual PI

60.61% 69.90% 60.90% A Improved

T
udalen 157



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn bw
rpasol



1 
 

Appendix D - Glossary 

 

Term Definition 

21st Century 
Schools 

A Wales Government programme of funding to improve school 
buildings and environments 

Adaptations 
Changes to a person’s home to enable her/him to live as 
independently as possible 

Affordable Housing Covers a range of tenure options for renting and purpose 

Agile Working 
Working across locations in a flexible way with the use of 
technology 

Capital Money spent on assets (e.g. buildings, equipment and land) 

Carbon footprint 
The amount of Carbon Dioxide that enters the atmosphere 
through the activities of the Authority 

CCTV To prevent and respond to crime and disorder 

Coastal 
Communities Fund 

Money from the Big Lottery Fund provided to encourage the 
economic development of UK coastal communities by giving 
funding to create sustainable economic growth and jobs 

Communities First 
programme 

A Welsh Government Programme to tackle poverty in the most 
disadvantaged areas in Wales 

Community Asset 
Transfers 

Transfers of land or buildings into the ownership or management 
of a Voluntary / Community Sector organisation or statutory body 

Community benefit 
clauses 

Benefits to local communities from major procurements e.g. 
training and employment opportunities, community facilities. This 
incorporates social value by taking wider impacts and benefits 
into account other than price 

Deeside Enterprise 
Zone 

Deeside Enterprise Zone is one of the first to be created in 
Wales and covers over 2000 hectares that will provide space for 
new and existing businesses to grow 

Disabled Facility 
Grant A grant available for larger adaptations to a person’s home 

Efficiency Targets 
Financial savings we aim to achieve within a given period of time 
through specific actions 

Enterprise Zones 
A Welsh Government initiative to stimulate growth and support 
business in designated areas 

Equal pay 

Equality legislation prohibits less favourable treatment between 
men and women in terms of pay and conditions of employment. 
Where there has been a potential historical pay gap between 
men and women, Equal Pay claims may be brought 

Tudalen 159



2 
 

Term Definition 

Flintshire Business 
Entrepreneurship 
Network 

Employers working together to support Entrepreneurship 
Programmes 

Homelessness 
Prevention 

Take reasonable steps to prevent homelessness for anyone at 
risk of homelessness within 56 days 

Infrastructure 
Facilities, systems, sites and networks that are necessary for the 
County to function 

Intermediate Care 
Fund (ICF) 

Funding provided by Welsh Government to avoid unnecessary 
hospital admissions, inappropriate admission to residential care, 
and delayed discharges from hospital 

Local Development 
Plan 

The Council’s land use planning document that will guide 
development until 2030 

Looked After 
Child/ren 

A child aged 0-18 who is under the care of the Local Authority 

Medium-term 
Financial Strategy 

The Council’s plan forecasts funding levels and resource 
requirements over the medium term, identifies the gap between 
the two with specific actions identified to balance the budget and 
manage resources 

Mersey Dee 
Alliance (MDA) 

a partnership that supports strategic economic activity spanning 
the North Wales/North West England border 

North East Wales 
Ambassadors 
programme  

a partnership between the Local Authority and tourism 
businesses aimed at maintaining high standards for visitors 

Pre-deposit Plan 
The name for the draft of the Local Development Plan (LDP) 
before it is formally submitted to Wales Government 

Procurement 
collaborations 

Ways of procuring goods and services within agreed terms and 
conditions 

Public 
Accountability 
Measures (PAMs) 

Information collected from every Local Authority in Wales to 
measure and compare performance 

Renewable energy 
schemes 

Schemes designed to use energy from a source that is naturally 
replenished e.g. sunlight 

Social business 
model 

The way in which we run the Council as an accountable and 
ethical organisation operating in a business world. This 
incorporates social value; the importance of the overall quality of 
the outcomes 

Social Enterprises 
Businesses with primarily social objectives whose surpluses are 
mainly reinvested for that purpose in the business or community 

Social Housing 
Grant (SHG) 

A grant given by Welsh Government to provide new affordable 
homes or low cost home ownership 

Tudalen 160



3 
 

Term Definition 

Strategic Housing 
Regeneration 
Programme 
(SHARP) 

A programme of building new affordable homes across Flintshire 

Substance Misuse 
The continued use of drugs or alcohol despite negative 
consequences to the individual using, their friends, family and 
the community 

TRAC project 
An EU funded project supporting young people aged 11-24 who 
are disengaging with education and at risk of not being in 
education, employment or training 

Universal Credit 
New benefit which replaces the current means tested benefit for 
working age claimants. 

Vibrant and Viable 
Places 

Welsh Government’s regeneration framework launched in March 
2013 with the vision that everyone in Wales should live in well-
connected, vibrant, viable and sustainable communities with a 
strong local economy and good quality of life 

Wales Housing 
Quality Standard 

Welsh Government’s physical quality standard for modern social 
housing 

Welfare reform 
A range of measures being introduced by Central Government to 
reform the Welfare Benefits system 

Young Entrepreneur 
Programme 

An opportunity for young people to work with mentors on their 
business ideas 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 161



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

Date of Meeting Tuesday, 24th October 2017

Report Subject Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales (IRPW) Draft 
Annual Report for 2018/19

Report Author Chief Officer (Governance)

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Each year, the Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales (IRPW) determines the 
rates of payment which are to be made to elected and co-opted members of Welsh 
Local Authorities for the following year.  The IRPW is required to send the draft 
Annual Report to County Councils which this year it did on the 4th October, 
requesting comments to be made by no later than the 29th November 2017.

The IRPW is required to take into account the representations which it receives on 
the draft before issuing its final version of the report in February.  For 2018/19 the 
following changes are proposed:

 Basic salary – “to avoid further erosion in relation to average earning the 
Panel has decided to increase the basic salary to £13,600 (an increase of 
1.49%).  This is a £200 increase in the basic salary for Councillors from 
£13,400.

 Senior salaries – no increase is proposed for senior salaries but the 
postholders will receive the increase in the basic salary being paid to all 
Councillors.  The IRPW have removed the “two tier” approach for payment of 
Cabinet Members and Committee Chairs as no local authorities had adopted 
the approach (Flintshire had opposed this change when consulted 
previously).

Council is also invited to consider whether an application should be made to the 
Independent Remuneration Panel for a specific or additional senior salary which 
does not fall within the current remuneration framework to recognise the role of the 
Chair of the Clwyd Pension Fund Committee, which is currently unpaid. 

Tudalen 163

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 11



RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That Council considers and comments on the Determinations made by the 
Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales in their draft Annual Report for 
2018/19.

2 That Council endorses the application to the Independent Remuneration 
Panel for a specific, additional senior salary which does not fall within the 
current remuneration framework to recognise the currently unpaid role of 
the Chair of the Clwyd Pension Fund Committee. 

3 That the Chief Officer (Governance) be authorised to make a response on 
behalf of the Council, reflecting the decision made at the meeting, to the 
Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00 DETAILING THE DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT 
REMUNERATION PANEL FOR WALES 2018/19

1.01 Members will be aware that the IRPW produces a report on an annual basis, 
which sets out what it has decided (these are called Determinations) should 
be the rates of payment to Members and co-optees of Local Authorities in 
Wales.

1.02 For 2018 the IRPW has made 52 Determinations, 19 of which are directly 
relevant to Flintshire County Council and 9 which relate to Town & 
Community Councils (the other Determinations relate to Fire & Rescue and 
National Park Authorities).  The Panel’s Determinations for 2018 are located 
in Annex 1 on page 55 of the attached IRPW report.  

1.03 There is a slight change proposed for the basic salary of 1.43% which 
equates to £200 on each basic salary which will increase from £13,400 to 
£13,600 (Determination 1)

1.04 No increase is proposed for senior salary holders, but the postholders will 
receive the £200 increase being paid to all Councillors (Determination 2). 
  

1.05 The rates for civic salaries (which are paid to the Chair and Vice Chair of 
Council) are increased by £200, to reflect the increase payable to all 
Councillors (Determination 3).   

NB: Flintshire must determine annually which level of payment to make to 
the Chair and Vice Chair.  It has previously decided to pay level 2. 

1.06 The payment rate for Co-opted Members remains unchanged at the level to 
which they were set in 2010 (Determination 38).

Tudalen 164



1.07 The entitlement for all eligible elected Members of principal councils to join 
the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) is reaffirmed 
(Determination 17).

1.08 For several years, the number of senior salaries (this excludes the civic 
salaries) which a Group B Council such as Flintshire has been able to pay 
has been fixed at 18.  This provides payment to 8 Cabinet Members 
(including the Leader and Deputy), 6 Overview & Scrutiny Chairs, the Chairs 
of Audit, Planning and Licensing and the leader of the largest opposition 
group.  

1.09 Since the Council decided that those posts identified above should be the 
18 salaried posts for Flintshire, we have been required to set up a new 
committee, the Clwyd Pension Fund Committee.  The work of that 
Committee is growing in scale and importance, particularly following the 
pooling arrangements where the Chair of the Clwyd Pension Fund will sit on 
a joint committee with the Chairs of the other 7 Pension Funds across 
Wales. On that basis it is considered reasonable to apply to the IRPW for a 
specific, additional salary to be paid to the Chair of the Clwyd Pension Fund 
Committee. Determination 8 provides for such an application to be made. 
This has been mentioned already to IRPW representatives at meetings held 
last month.

1.10 During a recent visit to Flintshire the IRPW representatives raised the fact 
that Flintshire does not pay for councillors’ telephone and internet 
connections (which is as a result of the Council previously rejecting a 
proposal to cover these costs). A report will be taken to the Constitution and 
Democratic Services Committee setting out the IRPW’s comments and the 
options.

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 The budget provision required for payment for Members Allowances in 
2018/19 will need to be increased by £200 per Councillor, resulting in an 
increase in £14,000 in the Members Allowance Budget.  If Council supports 
a case being made for an additional payment for the Clwyd Pension Fund 
Committee Chair this will require an additional £8,700.  
 

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 This report is in response to external consultation.  Group Leaders and their 
deputies have been made aware of the draft IRPW report in advance.

4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 No risk management issues have been identified during the preparation of 
this report.

Tudalen 165



5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 Appendix 1 - Covering letter from the IRPW.
Appendix 2 - IRPW draft report for 2018/19. 

6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 The background document to this report is the draft IRPW report which is 
attached as an appendix.

Contact Officer: Robert Robins,  Democratic Services Manager
Telephone: 01352 702320
E-mail: Robert.robins@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 IRPW – Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales is the independent 
body established by the Welsh Government to determine the level of Local 
Authority payments to Members.

Determinations -  the decisions which the IRPW makes

Basic Salary – the salary or allowance which the IRPW determines should 
be paid to each Member of the Council which for 2017/18 is £13,400.  For 
2018/19, £13,600 is proposed.

Senior Salary -  a senior salary is payable to a Councillor with special 
responsibility such as the Leader, Deputy Leader, Cabinet Members, 
Committee Chairs and the leader of the largest opposition group (a Group 
B Council such as Flintshire may pay up to 18 senior salaries).

Civic Salaries -  these are the payments made to the Chair and Vice Chair 
of Council

Tudalen 166

mailto:Robert.robins@flintshire.gov.uk


 

Leaders and Chief Executives of County and County Borough Councils  

Chairs and Chief Executives of National Park Authorities  

Chairs and Clerks of Fire and Rescue Authorities  

Chair and Chief Executive of One Voice Wales  

Leader and Chief Executive of Welsh Local Government Association  

Head of Democratic/Members Services of County and County  

Borough Councils, National Park Authorities and Fire and Rescue Authorities  

Community & Town Councils 

 

4 October 2017 

Dear Colleague 

Independent Remuneration for Wales – Annual Report 2018/19 

 

The Panel’s draft Annual Report for the commencing April 2018 is attached. We 

would appreciate and welcome comments during the consultation period which ends 

on 29 November 2017. 

The council elections in May has resulted in many new members and 

administrations, so we have taken the opportunity to visit each principal council over 

the last few months. These visits have been informative and raised issues that we 

will be considering in the future. 

 We appreciate the welcome and the hospitality we have received from the councils 

and were very grateful for the extent of the engagement from many members we 

were able to meet.  

The draft Report contains several proposed changes to our remuneration framework 

including a small increase in the basic salary and some significant changes in 

respect of community & town councils. 

We will consider all of the responses to this draft prior to producing the final Report 

for publication in February 2018. 

Yours sincerely 

 

John Bader, Chair 

Tudalen 167



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



February 2018

    © Crown copyright 2017       WG32784

Mae’r ddogfen yma hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg.
This document is also available in Welsh. 

DR
AF
TIndependent Remuneration 

Panel for Wales

Annual Report

Tudalen 169



1 
 

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 

FOREWORD 

 

2017 has been the year of elections to Principal Councils and Community & 

Town Councils. In line with our previous approach when new councils are 

formed the Panel has visited all 22 of the unitary authorities. This provides us 

with an opportunity to discuss issues with a cross section of members and 

senior officers. This has been a very useful exercise and helps us form the 

direction for future consideration. On behalf of my colleagues I would want to 

express our thanks to all councils for their engagement with the visits and the 

welcome and hospitality we received. 

The visits and the resulting discussions assisted in continuing to ensure that we 

have a comprehensive understanding of the development of the role of a 

councillor and the workload pressures that appear to be increasing across the 

board. 

The conclusions from our discussions have wherever possible been 

incorporated in our determinations and in particular our proposed modest 

increase in the basic salary. 

As a Panel we believe the overwhelming majority of the 1254 elected members 

of the 22 councils are committed to serving their communities and put in many 

hours that the basic remuneration could not cover. Affordability is an issue for 

both the councils and tax payers and this restricts other than modest 

additional costs to the total payments to members. What we wish to prevent is 

further erosion of the link with the average welsh earnings. 

Other changes that we are proposing for 2018 are set out in the Report. 

My personal thanks to my colleague Panel members who constantly 

demonstrate the knowledge and enthusiasm to ensure we produce reports 

that are based on key information. 

Also my appreciation of the work of our secretariat without which we could 

not function effectively. 

John Bader 

Chair 

 

Tudalen 170



2 
 

Panel Membership 

John Bader – Chair 

Gregory Owens - Vice Chair 

Stephen Mulholland 

 

Julie May 

Saz Willey 

Roger Symonds 

Detailed information about the members can be found on the website: 

http://gov.wales/irpwsub/home/?lang=en  

Tudalen 171

http://gov.wales/irpwsub/home/?lang=en


3 
 

Contents 

 

Introduction 4 

1. The Panel’s Framework: Principles of Members’ Remuneration 7 

2. Annual Report Summary Page 9 

3. Payments to Elected Members of Principal Councils: Basic, Senior and Civic 
Salaries 10 

4. Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committees (JOSC) 21 

5. Pension Provision for Elected Members of Principal Councils 23 

6. Entitlement to Family Absence 24 

7. Payments to Members of National Park Authorities 25 

8. Payments to Members of Welsh Fire and Rescue Authorities 29 

9. Payments to co-opted Members of Principal Councils, National Park Authorities 
and Fire & Rescue Authorities 33 

10. Reimbursement of Costs of Care 35 

11. Sickness Absence for Senior Salary Holders 36 

12. Reimbursement of Travel and Subsistence Costs when on Official Business 38 

13. Payments to Members of Community and Town Councils 40 

14. Compliance with Panel Requirements 45 

15. Salaries of Heads of Paid Service of Principal Councils and Fire and Rescue 
Authorities and Chief Officers of Principal Councils 46 

Annex 1: The Panel’s Determinations for 2018/19 55 

Annex 2: Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales (IRPW) Regulations: 60 

Annex 3: Schedule of member remuneration 75 

Annex 4: Publication of Remuneration – the Panel’s Requirements 77 

 

Tudalen 172



4 
 

Introduction 

This is the tenth Annual Report of the 
Independent Remuneration Panel for 
Wales (the Panel), and the seventh 
published under the requirements of 
the Local Government (Wales) 
Measure 2011(as amended).  

 
 
 

1. As with all the Panel’s Annual Reports the determinations on member 
remuneration are underpinned by the principles set out in Section 1. 

 
2. The Panel has consistently expressed its view that maintaining the 

democratic values of local governance cannot be cost-free. Members of local 
authorities (including co-opted and appointed members) are there to 
represent the interests of local people, undertake the governance of local 
communities, and secure appropriate value-for-money public services for 
local tax-payers through effective scrutiny. These are significant and 
considerable tasks for members of the relevant authorities within the Panel’s 
remit. Payments to members are made available to encourage a diversity of 
willing and able people to undertake local governance through their elected, 
appointed or co-opted roles.  

 
3. In determining the level of payments to members of local councils, the Panel 

seeks to meet the principle of ‘acceptability’ by ensuring that these are not ‘so 
great as to require a significant diversion of resources from key council 
priorities’. But Section 142(8) of the Measure is more explicit on ‘affordability’ 
when it states that “when setting an amount1 ...the Panel must take into 
account what it considers will be the likely financial impact of doing so on 
relevant authorities”. Meeting the requirement of the Measure in regard to 
affordability has been a challenge for the Panel, not least because of public 
interest in the payments made to members. The Panel acknowledges that the 
issue of affordability – in relation both to relevant authorities’ service budgets 
and to the electorate’s disposable incomes – is likely to impact on the public 
perception of any increases to members’ payments. 

 
4. As a charge on the public purse, payments to members for their time, worth 

and responsibility must be, and must be seen to be, fair to those undertaking 
the role but at the same time be affordable. The Panel’s determinations in its 
2009 Report aligned payments to the median gross earnings of all full-time 
employees resident in Wales as reported in the Annual Survey of Hourly 
Earnings (ASHE). The basic salary was set at three-fifths of the All Wales 
Median Salary and senior salaries were set at multiples of this annual median 
salary. In setting these salaries the Panel recognised that there was an 
unpaid public service contribution.  

 

                                                             
1
 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/mwa/2011/4/contents/enacted. 

Tudalen 173

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/mwa/2011/4/contents/enacted


5 
 

5. As 2017 was an election year for councils in Wales, Panel members have 
visited all 22 principal councils to provide an opportunity for members and 
officers to comment on the Remuneration Framework and to put forward 
ideas for future consideration. We are appreciative of the welcome that we 
received from every council and the useful discussions that arose during our 
visits. 

 

6. One of the observations that many members expressed was that when the 
basic salary is compared with a traditional paid employment – ‘a job’ the 
salary is too low to attract younger people and to encourage diversity.  They 
also pointed out the significant differences between remuneration and 
support available to elected members in other levels of government in Wales.  
They proposed that the level of the basic salary should therefore be raised 
significantly in recognition of the importance of the role of an elected member 
of a principal council.  However, it is recognised that elected members of 
principal councils are not employees and are not remunerated as such. 

 
7. The financial constraints on the public sector and particularly local authorities 

has meant that the link with average Welsh earnings has not been 
maintained. The Panel considers that this has undervalued the worth of 
elected members. To avoid further erosion in relation to average earning the 
Panel has decided to increase the basic annual salary to £13,600 (an 
increase of 1.49%). No increase is proposed for senior salaries but these post 
holders will receive the increase in the basic salary element. 
 

8. The Annual Report 2016 introduced two levels of salary for members of 
councils’ executives and committee chairs of principal authorities, Fire and 
Rescue Authorities (FRAs) and National Park Authorities (NPAs). This was to 
provide flexibility to enable authorities to reflect, in their schedules of 
remuneration, variations in the level of responsibility of portfolios and chairs. 
However as far as the payments to members of executives is concerned this 
flexibility has not been used other than in one case. Similarly it has not been 
taken on board in respect of chairs of committees. It was clear from the 
discussions that arose during the Panel’s visits that almost all councils took 
the view that this arrangement was contrary to the desire for the Panel to be 
prescriptive in its determinations. The Panel accepts this and has therefore 
removed the two tier arrangement for executive members and for committee 
chairs. 

 9. From the discussions during our visits to the principal councils it is clear that
 very few members are utilising the provision in the framework to reimburse 
 the costs of care. It appears that some members are still reluctant to claim all 
 that they are entitled to support in their role, because of concerns about the 
 adverse publicity this can attract (see Annex 4 for the publication options).We
 urge Democratic Services Committees to take steps to encourage and 
 facilitate greater use of this element of our framework so that members 
 concerned are not financially disadvantaged. 

10. The Panel has continued to contribute wherever possible to enhancing 
 diversity in local government in Wales through its determinations. To take this 

Tudalen 174



6 
 

 a step further the Panel has produced a leaflet for prospective candidates on
  the remuneration of members of councils. We are pleased that several 
 councils have added this leaflet to their website. 

 
11. We believe that there are still major issues to be addressed with 

 community and town councils which we will be raising with individual councils 
 and their representative organisations. However as a start to this process we
  are proposing to introduce grouping councils according to the level of income 
 or expenditure. We propose that mandatory payments be made to senior 
 members in those councils in the highest group. This is detailed in Section 13. 

 
12. The Local Government (Democracy) (Wales) Act 2013 amended the Local  

Government (Wales) Measure 2011 by inserting Section 143A. This requires
  that any principal council or fire and rescue authority that intends to change 
 the salary of its Head of Paid Service must consult the Panel unless the 
 change is in keeping with changes applied to other officers. Section 143A also
  enables the Panel to take a view on anything in the Pay Policy Statement of 
 an authority that relates to the salary of the Head of Paid Service (normally 
 the Chief Executive or Chief Fire Officer). The Local Government (Wales) Act 
 2015 extended this responsibility, on a temporary basis to Chief Officers of 
 principal authorities. The Panel's approach to its use of these powers is 
  set out in Section 15 of this Report and accords with the guidance issued to 
 the Panel by the Welsh Government. 

 
13. Since assuming the additional responsibility in respect of changes to the  

salaries of chief officers of principal councils the Panel has dealt with several 
submissions. The Panel’s decisions are attached at Section 15. 

 

 
 

Tudalen 175



7 
 

1. The Panel’s Framework: Principles of Members’ 
Remuneration  

 
Upholding trust and confidence 
 
1.1 Citizens rightly expect that all those who choose to serve in local authorities 

uphold the public trust by embracing the values and ethics implicit in such 
public service. These principles underpin the contribution that the work of the 
Panel and its Framework make towards upholding public trust and confidence. 

 
Simplicity 
 

1.2 The Framework is clear and understandable. This is essential for the Panel to 
be able to communicate its determinations effectively to all those who are 
affected by, or who have an interest in, its work. 

 
Remuneration 
 

1.3  The Framework provides for payment to members of local authorities who 
carry a responsibility for serving their communities. The level of remuneration 
should not act as a barrier to taking up or continuing in post. There should be 
no requirement that resources necessary to enable the discharge of duties are 
funded from the salary. The Framework provides additional recompense for 
those who are given greater levels of responsibility. 

 
Diversity 
 
1.4  Democracy is strengthened when the membership of local authorities 

adequately reflects the demographic and cultural make-up of the communities 
such authorities serve. The Panel will always take in to account the 
contribution its framework can make in encouraging the participation of those 
who are significantly under-represented at local authority level. 

 
Accountability 
 

1.5  Taxpayers and citizens have the right to receive value for money from public 
funds committed to the remuneration of those who are elected, appointed or 
co-opted to serve in the public interest. The Panel expects all principal 
councils to make information readily and appropriately available about the 
activities and remuneration of their members.  

 
Fairness 
 

1.6  The framework will be capable of being applied consistently to members of all 
local authorities within the Panel’s remit as a means of ensuring that levels of 
remuneration are fair, affordable and generally acceptable. 

 

Tudalen 176



8 
 

Quality 
 

1.7  The Panel recognises that the complex mix of governance, scrutiny and 
regulatory duties incumbent upon members requires them to engage with a 
process of continuous quality improvement. The Panel expects members to 
undertake such training and personal development opportunities as are 
required to properly discharge the duties for which they are remunerated. 

 
Transparency 
 

1.8 Transparency of members’ remuneration is in the public interest. Some 
members receive additional levels of remuneration by virtue of being elected 
or appointed to more than one public body. The framework serves to ensure 
that knowledge of all members’ remuneration is made easily available to the 
public. 

 

 
Remuneration of Officers  
 

1.9   The Panel applies these principles of fairness, accountability and transparency 
in all its determinations in relation to remuneration of members of all the 
authorities that fall within its remit. The same principles also apply when the 
Panel is required to make recommendations in relation to the remuneration of 
the paid officers of these authorities. 

 

 

Tudalen 177



9 
 

2. Annual Report Summary Page 

Type of Payment Type of Authority 

Principal 

Councils 

National Park 

Authorities 

Fire and 

Rescue 

Authorities 

Community and 

Town Councils 

Basic Salary page 11 page 26 page 30 N/A
2 

Senior Roles page 14 page 26 page 30 page 41 

Committee Chairs  page 14 page 26 page 30 N/A 

Opposition Groups page 14 N/A N/A N/A 

Civic Heads and Deputies page 15 N/A N/A page 44 

Presiding Members page 17 N/A N/A N/A 

Mileage page 38 page 38 page 38 page 42 

Other Travel Costs page 38 page 38 page 38 page 42 

Subsistence Costs page 39 page 39 page 39 page 42 

Costs of Care page 35 page 35 page 35 page 43 

Family Absence page 24 N/A N/A N/A 

Sickness Absence page 36 page 36 page 36 N/A 

Joint Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees 

page 21 N/A N/A N/A 

Pension page 23 N/A N/A N/A 

Co-optees page 33 page 33 page 33 N/A 

Specific or Additional 

Allowances 

page 19 page 27 page 31 N/A 

Payments to Community and 

Town Councillors 

N/A N/A N/A page 40 

Financial Loss Allowance N/A N/A N/A page 43 

Statement of Payments page 79 page 79 page 79 Page 79 

Schedule of Remuneration  Page 77 Page 77 Page 77 Page 77 

Salaries of Chief Executives and 

Chief Officers 

Page 46 N/A Page 46 N/A 

                                                             
2 Not Applicable 

Tudalen 178



10 
 

3. Payments to Elected Members of Principal Councils: 
Basic, Senior and Civic Salaries 

 
 
Basic salary for elected members of principal councils  
 
 
3.1     The Panel originally determined in its IRP Annual Report 2009 that the 

payment of the basic salary would be aligned to the median gross earnings of all full-

time employees resident in Wales as reported in the Annual Survey of Hourly 

Earnings (ASHE).  Given the pressures on public expenditure it has not been 

possible for this alignment to be maintained.  If this alignment had continued the 

basic salary would currently be significantly higher than the current prescribed 

amount, (close to £15,000 pa).  This is calculated on an assumption that the basic 

activity required of an elected member (i.e. without the additional work required for a 

senior salary) is equivalent to three days’ work. 

 
3.2 The Panel remains aware that the core activities required of an elected 

member of a principal council vary.  Duties undertaken should enable all members to 

discharge their core non-executive responsibilities in the governance of their council 

and in representing those living in their ward.   As an elected role, such posts are not 

readily treated in the same manner as an employment with precisely quantified 

hours. The work that arises in representing ward residents is particularly varied 

because it is influenced by the very diverse socio-economic conditions, 

demographics, levels of urbanisation and different ratios of residents to councillors.  

These circumstances can vary significantly within individual authorities as well as in 

comparisons of local authorities throughout Wales.  Elected positions carry an 

expectation of a level of personal commitment to community that goes beyond 

defined, remunerated hours.   Elected members commonly report time spent that is 

well in excess of the notional three days (extra time worked and previously defined 

by the Panel as a ‘public service discount’).. 

3.3     In 2017 Panel members continued the practice of visiting all Welsh principal 

councils to meet with elected members to inform and update understanding of their 

activities.  The WLGA Exit Survey of members who stood down in 2017 has also 

been considered. The general view from members and officers is that the workload 

has increased and most claimed that it was far in excess of 3 days.  In ongoing 

dialogue with members, the Panel has particularly wished to learn of any impact on 

basic councillor duties arising from public ‘austerity’ programmes of recent years and 

also any changes in expectations from elected members arising from increased 

electronic communications and social media.   

3.4     When making financial determinations for this Annual Report, the Panel has 

considered the progression of a variety of benchmark figures for the period from 

2010 to 2017.  As well as the ASHE median gross earnings figures for Wales, the 

Panel also considered the Retail Price Index, the Consumer Price Index, NJC Pay 

Tudalen 179



11 
 

Scales and Living Wage figures.  It is noted that these figures show clear increases 

in the cost of living and earnings during this period.  It is obvious that the gap 

between the level of basic remuneration for elected members of principal councils 

and relevant indicators of rises in income and costs of living indicators has continued 

to grow.  The Panel believes this merits action to narrow the gap and limit the rate of 

erosion.  Any adjustments must be in keeping with the Panel’s principle that its 

determinations should be publicly affordable and acceptable.  

3.5    Although public sector funding continues to be constrained, the Panel therefore 

considers that an increase in the basic salary is justified. It has determined there 

shall be an increase of £200 p.a. (which equates to 1.49%) effective from April 2018 

to the basic salary for members of principal councils. This will help to limit further 

erosion of relative levels of remuneration in the basic salary paid in recognition of the 

basic duties expected of all elected members.  

 

Senior salaries for elected members of principal councils 

 
3.6     The limit on the number of senior salaries payable (‘the cap’) will remain in 

place. In 2018/19 the maximum number of senior salaries payable within each 

council will not be altered (other than for the Isle of Anglesey Council. See note ii) 

and will be as set out in Table 1.  The rate payable for senior salaries shall not be 

altered in 2018/19 except to reflect the increase in the basic salary.   

 

  

Determination 1: Basic salary in 2018/19 for elected members of principal 
councils shall be £13,600. 

 
Notes to Determination 1: 
 

i. The responsibility element of senior salaries is not being increased but 
senior salary holders will receive the uplift to the basic salary. 
 

ii. The Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Local Government has agreed in 
respect of the Isle of Anglesey Council to increase the number of posts that 
can be paid a senior salary beyond the fifty percent maximum contained in 
the Measure subject to a determination by the Panel. The Panel has issued 
a Supplementary Report to give effect to this increase. 

 
 

 
 
 
  

Tudalen 180



12 
 

Table 1: Maximum numbers of council membership eligible for payment of a senior 
salary  
 

Council Number of councillors Number of senior salaries  

Group A (populations over 200,000) 

Cardiff 
Rhondda Cynon Taf 
Swansea 

75 
75 
72 

19  
19 
19 

Group B (populations of 100,000 to 200,000) 

Bridgend 
Caerphilly 
Carmarthenshire 
Conwy 
Flintshire 
Gwynedd 
Neath Port Talbot 
Newport 
Pembrokeshire 
Powys 
Vale of Glamorgan 
Wrexham 

54 
73 
74 
59 
70 
75 
64 
50 
60 
73 
47 
52 

18 
18 
18 
18 
18 
18 
18 
18 
18 
18 
18 
18 

Group C (populations of up to100,000) 

Blaenau Gwent 
Ceredigion 
Denbighshire 
Isle of Anglesey 
Merthyr Tydfil 
Monmouthshire 
Torfaen 

42 
42 
47 
30 
33 
43 
44 

17 
17 
17 
16  
16 
17 
17 

 
 
Payments to members of the Executive, Chairs of committees and the Leader 
of the Opposition 
 

3.7 The Panel has not changed the previous decisions in respect of the senior 
salaries paid to these post holders.  

 
      (i)  The Executive: 
 

The visits to all principal councils by the Panel in 2009 produced the general 
conclusion that Executive members should be considered as working the 
equivalent of full time (up to 40 hours per week) but not necessarily nine to five. 
The recent visits and discussions with members and officers did not change this 
conclusion, in fact many executive members indicated that their workload has 
increased   There is still a variety of arrangements in both the structure and the 
operation of cabinets  dependent on the specific organisational requirements of 
each authority. 

Tudalen 181



13 
 

   
Many councils operate with a cabinet of 10, the statutory maximum, others 
choose to have smaller cabinets and therefore the range of individual portfolios 
is much greater. We have previously concluded that this should be able to be 
reflected in the remuneration framework. But it is not the role of the Panel to 
determine the structure of cabinets of local authorities. The Panel’s previous 
determinations contained flexibility for each council to decide the appropriate 
range of portfolios to meet local needs, and adjust payments within the 
Executive to reflect responsibility. As a result of the strong views expressed 
during the visits that the Panel should be prescriptive in respect of the salaries of 
executive members this provision has been amended.  Consequently there will 
be one salary level within each population group as set out in Table 2 below:  
 

 
     (ii) Chairs of Committees 
 

The Panel has recognised the overwhelming support for its determinations to be 
prescriptive and therefore has removed the two tier arrangement for chairs of 
committees although we continue to take the view that the responsibility and 
function of chairing a committee is not generally influenced by population of the 
authority.  
 
Where chairs of committees are paid, the remuneration is: £22.300 
 
  

 
  

Tudalen 182



14 
 

The Senior Salary Bands 
  

Determination 2: The Panel has determined that senior salary levels in 
2018/19 for members of principal councils shall be as set out in table 2. 

 
 
Table 2: Basic salary and senior salaries payable to members of principal councils 
 

Basic salary (payable to all elected members) £13,600 

 
Group A 
(Cardiff, 
Rhondda  
Cynon Taf, 
Swansea) 

Group B 
(Bridgend, 
Caerphilly, 
Carmarthenshire, 
Conwy, Flintshire, 
Gwynedd, Newport, 
Neath Port Talbot, 
Pembrokeshire, 
Powys, 
Vale of Glamorgan, 
Wrexham) 

Group C 
(Blaenau Gwent, 
Ceredigion, 
Denbighshire, 
Merthyr Tydfil, 
Monmouthshire, 
Torfaen, Isle of 
Anglesey) 

Senior salaries (inclusive of basic salary) 

Band 1 
Leader 
Deputy leader 

 
£53,300 
£37,300 

 
£48,300 
£33,800 

 
£43,300 
£30,300 

Band 2 

Executive members  

 

 

£32,300 

 

 

£29,300 

 

 

£26,300 

 

Band 3 

Committee chairs (if remunerated):                          £22,300                                                                

Band 4 
Leader of largest opposition group3 £22,300 

Band 5 
Leader of other political groups £ 17,300 

 
Table 2 notes: 

 
a. The Panel considers that the leadership and executive roles (Band 1 and 2 

salaries respectively) carry the greatest individual accountability and that ‘size 
of population’ remains a major factor in influencing levels of responsibility and 
the use of the three population groups (A, B and C) has therefore been 

                                                             
3
 Leader of largest opposition group. See IRPW Regulations, Annex 2, Part 1(2) for a definition of 

“largest opposition group” and “other political group”. 

Tudalen 183



15 
 

retained. For information: Group A Population 200,000 and above; Group B 
Population 100,001 to 199,999; Group C Population up to 100,000. 
 

b. No increase is proposed for senior salaries but post holders will receive the 
uplift in the basic salary paid to all councillors. 

 
c. Committee chairs will be paid at Band 3, although an individual authority may 

determine not to pay particular chairs. 
 

d. The stipulation that an opposition group leader or any other group leader must 
represent at least 10% of the council membership before qualifying for a 
senior salary remains unchanged.  

 
e. The Panel has determined that a council must make a senior salary available 

to the leader of the largest opposition group.  
 

f. The Panel has determined that, if remunerated, a Band 5 senior salary must 
be paid to leaders of other political groups.  

 
See IRPW Regulations, Annex 2, Part 1(2) for a definition of “largest opposition 
group” and “other political group”. 

 

 
Payments to Civic Heads and Deputies (Civic Salaries) 
 
3.8 The Panel maintains the view that it is appropriate for authorities to set 

remuneration levels which reflect activity and responsibility of civic heads and 
deputies rather than the local population. The Panel is aware but surprised that 
many councils have set the salaries for their civic heads and deputies to accord 
with the population groups rather than necessarily reflecting the specific 
responsibilities attached to the roles. For the removal of doubt, it should be 
noted that the three established groups of principal councils calculated by 
population are not required to be applied in relation to payments to civic heads 
and deputies.  

 
3.9   The Panel has set three possible levels of civic salary - higher, mid and lower.  

Each authority must decide which level (if any) is to be paid for each of these 
roles according to local factors. For example, the civic head of a small council 
may be paid at the highest rate, whilst the civic head of a large council may be 
paid at the lowest rate, rates of payment to deputy civic heads may be similarly 
varied. This also allows for civic heads and their deputies in the same authority 
to be paid at different levels.  
 

3.10   A council may decide not to apply any civic salary to the posts of civic head 
and/or deputy civic head. 

 
 
 

Determination 3: The Panel has determined that (where paid) civic salaries 
at the following levels are payable (Table 3) and will be applied by principal 

Tudalen 184



16 
 

councils as each considers appropriate, taking account of the anticipated 
workloads and responsibilities. 

 

Table 3: Civic salaries (where paid) shall be payable as follows to members of 

principal councils 

Remuneration of civic heads and deputy civic heads (inclusive of basic 
salaries) 

Responsibility Level Civic heads  Deputy civic heads 

Level 1 £24,300 £18,300 

Level 2 £21,800 £16,300 

Level 3 £19,300 £14,300 

 
Table 3 notes: 
 

a. The posts of civic head and deputy civic head are not included in the cap (with 
the exception of Isle of Anglesey and Merthyr Tydfil Councils).  

 
The Panel’s requirement that members should not have to pay for the cost of 
the support (see determination 7) that is needed to carry out their duties 
applies also in respect of civic heads. The Panel recognises the range of 
provision made for civic heads in respect of transport, secretarial support, 
charitable giving and clothing.  
 

3.11. Civic roles are senior posts within councils which are distinct from political or 
executive leadership. In addition to chairing major meetings the civic head is 
the authority’s ‘first citizen’ and ‘ambassador’, representing the council to a 
wide variety of institutions and organisations, and this requires the post holder 
to exemplify and promote good citizenship. 

 
3.12.   In many instances civic heads receive secretarial support and are provided 

with transport for official duties and can access a separate hospitality budget 
which is managed and controlled by council officers. 

 
3.13.   The level of support given, the personal financial outlay and the level of 

activity during the year of office varies considerably between authorities and 
the size of authority does not necessarily relate to the commitment required, 
or given by, civic heads.  

 
3.14    All principal councils have a number of community councils within their areas 

and many also include town councils. Where a community council has a 
particularly active civic head this may have some impact on the workload of 
the principal council’s civic head. 

 
3.15    The Local Government (Democracy) (Wales) Act 2013 allows councils to 

appoint a presiding member whose role it will be to chair meetings of the 

Tudalen 185



17 
 

whole council. Where appointed, there would be a consequential reduction in 
the responsibilities of the respective civic head. 

 
 
Payments to Presiding Members 
 

Determination 4: The Panel has determined that, where appointed and if 
remunerated, a presiding member must be paid a Band 3 senior salary. This 
post will count towards the cap. 

 

Determination 5: The Panel has determined that the post of deputy 
presiding member will not be remunerated. 

 
 
Key factors underpinning the Panel’s determinations: 

 
3.16 The basic salary, paid to all elected members, is remuneration for the 

responsibility of community representation and participation in the scrutiny, 
regulatory and related functions of local governance for the time equivalent of 
three days a week. Any time commitment beyond three days is an unpaid 
public service contribution. 

 
3.17 The prescribed salary and expenses must be paid in full to each member 

unless an individual has independently and voluntarily opted in writing to the 
authority’s proper officer to forego all or any element of the payment. It is 
fundamental that there is transparency in this process so that any possible 
suggestion that members are put under pressure to forego some of the 
salaries is avoided.  

 
The following must be applied: 
 

a) An elected member must not be remunerated for more than one senior post 
within his or her authority (but see section 4 on JOSCs). 

 
b) An elected member must not be paid a senior salary and a civic salary. 

 
c) All senior and civic salaries are paid inclusive of basic salary. 

 
d) If a council chooses to have more than one remunerated deputy leader, the 

difference between the senior salary for the deputy leader and other executive 
members should be divided by the number of deputy leaders and added to 
the senior salary for other executive members in order to calculate the senior 
salary payable to each deputy leader. 

 
e) Members in receipt of a Band 1 or Band 2 senior salary cannot receive a 

salary from any NPA or FRA to which they have been appointed nor any 
Community or Town Council of which they are a member. 
 

Tudalen 186



18 
 

Supporting the work of local authority elected members 

 

3.18  Following the local elections in 2017 Panel members have undertaken visits 

to all principal authorities in Wales. These visits have provided valuable opportunities 

for members and officers to discuss the variations that occur and to share and 

understand the benefits gained by properly supporting the ability of members to 

discharge their basic duties effectively.  

3.19 The Panel expects that the support provided should take account of the 

specific needs of individual members. The functions of Democratic Services 

Committees include a requirement to review the level of support provided to 

members to carry out their duties and the Panel would expect these committees to 

carry this out and bring forward proposals to the full council as to what is considered 

to be reasonable.  Any proposals should be made with due regard to Determinations 

6 and 7 below.  For example, the Panel does not consider it appropriate that elected 

members should be required to pay for any telephone use to enable them to 

discharge their council duties as a ward member, committee member or cabinet 

member.  

3.20 The Panel considers it is necessary for each elected member to have ready 

use of e-mail services, and to have electronic access to appropriate information via 

an internet connection. The Panel does not consider it appropriate that elected 

members should be required to pay for internet related services to enable them to 

discharge their council duties as a ward member, committee member or cabinet 

member.  This comprises the necessary provision for a member to be in proper 

contact with council services and to maintain contact with those they represent. 

Many councils in Wales are committed to ‘paperless working’ and without electronic 

access a member would be significantly limited in his or her ability to discharge their 

duties.  It is not appropriate for facilities required by members to be available only 

within council offices within office hours. 

3.21  The responsibility of each council through its Democratic Services Committee 

to provide support which should be based on an assessment of the needs of its 

members. When members’ additional needs or matters of disability apply, or there 

are specific training requirements indicated, each authority will need to assess any 

particular requirements of individual members.  

For co-opted members the support should be appropriate and proportionate,  

Determination 6:  The Panel has determined that each authority, through its 

Democratic Services Committee, must ensure that all its members are given 

as much support as is necessary to enable them to fulfil their duties 

effectively. All elected members should be provided with adequate 

telephone, email and internet facilities giving electronic access to 

appropriate information. 

 

Tudalen 187



19 
 

Determination 7:  The Panel has determined that such support should be 

without cost to the individual member. Deductions must not be made from 

members’ salaries by the respective authority as a contribution towards the 

cost of support which the authority has decided necessary for the 

effectiveness and or efficiency of members. 

 

Specific or additional senior salaries  
 
3.22 The Panel has allowed for greater flexibility through the provision for 

authorities to apply for specific or additional senior salaries that do not fall 
within the current remuneration framework, or which could not be 
accommodated within the maximum number of senior salaries relating to the 
authority. If the proposed addition is approved and results in the council 
exceeding its cap, this will be included in the approval (with exception of 
Merthyr Tydfil and the Isle of Anglesey Councils – see footnote 4). Some 
councils have raised the possibility of operating some senior salary posts on a 
“job share” arrangement. The Panel is supportive of this principle and the 
process is set out in Paragraph 3.24  

 
 

Determination 8: The Panel has determined to include a provision for specific 
or additional senior salaries that do not fall within the current Remuneration 
Framework. 

 
3.23 Guidance to local authorities on the application process was issued in April 

2014 and incorporated the following principles: 
 

a. The total number of senior salaries cannot exceed fifty percent4 of the 
membership. 

 

b. Applications will have to be approved by the authority as a whole (this 
cannot be delegated) prior to submission to the Panel. 

 

c. There must be clear evidence that the post/posts have additional 
responsibility demonstrated by a description of the role, function and 
duration. 

 

d. Each application will have to indicate the timing for a formal review of the 
role to be considered by the authority as a whole.  

 

 

                                                             
4
 Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 Section 142 (5) The proportion fixed by the Panel in 

accordance with subsection (4) may not exceed fifty percent unless the consent of the Welsh 
Ministers has been obtained. 

Tudalen 188



20 
 

3.24 Job Sharing Arrangements 

For members of an executive: Each “sharer” will be paid 50% of the 
appropriate salary of the Population Group.  

The statutory maximum for cabinets cannot be exceeded so both job sharers 
will count toward the maximum.  

Under the Measure, it is the number of persons in receipt of a senior salary, 
not the number of senior salary posts that count towards the cap Therefore, 
for all job share arrangements the senior salary cap will be increased subject 
to the statutory maximum of 50% of the council’s membership.  

The Panel must be informed of the details of any job share arrangements,  

 
The Panel’s determinations on Travel and Subsistence, Reimbursement of 
costs of care and Family Absence are now set out in separate sections of this 
Annual Report.  
 

Tudalen 189



21 
 

4. Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committees (JOSC)  

 
4.1.  Although to date no council has made use of these arrangements the 

Regulations are still in force. The Panel retains the arrangements for the 
remuneration of chairs of Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committees and Sub-
committees5. The payments align with those of chairs of committees of 
principal councils set out in Section 3 (Level 2). In future they may be the 
basis for governance in respect of regional working. 

 
The following determinations apply: 
 

Determination 9: The chair of a Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee is 
eligible for an additional payment of   £6,700 

 

Determination 10: In cases where the chair is already in receipt of a senior 
salary for a Band 3, 4 or 5 role the additional payment will be £3,350. 

 
Determination 11: The chair of a sub committee of a JOSC is eligible for an 
additional payment of £1,675.  

Determination 12: In cases where the chair of the sub committee is already in 
receipt of a senior salary for a Band 3, 4 or 5 role the additional payment will 
be £837.  

 

Determination 13: Payments to chairs of task and finish sub committees are 
to be pro-rated to the duration of the task. 

 

Determination 14: Payments made to a chair of a JOSC, or a chair of a sub 
committee of a JOSC, are additional to the maximum proportion of the 
authority’s membership eligible for a senior salary. It should be noted that the 
statutory limit of no more than 50% of a council’s membership receiving a 
senior salary applies (Section 142 (5) of the Measure). 

 

Determination 15: A deputy chair of a JOSC or sub committee is not eligible 
for payment. 

 

Determination 16: Co-optees to a JOSC or to a sub committee are not eligible 
for a co-opted member fee unless they are appointed by an authority under 
Section 144(5) of the Measure. 

 
 

                                                             
5 http://www.assembly.wales/Laid%20Documents/SUB-LD9311%20-
%20The%20Local%20Authorities%20(Joint%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committees)%20(Wales)%20
Regulations%202013-02052013-245903/sub-ld9311-e-English.pdf  

Tudalen 190

http://www.assembly.wales/Laid%20Documents/SUB-LD9311%20-%20The%20Local%20Authorities%20(Joint%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committees)%20(Wales)%20Regulations%202013-02052013-245903/sub-ld9311-e-English.pdf
http://www.assembly.wales/Laid%20Documents/SUB-LD9311%20-%20The%20Local%20Authorities%20(Joint%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committees)%20(Wales)%20Regulations%202013-02052013-245903/sub-ld9311-e-English.pdf
http://www.assembly.wales/Laid%20Documents/SUB-LD9311%20-%20The%20Local%20Authorities%20(Joint%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committees)%20(Wales)%20Regulations%202013-02052013-245903/sub-ld9311-e-English.pdf


22 
 

4.2.  The remuneration of chairs of JOSCs (or a sub-committee of JOSCs) is not 
prescribed and is a matter for the constituent councils to decide whether such 
a post will be paid. However, if a senior salary is paid, it must be at the level 
set out in section 4 of this report. 

 

Tudalen 191



23 
 

5. Pension Provision for Elected Members of Principal 
Councils 

 
5.1 The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 provides a power to the Panel 

to make determinations on pension entitlement for elected members of 
principal councils. 

 

Determination 17: The entitlement to join the Local Government Pension 
Scheme (LGPS) shall apply to all eligible elected members of principal 
councils. 

Tudalen 192



24 
 

6. Entitlement to Family Absence 

This section applies to elected members of principal authorities.  
 

6.1  The Regulations relating to Family Absence for elected members of principal 
councils were approved by the National Assembly for Wales in November 
20136 and cover maternity, new born, adoption and parental absences from 
official business. 

 
6.2. The Panel considered the implications for the remuneration of such members 

who are given absence under the terms of the Welsh Government 
Regulations and the Panel’s determinations are set out below. 

 
 

Determination 18: An elected member is entitled to retain a basic salary 
when taking family absence under the regulations irrespective of the 
attendance record immediately preceding the commencement of the family 
absence.  

Determination 19: When a senior salary holder is eligible for family absence, 
he/she will continue to receive the salary for the duration of the absence. 

 
Determination 20: It is a matter for the authority to decide whether or not to 
make a substitute appointment. The elected member substituting for a 
senior salary holder taking family absence will be eligible to be paid a senior 
salary, if the authority so decides.  

Determination 21: If the paid substitution results in the authority exceeding 
the maximum number of senior salaries which relates to it, as set out in the 
Panel's Annual Report, an addition to the maximum will be allowed for the 
duration of the substitution. However, this will not apply to the Isle of 
Anglesey or Merthyr Tydfil Councils if it would result in the number of senior 
salaries exceeding fifty percent of the Council membership. Specific 
approval of Welsh Ministers is required in such circumstances.  

Determination 22: When a Council agrees a paid substitution for family 
absence, the Panel must be informed, within 14 days of the date of the 
decision, of the details including the particular post and the duration of the 
substitution.  

Determination 23: The Council’s schedule of remuneration must be amended 
to reflect the implication of the family absence. 

 

 
 
 
 

                                                             
6 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2013/2901/pdfs/wsi_20132901_mi.pdf  

Tudalen 193

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2013/2901/pdfs/wsi_20132901_mi.pdf


25 
 

7. Payments to Members of National Park Authorities 

 
Structure of National Park Authorities 

 
7.1  The 3 National Parks in Wales - Brecon Beacons, Pembrokeshire Coast and 

Snowdonia were formed to protect spectacular landscapes and provide 
recreation opportunities for the public. The Environment Act 1995 led to the 
creation of the 3 corresponding National Park Authorities (NPAs). In managing 
the National Park, the Authority has 3 main purposes: 

 
 to protect the natural beauty of the Park; 
 to help visitors enjoy and understand it; and 
 to foster the wellbeing of local people. 

 
7.2 National Park Authorities have a committee of Members who are either 

elected members nominated by the Principal Councils within the National Park 
area or are members appointed by the Welsh Government through the Public 
Appointments Process. Welsh Government appointed and council nominated 
members are treated equally in relation to remuneration.  

 
7.3 The structure of the Members’ Committee at each of the 3 national parks is 

set out in Table 4. 
 
Table 4: Membership of Welsh National Park Authorities 
 
National Park 
Authority 

Total 
Member
ship 

Principal Council Members Welsh 
Government 
appointed 
Members 

Brecon 
Beacons 

24 16: 
Blaenau Gwent County Borough Council – 1 
Carmarthenshire County Council – 2 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council – 1 
Monmouthshire County Council – 2 
Powys County Council – 8 
Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 
- 1 
Torfaen County Borough Council - 1 

8 

Pembrokeshire 
Coast 

18 12: 
Pembrokeshire County Council - 12 

6 

Snowdonia 18 12: 
Conwy County Borough Council – 3 
Gwynedd County Borough Council – 9 
 

6 

 
 

7.4 In addition, Standards Committees of NPAs have Independent Co-opted 
members whose remuneration is included in the framework as set out in 
Section 9.  

 

Tudalen 194



26 
 

7.5 In considering remuneration of members of NPAs, the Panel has based its 
 determinations on the following key points: 

 

 NPAs manage their work via formal authority meetings, committees and 
task and finish groups. Each has a Development/Management/Planning 
Committee, and other committees include Performance and Resources 
and Audit and Scrutiny. Ordinary NPA members are members of at least 
one committee as well as being involved in site visits and inspection 
panels. 

 

 There is an expectation that members will participate in training and 
development.  

 

 The chair of an NPA has a leadership and influencing role in the authority, 
a representational role similar in some respects to that of a civic head and 
a high level of accountability. The chair is not only the leader of the 
authority but is also the public face of the particular national park and is 
the link with the Minister and AMs with whom they have regular meetings. 
The role requires a high level of commitment and time. 

 
Basic and senior salaries  

 
7.6 The Panel has previously determined that the role of ordinary members of an 

NPA should be aligned to the basic salary of a member of a principal council, 
and that the time commitment required is a notional 42 days per year. This 
remains the basis of the Panel’s determinations. 

 
7.7 Although public sector funding continues to be constrained the Panel 

considers that a modest increase in the basic salary is justified and has 
determined there shall be an increase of £200 (which equates to 1.49%) from 
1 April 2018 in the level of basic salary for members of principal councils. This 
will help to limit further erosion of relative levels of remuneration in the basic 
salary paid in recognition of the duties expected of members. 

 
7.8 Therefore, there is a corresponding increase of £50 (rounded) on the basic 

salary for members of NPAs from 1 April 2018. 
 
7.9 The Panel has also previously determined that the remuneration of an NPA 

chair should be aligned to that part of a Band 3 Level 1 senior salary received 
by a committee chair of a principal council.  

 
7.10 The Panel has provided local flexibility so that an NPA can decide at which of 

two levels the roles of deputy chair and up to 2 other committee chairs can be 
remunerated. An NPA may choose to pay its deputy chair and/or committee 
chairs a salary of either £7,375 or £6,075, commensurate with the significant 
and sustained duties to be discharged in a particular role. 

 
7.11 During 2016, the Panel met with members and officers of the 3 NPAs. 

Feedback was received during the Panel’s visits about the importance of 

Tudalen 195



27 
 

members’ attendance at meetings and the impact non-attendance can have. 
The Panel is minded to consider this further during 2016/17.  

 
 
Additional Senior Salaries 

 
7.12  Feedback was also received during the Panel’s visits to NPAs that its 

determination that up to two NPA Committee Chairs could receive a senior 
salary could be restrictive in the NPAs discharging their governance 
requirements.  

 
7.13 The Panel allows principal councils greater flexibility to apply for specific or 

additional senior salaries that do not fall within the current Remuneration 
Framework. The Panel is extending this provision to NPAs as reflected in the 
following principles: 

 
a. Applications will have to be approved by the authority as a whole (this 

cannot be delegated) prior to submission to the Panel. 

b. There must be clear evidence that the post/posts have additional 
responsibility demonstrated by a description of the role, function and 
duration. 

c. Each application will have to indicate the timing for a formal review of the 
role to be considered by the authority as a whole. 

 
7.14 The Panel has made the following determinations:  
 

Determination 24: The basic salary for NPA ordinary members shall be 
£3,675  

 

Determination 25: The senior salary of the chair of an NPA shall be £12,375 

 

Determination 26: An NPA senior salary can be paid to a Deputy Chair and 
up to two committee chairs where there is significant and sustained 
responsibility. This can be paid at either of the following levels to be 
decided by the authority to reflect the appropriate responsibility: £6,075 or 
£7,375 

Determination 27: The Panel has determined to include a provision for 
NPAs to apply for specific or additional senior salaries that do not fall 
within the current Remuneration Framework. 

 
  

Tudalen 196



28 
 

Determination 28: Members must not receive more than one NPA senior 
salary. 

Determination 29: An NPA senior salary is paid inclusive of the NPA basic 
salary and must reflect significant and sustained responsibility 

Determination 30: Members of a principal council in receipt of a Band 1 or 
Band 2 senior salary cannot receive a salary from any NPA to which they 
have been appointed. 

 
 
The Panel’s determinations on Travel and Subsistence, Reimbursements of 
Costs of Care and Family Absence are now set out in separate sections of this 
Annual Report. 
 
 

Tudalen 197



29 
 

8. Payments to Members of Welsh Fire and Rescue 
Authorities  

 
Structure of Fire and Rescue Authorities  
 
8.1 The 3 Fire and Rescue Services in Wales: Mid and West Wales, North 
 Wales and South Wales and Fire and Rescue Authorities (FRAs) were formed 
 as part of Local Government re-organisation in 1996.  
 
8.2 FRAs comprise of elected Members who are nominated by the Principal 

Councils within the Fire and Rescue Service area.  
 
8.3 The structure of the each of the 3 FRAs is set out in Table 5 
  
 
Table 5: Membership of Fire and Rescue Authorities 

 
Name of Fire and Rescue 
Authority 

Number of Local Authority Members 

Mid and West Wales 25: 
Carmarthenshire County Council – 5 
Ceredigion County Council – 2 
Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council – 4 
Pembrokeshire County Council – 3 
Powys County Council – 4 
Swansea City and County Council - 7 

North Wales 28: 
Conwy County Borough Council – 5 
Denbighshire County Council – 4 
Flintshire County Council – 6 
Gwynedd Council – 5 
Isle of Anglesey County Council – 3 
Wrexham County Borough Council – 5 

South Wales 24: 
Bridgend County Borough Council – 2 
Blaenau Gwent County Borough Council – 1 
Caerphilly County Borough Council – 3 
Cardiff City Council – 5 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council – 1 
Monmouthshire County Council – 2 
Newport City Council - 2 
Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council - 4 
Torfaen County Borough Council – 2 
Vale of Glamorgan Council -2 

 
8.4 In addition, Standards Committees of FRAs have independent co-opted 
 members whose remuneration is included in the framework as set out in 
 Section 9.  
 

Tudalen 198



30 
 

8.5 In considering remuneration of members of FRAs, the Panel has based its 
 determinations on the following key points: 
 

 The chair has a leadership and influencing role in the authority, and a high 
level of accountability especially when controversial issues relating to the 
emergency service arise. In addition to fire authority meetings, all FRAs 
have committees that include in different combinations: audit, performance 
management, scrutiny, human resources, resource management as well 
as task and finish groups and disciplinary panels. As well as attending 
formal meetings of the authority and committees, members are 
encouraged to take on a community engagement role, including visiting 
fire stations. 

 

 There is a strong training ethos in FRAs. Members are expected to 
participate in training and development. Induction programmes are 
available as well as specialist training for appeals and disciplinary 
hearings.  
 

 Training sessions often follow on from authority meetings to make the 
training accessible.  

 
Basic and Senior Salaries 

 
8.6 The Panel has previously determined that the remuneration of ordinary 

members of an FRA should be aligned to the basic salary of a member of a 
principal council and that the time commitment required is a notional 20 days 
per year. This remains the basis of the Panel’s determinations. 

 
8.7 Although public sector funding continues to be constrained the Panel 

considers that a modest increase in the basic annual salary of elected 
members is justified and has determined there shall be an increase of £200 
(which equates to 1.49%) from the date of the authority’s Annual General 
Meeting in the level of basic salary for members of principal councils. This will 
help to limit further erosion of relative levels of remuneration in the basic 
salary paid in recognition of the duties expected of members.  

 
8.8 Therefore, there is a corresponding increase of £30 (rounded) on the basic 

salary for members of FRAs from the date of the authority’s Annual General 
Meeting. 

 
8.9 The Panel determined that the remuneration of an FRA chair should be 

aligned to that part of a Band 3 Level 1 senior salary received by a committee 
chair of a principal council.  

 
8.10 The Panel determined that the remuneration of an FRA deputy chair where 

there is significant and sustained senior responsibility will be aligned with the 
Band 5 senior salary.  

 
8.11 The Panel has determined that up to two FRA committee chairs where there 

is significant and sustained responsibility can be remunerated.  

Tudalen 199



31 
 

 
8.12 During 2016, the Panel met with members and officers of the 3 FRAs. 

Feedback was received about the importance of members’ attendance at 
meetings and the impact non-attendance can have. The Panel is minded to 
consider this further during 2016/17.  

 
 
Additional Senior Salaries 

 
8.13 The Panel allows principal councils greater flexibility to apply for specific or 

additional senior salaries that do not fall within the current Remuneration 
Framework. The Panel is extending this provision to FRAs as reflected in the 
following principles 

 
a. Applications will have to be approved by the authority as a whole (this cannot 

be delegated) prior to submission to the Panel. 

b. There must be clear evidence that the post/posts have additional 
responsibility demonstrated by a description of the role, function and duration. 

c. Each application will have to indicate the timing for a formal review of the role 
to be considered by the authority as a whole. 

 

Local Pension Boards  

8.14   The Panel has considered requests from FRAs to allow them to pay salaries 

to chairs of local pension boards established under the Firefighters’ Pension 

Scheme (Wales) Regulations 2015. Those Regulations already give FRAs the 

power to decide how local pension boards are to work and to pay the chair 

and members if they wish. Therefore it is not appropriate for the Panel to 

make a determination empowering FRAs to pay salaries to local pension 

board chairs. The senior salaries in Determination 33 or 34 cannot be used 

exclusively for this role.  

 8.15 The Panel has made the following determinations: 

 

 

Determination 31: The basic salary for FRA ordinary members shall be 
£1,745 

Determination 32: The senior salary of the chair of an FRA shall be £10,445  

Determination 33: An FRA senior salary can be paid to the deputy chair and 
up to two chairs of committees where there is significant and sustained 
responsibility. This shall be paid at £5,445. 

Determination 34: The Panel has determined to include a provision for 
FRAs to apply for specific or additional senior salaries that do not fall 

Tudalen 200



32 
 

within the current Remuneration Framework. 

Determination 35: Members must not receive more than one FRA senior 
salary. 

Determination 36: An FRA senior salary is paid inclusive of the FRA basic 
salary and must reflect significant and sustained responsibility 

Determination 37: Members of a principal council in receipt of a Band 1 or 
Band 2 senior salary cannot receive a salary from any FRA to which they 
have been nominated. 

 
 
The Panel’s determinations on Travel and Subsistence, Reimbursement of 
Costs of Care and Family Absence are now set out in separate sections of this 
Annual Report. 
 

 
 

Tudalen 201



33 
 

9. Payments to co-opted Members of Principal Councils, 
National Park Authorities and Fire & Rescue Authorities7 

 
9.1 The Panel has determined that a daily/half daily fee is appropriate 

remuneration for the important role undertaken by co-opted members of 
authorities with voting rights (this includes the co-opted member from a Town 
or Community council). The level of payments is equivalent to the current daily 
rates for chairs and members of the Welsh Government’s Band 2 sponsored 
bodies. The Panel notes there has been no uplift in these payment levels 
across such bodies since 2010. 

 
9.2 Principal councils, NPAs and FRAs can decide on the maximum number of 

days in any one year for which co-opted members may be paid. 
 
9.3 The determinations are set out below: 
 

Determination 38: Principal councils, NPAs and FRAs must pay the 
following fees to co-opted members (Table 6) (who have voting rights). 

 
Table 6: Fees for co-opted members (with voting rights)  

 

Chairs of standards, and audit committees £256  
(4 hours and over) 
£128 (up to 4 hours) 

Ordinary members of standards committees who also 
chair standards committees for community and town 
councils 

£226 daily fee  
(4 hours and over) 
£113 (up to 4 hours) 

Ordinary members of standards committees; education 
scrutiny committee; crime and disorder scrutiny 
committee and audit committee 

£198 
(4 hours and over) 
£99 (up to 4 hours) 

Community and town councillors sitting on principal 
council committees 

£198 
(4 hours and over) 
£99 (up to 4 hours) 

  

Determination 39: Reasonable time for pre meeting preparation is eligible to 
be included in claims made by co-opted members the extent of which can 
be determined by the appropriate officer in advance of the meeting.  

 

Determination 40: Travelling time to and from the place of the meeting can 
be included in the claims for payments made by co-opted members (up to 
the maximum of the daily rate). 

 

Determination 41: The appropriate officer within the authority can determine 

                                                             
7 This section does not apply to co-opted members of community and town councils. 

Tudalen 202



34 
 

in advance whether a meeting is programmed for a full day and the fee will 
be paid on the basis of this determination even if the meeting finishes 
before four hours has elapsed. 

 

Determination 42: Meetings eligible for the payment of fees include other 
committees and working groups (including task and finish groups), pre-
meetings with officers, training and attendance at conferences or any other 
formal meeting to which co-opted members are requested to attend. 

 
 
The Panel’s determinations on Travel and Subsistence, Reimbursement of 
costs of care and Family Absence are now set out in separate sections of this 
Annual Report. 

 

Tudalen 203



35 
 

10. Reimbursement of Costs of Care  

 
10.1.   This section applies to members of principal councils, National Park 

Authorities, Fire and Rescue Authorities and to co-opted members of these 

authorities. A similar, but permissive, provision for Community and Town 

Councils is given in section 13  

10.2.   The purpose of this section is to enable people who have personal support 

needs and or caring responsibilities to carry out their duties effectively as a 

member of an authority.  The Panel believes that the additional costs of care 

required to carry out approved duties should not deter people from becoming 

and remaining a member of an authority or limit their ability to carry out the 

role.  

10.3 The Panel recognises the issues relating to the publication of this legitimate 

expense. This is reflected in the options for publication as set out in Annex 4. 

To support current members and to encourage diversity the Panel urges 

authorities to promote and encourage greater take-up of the reimbursement of 

Costs of Care 

 

Determination 43: All authorities must provide for the reimbursement of 
necessary costs for the care of dependent children and adults (provided 
by informal or formal carers) and for personal assistance needs up to a 
maximum of £403 per month. Reimbursement must be for the additional 
costs incurred by members in order for them to carry out their approved 
duties.  Reimbursement shall only be made on production of receipts 
from the carer. 
 

 

 

Tudalen 204



36 
 

11. Sickness Absence for Senior Salary Holders 

11.1. The Family Absence Regulations (approved by the National Assembly in 
2014) are very specific relating to entitlement and only available for elected 
members of principal councils. Absence for reasons of ill-health is not 
included. 

11.2. Instances have been raised with the Panel of senior salary holders on long 
term sickness and the perceived unfairness in comparison with the 
arrangements for family absence. In consequence, councils are faced with the 
dilemma of: 

 Operating without the individual member but still paying him/her the 
senior salary. 

 Replacing the member who therefore loses the senior salary (but 
retains the basic salary). 

11.3. The Panel has considered this and is amending the Framework to provide 
specific arrangements for long term sickness as set out below: 

a) Long term sickness is defined as certified absences in excess of 4 
weeks. 

b) The maximum length of sickness absence within these proposals is 26 
weeks or until the individual’s term of office ends, whichever is sooner 
(but if reappointed any remaining balance of the 26 weeks will be 
included).  

c) Within these parameters a senior salary holder on long term sickness 
can, if the authority decides continue to receive remuneration for the post 
held. 

d) It is a decision of the authority whether to make a substitute appointment 
but the substitute will be eligible to be paid the senior salary appropriate 
to the post. 

e) If the paid substitution results in the authority exceeding the maximum 
number of senior salaries payable for that authority as set out in the 
Annual Report, an addition will be allowed for the duration of the 
substitution. (However this would not apply to Merthyr Tydfil or the Isle of 
Anglesey councils if it would result in more than 50% of the membership 
receiving a senior salary. It would also not apply in respect of a council 
executive member if it would result in the cabinet exceeding 10 posts - 
the statutory maximum). 

f) When an authority agrees a paid substitution the Panel must be informed 
within 14 days of the decision of the details including the specific post 
and the estimated length of the substitution. The authority’s Schedule of 
Remuneration must be amended accordingly. 

g) It does not apply to elected members of principal councils who are not 
senior post holders as they continue to receive basic salary for at least 

Tudalen 205



37 
 

six months irrespective of attendance and any extension beyond this 
timescale is a matter for the authority. 

11.4. This arrangement applies to members of principal councils, National Park 
Authorities and Fire and Rescue Authorities who are senior salary holders, 
including Welsh Government appointed members, but does not apply to co-
opted members. 

Note: 

The Family Absence Regulations apply to elected members in cases of 
maternity, new born, adoption and parental absences from official business. 
They do not apply to Welsh Government appointed members. 

 

Tudalen 206



38 
 

12. Reimbursement of Travel and Subsistence Costs when 
on Official Business 

12.1. This section applies to members of principal authorities, National Park 
Authorities, Fire and Rescue Authorities and to co-opted members of these 
authorities. (Similar provision for Community and Town Councils is contained 
in section 13 as there is a different approach to such members, principally that 
the provision is permissive.) 

 
12.2. Members may claim reimbursement for travel and subsistence (meals and 

accommodation) costs where these have arisen as a result of undertaking 
official duties. Expenses reimbursed to members by their local authority are 
exempt from Income Tax and employee NICs.  

 
12.3. The Panel is aware that in some instances members with disabilities have 

been reluctant to claim legitimate travel expenses because of an adverse 
response following the publication of their travel costs. As an alternative, 
travel arrangements could be made directly by the authority in such 
circumstances. 

 
12.4. The Panel has determined that there will be no change to mileage rates which 

members are entitled to claim. All authorities may only reimburse travel costs 
for their members undertaking official business within and/or outside the 
authority’s boundaries at the current HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC) 
rates which are: 

 
Reimbursement of mileage costs 
 

45p per mile Up to 10,000 miles in a year by car 

25p per mile Over 10,000 miles in a year by car 

5p per mile Per passenger carried on authority business 

24p per mile Motor cycles 

20p per mile Bicycles 

 
12.5. Where a member who is on official business is driven by a third party (not a 

member or officer of that authority), the member can claim mileage at the 
prescribed rates plus any parking or toll fees provided the authority is satisfied 
that the member has incurred these costs. 

 
Reimbursement of other travel costs 
 
12.6. All other claims for travel must only be reimbursed on production of receipts 

showing the actual cost and will be subject to any requirement or further 
limitation that an authority may determine. Members should always be mindful 
of choosing the most cost effective method of travel.  

 
 

Tudalen 207



39 
 

 
 

Reimbursement of subsistence costs 

 

£28 per day Day allowance for meals, including breakfast, where not 
provided in the overnight charge 

£200 per night London  

£95 per night Elsewhere  

£30 per night Staying with friends and/or family 

 
12.7. These rates are in line with Welsh Government rates. Recommended practice 

is that overnight accommodation should usually be reserved and paid for on 
behalf of members by the relevant authority, in which case an authority may 
set its own reasonable limits and the limits which apply when an individual 
member claims in arrears for overnight accommodation costs do not then 
apply. 

 
12.8. All authorities must continue to reimburse subsistence expenses for their 

members up to the maximum rates set out above on the basis of receipted 
claims except for occasions when members stay with friends and/or family. 

 
12.9. There may be instances where an authority has determined that travel costs 

within its boundaries are payable and require a journey to be repeated on 
consecutive days. Where it is reasonable and cost effective to reimburse 
overnight accommodation costs, instead of repeated daily mileage costs, then 
it is permissible to do so. 

 
12.10. It is not necessary to allocate the maximum daily rate (£28 per day) between 

different meals as the maximum daily rate reimbursable covers a 24 hour 
period and can be claimed for any meal if relevant, provided such a claim is 
accompanied by receipts. 

 
 

Tudalen 208



40 
 

13. Payments to Members of Community and Town 
Councils 

 
13.1.  The Panel has had responsibility for the remuneration of community and town 

councils since the Measure of 2011 and its first determinations for such 
members came into effect in the financial year 2013/2014. Subsequent 
Annual Reports have developed ideas for remuneration of community and 
town councillors, allowing flexibility to meet appropriate responsibilities. 

 
13.2. The Panel recognises a wide variation in geography, scope and scale across 

735 community and town councils in Wales, from small community councils 
with relatively minimal expenditure and few meetings to large town councils 
with significant assets and responsibilities. 

 
13.3  Since producing its last report, the Panel met with 104 Councillors and Clerks 

representing 68 Community and Town Councils in 4 meetings it held across 
Wales.  The discussions confirmed the widely held view that the roles 
individual councils undertake vary significantly.  Subsequent research the 
Panel undertook into councils’ income and expenditure and councillor to 
population ratios further supported the wide variation. 

 
13.4 The Panel is of the view that in accordance with this wide variation, the 

responsibilities and accountabilities of councillors must also vary.  Councillors 
managing income or expenditure of £1m and those delivering significant 
services, including some that might have been delegated from principal 
councils, are operating in a much more complex environment than a council 
with an annual budget of £10,000. 

 
13.5 Therefore the Panel is proposing to form groups of Community and Town 

Councils to reflect these differences.  The Panel examined a range of 
measures the Panel could use as the basis for any groupings and it considers 
that 4 groups based on the level of income or expenditure, whichever is the 
highest, in the previous financial year, is most appropriate.   Using income or 
expenditure figures better reflects the activity levels of a council than 
population ratios which the Panel found did not correlate to income or 
expenditure.  It is also easy for councils to understand which group they 
belong to. 

 
 
 Table 7    Community and Town Council Groupings 
 

Community and Town 
Council Group 

Income or Expenditure of: 

A £200,000 and above 

B £60,000 - £199,999 

C £10,000 - £59,999 

D Below £9,999 

 
 

Tudalen 209



41 
 

13.6. The Panel is of the view that Community and Town Councillors are not 
volunteers because further to the democratic process they have accepted 
formal responsibilities and they all face some degree of liability, in respect of 
the Council functions they are running. Also, the Panel wants any member 
who has personal support needs and or caring responsibilities to be able to 
fulfil their role. To reflect this, the Panel is mandating payment of a 
contribution to costs and expenses, and reimbursement of the costs of care, 
for all members of Community and Town Councils as set out in 
Determinations 44 and 51. 

 
13.7 The Panel is also of the view that Councils in Group A are likely to have a 

greater number of committees, reflecting its level of activity; and therefore is 
additionally mandating the payment for senior roles as set out in 
Determination 45.  Where not mandated, each determination requires a formal 
decision by each of these community or town councils’ annually.  A Council 
can adopt any or all of the non-mandated determinations but if it does make 
such a decision, it must apply to all its members. 

 
13.8 In all cases, any individual member may make a personal decision to elect to 

forgo part or all of the entitlement to any of these payments by giving notice in 
writing to the proper officer of the council. 

 
13.9 Members in receipt of a Band 1 or Band 2 senior salary from a principal 

council cannot receive payment for a senior role from any Community or Town 
Council. 

 
 
Payments towards costs and expenses 
 
13.10. In order to compensate members of community and town councils for 

expenses and costs involved in carrying out their duties, the Panel has 
determined that councils must make a payment to each member.  

 

Determination 44: Community and town councils  must make a payment to 
each of their members of £150 per year for costs incurred in respect of 
telephone usage, information technology, consumables etc. 

 
 
Senior roles 
 
13.11 The Panel recognises that specific member roles especially within the larger 

community and town councils, for example a committee chair, will involve 
greater responsibility. It is also likely that the larger councils will have a 
greater number of committees, reflecting its level of activity. The Panel has 
therefore determined that councils in Group A must make a payment for a 
minimum of one senior role and a maximum of five senior roles.  Councils in 
Groups B, C and D are authorised to pay up to five responsibility payments for 
specified roles. 

 

Tudalen 210



42 
 

Determination 45: Community and town councils in Group A must make an 
annual payment of £500 each to a minimum of 1 and a maximum of 5 members 
in recognition of specific responsibilities. This is in addition to the £150 
payment for costs and expenses. 

 
 

Determination 46:  Community and town councils in Groups B, C or D are 
authorised to make an annual payment of £500 each to up to 5 members in 
recognition of specific responsibilities. This is in addition to the £150  
payment for costs and expenses if that is made. 

 
 
Reimbursement of travel costs and subsistence costs 

 
13.12. The Panel recognises that there can be significant travel and subsistence 

costs associated with the work of community and town council members, 
especially where the council area is geographically large and/or when 
engaging in duties outside this area.  

 

Determination 47: Community and town councils are authorised to make 
payments to each of their members in respect of travel costs for attending 
approved duties. 8 Such payments must be the actual costs of travel by public 
transport or the HMRC mileage allowances as below: 

 45p per mile up to 10,000 miles in the year. 

 25p per mile over 10,000 miles. 

 5p per mile per passenger carried on authority business. 

 24p per mile for private motor cycles. 

 20p per mile for bicycles. 
 

 
 

 

Determination 48: If a community or town council resolves that a particular 
duty requires an overnight stay, it may authorise reimbursement of 
subsistence expenses to its members at the maximum rates set out below on 
the basis of receipted claims: 
 

 £28 per 24-hour period allowance for meals, including breakfast where not 
provided. 

 £200 – London overnight. 

 £95 – elsewhere overnight. 

                                                             
8 Where a member who is on official business is driven by a third party (not a member or officer of that authority), the member 

can claim mileage at the prescribed rates plus any parking or toll fees provided the authority is satisfied that the member has 

incurred these costs. 
 

Tudalen 211



43 
 

 £30 – staying with friends and/or family overnight. 

 
  Compensation for financial loss 
 
13.13 The Panel has retained the facility which councils may pay as compensation 
to their members where they suffer financial loss when attending approved duties. 
 
 

Determination 49: Community and town councils are authorised to pay 

financial loss compensation to each of their members, where such loss has 

actually occurred, for attending approved duties as follows: 

 Up to £34.00 for each period not exceeding 4 hours: 

 Up to £68.00 for each period exceeding 4 hours but not exceeding 24 

hours. 

 

 
 
Reimbursement of the costs of care  

 
13.14 The purpose of this is to enable people who have personal support needs and 

or caring responsibilities to carry out their duties effectively as a member of an 
authority.  The Panel believes that the additional costs of care required to 
carry out approved duties should not deter people from becoming and 
remaining a member of an authority or limit their ability to carry out the role. 

 

13.15 The Panel recognises the issues relating to the publication of this legitimate 

expense. This is reflected in the options for publication as set out in Annex 4. 

To support current members and to encourage diversity the Panel urges 

authorities to promote and encourage greater take-up of the reimbursement of 

Costs of Care. 

 

Determination 50: Community and town councils must provide for the 
reimbursement of necessary costs for the care of dependent children and 
adults (provided by informal or formal carers) and for personal assistance 
needs up to a maximum of £403 per month. Reimbursement must be for the 
additional costs incurred by members in order for them to carry out their 
approved duties.  Reimbursement shall only be made on production of 
receipts from the carer. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 212



44 
 

Civic Head / Deputy Civic Head Payment 

 
13.16. Recognising that some mayors and chairs of community and town councils 

and their deputies are very active during their year of office, the Panel has 
determined that community and town councils should be authorised to make a 
payment for these roles. In its previous annual reports the Panel did not 
determine a maximum level of payment to mayors/chairs and their deputies.   

  
13.17  The Panel’s consultation meetings this year, confirmed that the majority of 

community and town councils make no or very modest payments to their civic 

leaders  and that  some of them  are reporting the budget allocated for civic 

functions and civic expenditure rather than the amount paid as personal 

senior salary to the individual. 

13.18 The Panel is concerned only with the amount paid to the mayors/chairs as a 

salary or honorarium, to be used or retained at their discretion.  The Panel has 

determined that the maximum amount to be paid to a chair/mayor of a 

community or town council in this way shall be £1,500.  The maximum amount 

to be paid to a deputy mayor/chair in this way shall be £500. 

 

Determination 51: Community and town councils are authorised to provide a 
Civic Head payment to the mayor/chair of the council up to a maximum of 
£1,500 to undertake the functions of that office. This is in addition to the £150 

payment for costs and expenses if that is made. 

 
 

Determination 52: Community and town councils are authorised to provide a 
Deputy Civic Head payment to the deputy mayor/deputy chair of the council up 
to a maximum amount of £500 to undertake the functions of that office. This is 
in addition to the £150 payment for costs and expenses if that is made. 

 

 
 
Publicity requirements 

 
13.19. There is a requirement on community and town councils to publish details of 

all payments made to individual members in an annual Statement of 
Payments. This information must be published on council noticeboards and/or 
websites (with easy access) and provided to the Panel by email or by post no 
later than 30 September following the end of the year to which the payments 
relate. The Panel draws attention to the requirements stipulated at Annex 4. 
The Panel is concerned that a significant number of councils are in breach of 
this requirement. 

 
 

 

Tudalen 213



45 
 

14. Compliance with Panel Requirements 

The Panel’s remit under the Measure 
 
14.1 Section 153 of the Measure empowers the Panel to require a relevant 

authority9 to comply with the requirements imposed on it by an Annual Report 
of the Panel and further enables the Panel to monitor the compliance of 
relevant authorities with the Panel’s determinations.  

 
14.2 A relevant authority must implement the Panel’s determinations in this report 

from the date of its annual meeting or a date specified within the Annual 
Report. 

 
Monitoring compliance 

 
14.3 The Panel will monitor the compliance with the determinations in this Annual 

Report by relevant authorities against the following requirements: 
 

(i)        A relevant authority must maintain an annual Schedule of Member 
Remuneration (IRPW Regulations 4 and 5). Guidance at Annex 3 sets 

out the content which must be included in the Schedule. 

(ii) A relevant authority must make arrangements for the Schedule’s 
publication within the authority area (IRPW Regulation 46) and send 
the Schedule to the Panel as soon as practicable as and not later than 
31 July in the year to which it applies. Annex 4 provides further details 
of the publicity requirements. 

(iii) Any amendments to the Schedule made during the year must be 
conveyed to the Panel as soon as possible after the amendment is 
made. 

 
 
Note: The above requirements do not apply to community and town 
councils at this time. The following applies to all authorities including 
community and town councils. 

 
(iv) A relevant authority must make arrangements for publication within the 

authority area of the total sum paid by it to each member and co-opted 
member in respect of salary (basic, senior and civic), allowances, fees 
and reimbursements in a Statement of Payments (in accordance with 
Annex 4 that sets out the content that must be included in the Publicity 
Requirements) as soon as practicable and no later than 30 September 
following the close of the year to which it relates. It must be submitted 
to the Panel no later than that date. 

 

                                                             
9
 Interpretation of “Relevant Authority” provided in the Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales 

(IRPW) Regulations, Part 1, ‘Interpretation’. 

Tudalen 214



46 
 

15. Salaries of Heads of Paid Service of Principal Councils 
and Fire and Rescue Authorities and Chief Officers of 
Principal Councils 

 
 
15.1 Section 63 of the Local Government (Democracy) (Wales) Act 2013 amended 

the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 by inserting section 143A. This 
enables the Panel to take a view on anything in the Pay Policy Statements of 
these authorities that relates to the salary of the head of paid service 
(normally the chief executive or chief fire officer). Section 39 of the Local 
Government (Wales) Act 2015 further amended the Measure extending this 
function to include Chief Officers of Principal Councils. 

 
15.2  The Welsh Government has issued amended guidance to the Panel which 

can be found at http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/localgov/160212-irp-
guide-salaries-en-v2.pdf .This sets the basis on which the Panel will carry out 
the function contained in the legislation.       
        

15.3   In essence the functions of the Panel and the requirements on authorities 
established by the legislation and the subsequent guidance are: 

                                                           
 a) If a principal council intends to change the salary of the head of paid 

service or chief officer, or if a fire and rescue authority intends to change 
the salary of its head of paid service it must consult the Panel unless the 
change is in keeping with changes applied to other officers of that authority 
(whether the change is an increase or decrease). ‘Salary’ includes 
payments under a contract for services as well as payments of salary under 
an employment contract.                                                       

 
 b) The authority must have regard to the recommendation(s) of the Panel 

when reaching its decision.                                                                                                                                              
 

 c) The Panel may seek any information that it considers necessary to reach 
a conclusion and produce a recommendation. The authority is obliged to 
provide the information sought by the Panel.                                                                                                                                              

        
 d) The Panel may publish any recommendation that it makes. It is the 

intention that, in the interests of transparency, it will normally do so.                                                                        
                                                                                          

 e) The Panel's recommendation(s) could indicate:                                                                     

 approval of the authority's proposal 

 express concerns about the proposal 

 recommend variations to the proposal 
 

 as long as these comply with any guidance issued by the Welsh Government. 
 
15.4  The Panel also has a general power to review the Pay Policy Statements of 

authorities so far as they relate to the heads of paid service (and chief officers 

Tudalen 215

http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/localgov/160212-irp-guide-salaries-en-v2.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/localgov/160212-irp-guide-salaries-en-v2.pdf


47 
 

until 2020). 
 
15.5   It is important to note that the Panel will not decide the amount that an 

individual head of paid service will receive.                                                                                                                               
 
15.6  The Panel is very aware that this additional function is significantly different 

from its statutory responsibilities in relation to members' remuneration. 
However, it will ensure that it undertakes this role with clarity and openness, 
taking into account all the relevant factors in respect of specific individual 
cases. Authorities are encouraged to consult the Panel at an early stage in 
their decision making on such matters. This will enable the Panel to respond 
in a timely manner.   

 
                                                                                      
  
 
Pay Policy Statements 
 
15.7  Paragraph 3.7 of the guidance to the Panel from the Welsh Government 

states that “The legislation does not restrict the Panel to a reactive role” It 
allows the Panel to use its power to make recommendations relating to 
provisions within local authorities Pay Policy Statements. The Panel has 
considered this in the context of it resources and has decided that these limit 
the time that could be applied to this open power. So it will examine changes 
from year to year of the salaries of Chief Executives and Chief Officers to 
ensure that these comply with the requirements of the legislation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 216



48 
 

 

 

 

Reuben Bergman 

Head of Human Resources  

Vale of Glamorgan Council  

rbergman@valeofglamorgan.gov.uk 

30 January 2017 

 

Dear Mr Bergman 

Reduction in Salary for a Chief Officer Post 

Your email dated 25th January has been considered by the Independent 

Remuneration Panel for Wales. All members of the Panel expressed their views 

on the proposal, and as you requested to receive the Panel’s comments on this 

proposal prior to 9th February, this was done by email.  

In respect of the function of the Panel related to the salaries of chief officers 

the remit and guidance from the Welsh Government allows the Panel to: 

a) Approve the proposals 

b) Express concerns about the proposals 

c) Recommend a variation to the proposals 

Having examined the submission from your authority it is the decision of the 

Panel to approve the proposal for a reduction to the salary of your Director of 

Social Services as submitted. 

Yours sincerely 

 

John Bader 

Chair 

 

Tudalen 217

mailto:rbergman@valeofglamorgan.gov.uk


49 
 

 

 

Nick Jarman  
Director of Social Services, Health and Housing 
Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council  

n.jarman@npt.gov.uk  

27 February 2017 

 

Dear Mr Jarman, 

Honorarium Payment to the Head of Children and Young People’s Services  

Your letter dated 15 February 2017, accompanying documentation and 
explanatory email was considered by the Independent Remuneration Panel for 
Wales at their meeting on 22 February. All members of the Panel were present 
and therefore the meeting was quorate. One member of the Panel declared a 
conflict of interest and took no part in the discussion.   
 
The Panel considered whether an honorarium paid to a chief officer fell within 

the Panel’s remit.  It consulted the Amended Guidance to the Independent 

Remuneration Panel for Wales under Section 43A of the Local Government 

(Wales) Measure 2011 and Section 39 of the Local Government (Wales) Act 

2015, issued by the Welsh Government. The guidance does not define salary, 

so the Panel applied the ordinary meaning of the word, namely remuneration 

in return for services under a contract of employment.  The Panel is satisfied 

that its remit covers all such payments, including those termed honoraria, 

temporary promotion allowances, bonuses or any other term which 

distinguishes them from the basic salary.  The Panel also considered the 

Honorarium Policy of Neath Port Talbot council and note that it excludes chief 

officers. The Panel concluded that making an additional payment to a chief 

officer in recognition of his or her additional duties is an alteration to the salary 

that does fall within the Panel’s remit.  

Given that the initial addition to the salary was effective from March 2016 it is 

clear therefore that Neath Port Talbot council were in breach of their duty 

under the legislation to consult the Panel.   

Tudalen 218

mailto:n.jarman@npt.gov.uk


50 
 

In respect of the function of the Panel related to the salaries of chief officers 

the remit and guidance from the Welsh Government allows the Panel to: 

a) Approve the proposal 

b) Express concerns about the proposal 

c) Recommend a variation to the proposal 

 

Having examined the submission from your authority in respect of the 

continuation of the additional payment, it is the decision of the Panel to 

approve the proposal as submitted.  The Panel however is concerned that the 

council’s failure to consult the Panel is an indication that the council has not 

been as transparent as it might have been in deciding to alter the salary of this 

particular chief officer.   Your letter is clear that this honorarium payment will 

cease on the 31st August 2017, either because of the appointment of a Head of 

Adult Services or because of the introduction of a new management structure. 

If a new management structure is introduced and results in changes to the 

salaries (including additions/honoraria) of chief officers of the council the 

Panel expects that it will be consulted in a timely manner and full disclosure of 

the justification for the changes will be provided.  

    

Yours sincerely 

 

John Bader 

Chair 

 
 
 
 

Tudalen 219



51 
 

  

 

 

Carys Edwards MA FCIPD 
Penaeth Proffesiwn AD – Head of Profession HR 
Cyngor Sir Ynys Mon County Council  
Council Officer 
Llangefni  
Ynys Mon  
LL77 7TW  
          26 July 2017 
 
Dear Ms Edwards, 

Head of Children’s Service – Increase in Salary Level 

Your emails dated 29 June, 5th July and 13 July and the enclosed report from 

your Chief Executive have been considered by the Independent Remuneration 

Panel for Wales at its meeting on 19th July.  All members of the Panel were 

present and therefore the meeting was quorate. 

In respect of the function of the Panel related to the salaries of chief officers 

the remit and guidance from the Welsh Government allows the Panel to: 

a) Approve the proposals 

b) Express concerns about the proposals 

c) Recommend a variation to the proposals 

Having examined the submission from your authority it is the decision of the 

Panel to approve the proposal to increase the current salary level of the vacant 

Head of Children’s Service of £59,757 – £65,933 to a maximum of £74,000.  

Yours sincerely 

 

John Bader 

Chair 

Tudalen 220



52 
 

 

 

 

 

Nick Jarman  
Director of Social Services, Health and Housing 
Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council  

n.jarman@npt.gov.uk  

26 July 2017 

Dear Mr Jarman 

Your letter dated 5 July with its proposal to extend the honorarium payment to 
the Head of Children and Young People’s Services until 31st December 2017 
was considered by the Panel at its meeting on the 19 July. All members of the 
Panel were present and therefore the meeting was quorate. One member of 
the Panel declared a conflict of interest and took no part in the discussion.   
 

In respect of the function of the Panel related to the salaries of chief officers 

the remit and guidance from the Welsh Government allows the Panel to: 

a) Approve the proposals 

b) Express concerns about the proposals 

c) Recommend a variation to the proposals 

Having examined the submission from your authority it is the decision of the 

Panel to approve the proposal to extend the honorarium payment until 31st 

December 2017.  The Panel expect this to be a final extension and to see any 

relevant proposals for the restructuring of the Senior Management Team in 

due course.  

Yours sincerely 

 

John Bader 

Chair 

Tudalen 221

mailto:n.jarman@npt.gov.uk


53 
 

 

 

 

Will Godfrey 
Chief Executive 
Newport City Council  
 
         20 September 2017 
 
Dear Mr Godfrey 
 
Decrease of Chief Education Officer Salary  
 
The email sent on your behalf by Rachael Davies dated 6 September 2017 with 

the enclosed report Review of the Chief Education Officer Salary at Newport 

City Council September 2017 has been considered by the Independent 

Remuneration Panel for Wales at its meeting on 13 September.  All members 

of the Panel were present and therefore the meeting was quorate. 

In respect of the function of the Panel related to the salaries of chief officers 

the remit and guidance from the Welsh Government allows the Panel to: 

a) Approve the proposals 

b) Express concerns about the proposals 

c) Recommend a variation to the proposals 

Having examined the submission from your authority it is the decision of the 
Panel to approve the proposal to decrease the current salary level of the Chief 
Education Officer from Band 1 (£82,261 - £90,923) to Band 2 (£73,841 -
£79,514) following your revision of the job description for the Chief Education 
Officer with the accountability for the regional focus being removed. 
 
Yours sincerely 

 

John Bader 
Chair 

Tudalen 222



54 
 

 

 

Tudalen 223



55 
 

Annex 1: The Panel’s Determinations for 2018/19 

Principal Councils 

1.  Basic salary in 2018/19 for elected members of principal councils shall be 

£13,600 

2.  The Panel has determined that senior salary levels in 2018/19 for members of 

principal councils shall be as set out in Table 2. 

3.  The Panel has determined that (where paid) civic salaries at the levels as set 

out in Table 3 and will be applied by principal councils as each considers 

appropriate, taking account of the anticipated workloads and responsibilities. 

4.  The Panel has determined that, where appointed and if remunerated, a 

presiding member must be paid a Band 3 senior salary. This post will count 

towards the cap. 

5.  The Panel has determined that the post of deputy presiding member will not be 

remunerated. 

6.  The Panel has determined that each authority, through its Democratic Services 

Committee, must ensure that all its members are given as much support as is 

necessary to enable them to fulfil their duties effectively. All elected members 

should be provided with adequate telephone, email and internet facilities giving 

electronic access to appropriate information.  

7.  The Panel has determined that such support should be without cost to the 

individual member. Deductions must not be made from members’ salaries by 

the respective authority as a contribution towards the cost of support which the 

authority has decided necessary for the effectiveness and or efficiency of 

members.  

Specific or Additional Senior Salaries 

8.  The Panel has determined to include a provision for specific or additional senior 

salaries that do not fall within the current Remuneration Framework. 

Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committees 

9.  The chair of a Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee is eligible for an 

additional payment of   £6,700  

10.  In cases where the chair is already in receipt of a senior salary for a Band 3, 4 

or 5 role the additional payment will be £3,350. 

11.  The chair of a sub committee of a JOSC is eligible for a salary of £1,675. 

Tudalen 224



56 
 

12.  In cases where the chair of the sub committee is already in receipt of a senior 

salary for a Band 3, 4 or 5 role the payment will be £837. 

13.  Payments to chairs of task and finish sub committees are to be pro-rated to the 

duration of the task. 

14.  Payments made to a chair of a JOSC, or a chair of a sub committee of a JOSC, 

are additional to the maximum proportion of the authority’s membership eligible 

for a senior salary. It should be noted that the statutory limit of no more than 

50% of a council’s membership receiving a senior salary applies (Section 142 

(5) of the Measure). 

15.  A deputy chair of a JOSC or sub committee is not eligible for payment. 

16.  Co-optees to a JOSC or to a sub committee are not eligible for a co-opted 

member fee unless they are appointed by an authority under Section 144(5) of 

the Measure. 

Local Government Pension Scheme 

17.  The entitlement to join the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) shall 

apply to all eligible elected members of principal councils. 

Family Absence 

18.  An elected member is entitled to retain a basic salary when taking family 
absence under the regulations irrespective of the attendance record 
immediately preceding the commencement of the family absence.   

19.  When a senior salary holder is eligible for family absence, he/she will continue 
to receive the salary for the duration of the absence. 

20.  It is a matter for the authority to decide whether or not to make a substitute 
appointment. The elected member substituting for a senior salary holder taking 
family absence will be eligible to be paid a senior salary, if the authority so 
decides.    

21.  If the paid substitution results in the authority exceeding the maximum number 
of senior salaries which relates to it, as set out in the Panel's Annual Report, an 
addition to the maximum will be allowed for the duration of the substitution. 
However, this will not apply to the Isle of Anglesey or Merthyr Tydfil Councils if it 
would result in the number of senior salaries exceeding fifty percent of the 
Council membership. Specific approval of Welsh Ministers is required in such 
circumstances.   

22.  When a Council agrees a paid substitution for family absence, the Panel must 
be informed, within 14 days of the date of the decision, of the details including 
the particular post and the duration of the substitution.   

23.  The Council’s schedule of remuneration must be amended to reflect the 
implication of the family absence. 
 

National Park Authorities 

24.  The basic salary for NPA ordinary members should be £3,675 

Tudalen 225



57 
 

25.  The senior salary of the chair of an NPA should be £12,375 

26.  An NPA senior salary can be paid to a Deputy Chair and up to two committee 
chairs where there is significant and sustained responsibility. This can be paid 
at either of the following levels to be decided by the authority to reflect the 
appropriate responsibility: £6,075  or £7,375 
 

27.  The Panel has determined to include a provision for NPAs to apply for specific 
or additional senior salaries that do not fall within the current Remuneration 
Framework. 

28.  Members must not receive more than one NPA senior salary. 

29.  An NPA senior salary is paid inclusive of the NPA basic salary and must reflect 

significant and sustained responsibility 

30.  Members of a principal council in receipt of a Band 1 or Band 2 senior salary 

cannot receive a salary from any NPA to which they have been appointed. 

Fire and Rescue Authorities 

31.  The basic salary for FRA ordinary members should be £1,745  

32.  The senior salary of the chair of an FRA should be £10,445. 

33.  An FRA senior salary can be paid to the deputy chair and up to two chairs of 

committees where there is significant and sustained responsibility. This should 

be paid at £5,445. 

34.  The Panel has determined to include a provision for FRAs to apply for specific 

or additional senior salaries that do not fall within the current Remuneration 

Framework. 

35.  Members must not receive more than one FRA senior salary. 

36.  An FRA senior salary is paid inclusive of the FRA basic salary and must reflect 

significant and sustained responsibility. 

37.  Members of a principal council in receipt of a Band 1 or Band 2 senior salary 

cannot receive a salary from any FRA to which they have been nominated. 

Co-opted Members 

38.  Principal councils, NPAs and FRAs must pay the fees to co-opted members 

(who have voting rights) as set out in Table 6. 

39.  Reasonable time for pre meeting preparation is eligible to be included in claims 

made by co-opted members the extent of which can be determined by the 

appropriate officer in advance of the meeting.  

Tudalen 226



58 
 

40.  Travelling time to and from the place of the meeting can be included in the 

claims for payments made by co-opted members (up to the maximum of the 

daily rate). 

41.  The appropriate officer within the authority can determine in advance whether a 

meeting is programmed for a full day and the fee will be paid on the basis of this 

determination even if the meeting finishes before four hours has elapsed. 

42.  Meetings eligible for the payment of fees include other committees and working 

groups (including task and finish groups), pre-meetings with officers, training 

and attendance at conferences or any other formal meeting to which co-opted 

members are requested to attend. 

Reimbursement of Costs of Care 

43.  All authorities must provide for the reimbursement of necessary costs for the 

care of dependent children and adults (provided by informal or formal carers) 

and for personal assistance needs up to a maximum of £403 per month. 

Reimbursement must be for the additional costs incurred by members in order 

for them to carry out their approved duties.  Reimbursement shall only be made 

on production of receipts from the carer. 

Community and Town Councils 

44.  Community and town councils  must make a payment to each of their members 

of £150 per year for costs incurred in respect of telephone usage, information 

technology, consumables etc. 

45.  Community and town councils in Group A must make an annual payment of 

£500 each to a minimum of 1 and a maximum of 5 members in recognition of 

specific responsibilities. This is in addition to the £150 payment for costs and 

expenses. 

46.  Community and town councils in Groups B, C or D are authorised to make an 
annual payment of £500 each to up to 5 members in recognition of specific 
responsibilities. This is in addition to the £150 payment for costs and expenses 
if that is made. 

47.  Community and town councils are authorised to make payments to each of their 
members in respect of travel costs for attending approved duties. 10 Such 
payments must be the actual costs of travel by public transport or the HMRC 
mileage allowances as below: 

 45p per mile up to 10,000 miles in the year. 

 25p per mile over 10,000 miles. 

                                                             
10 Where a member who is on official business is driven by a third party (not a member or officer of that authority), the member 

can claim mileage at the prescribed rates plus any parking or toll fees provided the authority is satisfied that the member has 

incurred these costs. 
 

Tudalen 227



59 
 

 5p per mile per passenger carried on authority business. 

 24p per mile for private motor cycles. 

 20p per mile for bicycles. 
48.  

If a community or town council resolves that a particular duty requires an 
overnight stay, it may authorise reimbursement of subsistence expenses to its 
members at the maximum rates set out below on the basis of receipted claims: 
 

 £28 per 24-hour period allowance for meals, including breakfast where not 
provided. 

 £200 – London overnight. 

 £95 – elsewhere overnight. 

 £30 – staying with friends and/or family overnight 

49.  Community and town councils are authorised to pay financial loss 

compensation to each of their members, where such loss has actually occurred, 

for attending approved duties as follows: 

 Up to £34.00 for each period not exceeding 4 hours: 

 Up to £68.00 for each period exceeding 4 hours but not exceeding 24 

hours. 

50.  Community and town councils must provide for the reimbursement of necessary 

costs for the care of dependent children and adults (provided by informal or 

formal carers) and for personal assistance needs up to a maximum of £403 per 

month. Reimbursement must be for the additional costs incurred by members in 

order for them to carry out their approved duties.  Reimbursement shall only be 

made on production of receipts from the carer. 

51.  Community and town councils are authorised to provide a Civic Head payment 

to the mayor/chair of the council up to a maximum of £1,500 to undertake the 

functions of that office. This is in addition to the £150 payment for costs and 

expenses if that is made. 

52.  
Community and town councils are authorised to provide a Deputy Civic Head 
payment to the deputy mayor/deputy chair of the council up to a maximum 
amount of £500 to undertake the functions of that office. This is in addition to 
the £150 payment for costs and expenses if that is made. 

 

Tudalen 228



60 
 

Annex 2: Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales 
(IRPW) Regulations: 

 
a) for the remuneration of members and co-opted members of relevant  

authorities 
 

b) for functions relating to the salaries of Heads of Paid Service of 
Principal Councils and Fire and Rescue Authorities 
 

c) Chief officers of Principal Councils 
 
Introduction 

 
Part 8 (sections 141 to 160) and schedules 2 and 3 of the Local Government (Wales) 
Measure 2011 (the Measure) set out the arrangements for the payments and 
pensions for members of relevant authorities and the functions and responsibilities of 
the Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales (the Panel). 
 
Sections 62 to 67 of the Local Government (Democracy) (Wales) Act 2013 amends 
sections 142, 143, 144, 147, 148 and 151 of the Measure and confers additional 
powers on the Panel. 
 
The powers contained in part 8 and schedules 2 and 3 of the Measure (as amended) 
have replaced the following Statutory Instruments:  
 

 The Local Authorities (Allowances for Members of County and 
County Borough Councils and National Park Authorities) (Wales) 
Regulations 2002 (No. 1895 (W.196)). 

 

 The Local Authorities (Allowances for Members of Fire Authorities) 
(Wales) Regulations 2004 (No. 2555 (W.227)). 

 

 The Local Authorities (Allowances for Members) (Wales) Regulations 2007 
(No.1086 (W.115)). 

 
The Measure also has replaced the sections of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and the Local Government Act 2000 
relating to payments to councillors in Wales. 
 
Allowances for members of community and town councils are set out in Part 5 of 
these Regulations. The Local Authorities (Allowances for Members of Community 
Councils) (Wales) Regulations 2003 (No. 895(W.115)) were revoked from 1st April 
2013.  
 

Part 1  
 
General 
 

1. a. The short title of these Regulations is: “IRPW Regulations”. 
 

Tudalen 229



61 
 

b. The IRPW Regulations came into force on 1 April 2012. The 
implementation date for each of the relevant authorities is set out in the 
Annual Report or Supplementary Report of the Panel. 

 

c. Authorities are required to produce a schedule of payments to members 
and co-opted members no later than the 31st July each year, for 
submission to the Panel and publication (see paragraph 46).  

 
Interpretation 
 
2. In the IRPW Regulations: 
 

 “The 1972 Act” means the Local Government Act 1972. 

 “The 2000 Act” means the Local Government Act 2000. 

 “The 2013 Act” means the Local Government (Democracy) (Wales) Act 
2013. 

 “Allowance” means the actual or maximum amount which may be 
reimbursed to members and co-opted members of a relevant authority for 
expenses necessarily incurred when carrying out the official business of 
the relevant authority. 

 “Annual report” means a report produced by the Panel in accordance with 
section 145 of the Measure. 

 “Approved duty” in relation to community and town councils has the 
meaning as set out in Part 5 of these Regulations. 

 “Attendance Allowance” in relation to community or town councils has the 
meaning set out in Part 5 of these Regulations. 

 “Authority” means a relevant authority in Wales as defined in 
Section 144(2) of the Measure, and includes a local authority (county or 
county borough council), a national park authority and a Welsh fire and 
rescue authority, a community or town council. 

 “Basic Salary” has the same meaning as set out in paragraph 6 of these 
Regulations, and may be qualified as “LA Basic Salary” to refer to the 
basic salary of a member of a principal council; “NPA Basic Salary” to refer 
to the basic salary of a member of a national park authority; and “FRA 
Basic Salary” to refer to the basic salary of a member of a Welsh fire and 
rescue authority. 

 “Chief Officer” of a principal authority has the meaning as defined in the 
Localism Act 2011 

  “Civic Head” is the person elected by the council to carry out the functions 
of the chair of that council and is designated as mayor or chair. 

 “Committee” includes a sub-committee. 

 “Community or town council” means in relation to Part 8 of the Measure, a 
community council as defined in section 33 of the Local Government Act 
1972 or a town council in accord with section 245B of the same Act. 

Tudalen 230



62 
 

  “Consultation draft” means the draft of an Annual or Supplementary report 
under Section 146 (7) or 147(8) of the Measure, representations on which 
must be taken into account by the Panel. 

 “Constituent authority” – for national park authorities this is a local 
authority falling within the area of a national park authority; for Welsh fire 
and rescue authorities it is a local authority falling within the area of a fire 
and rescue authority. 

 “Controlling group” means a political group in a local authority where any 
of its members form part of the executive. 

 “Co-opted Member” has the meaning contained in section 144 (5) of the 
Measure, that is those with the right to vote on matters within the purview 
of the committee on which they serve. 

 “Co-opted Member fee” has the same meaning as set out in paragraph 19 
of these Regulations. 

 “Costs of Care” has the same meaning as set out in paragraph 21 of these 
Regulations. 

 “Democratic Services Committee” means the local authority committee 
established under section 11 of the Measure. 

 “Deputy Civic Head” is a person elected by the council to deputise for the 
mayor or chair of that council. 

 “Executive” means the executive of an authority in a form as specified in 
sections 11(2) to (5) of the 2000 Act, as amended by section 34 of the 
Measure. 

 “Executive arrangements” has the meaning given by section 10(1) of the 
2000 Act. 

 “Family absence” as defined in Section 142 (2) (b) of the Measure has the 
meaning given to it by Part 2 of the Measure, and contained in the 
Regulations relating thereto. 

 “Financial Loss Allowance in relation to community or town councils has 
the meaning as set out in Part 5 of the Regulations. 

 “Fire and rescue authority” means an authority constituted by a scheme 
under section 2 of the Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004 or a scheme to 
which section 4 of that Act applies.  

 “Head of paid service” means as designated under section 4(1) of the 
Local Government and Housing Act 1989. 

 Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee means a committee or sub 
committee set up by two or more principal councils under the Local 
Authority (Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committees) (Wales) Regulations 
2013.  

 “Largest opposition group” means a political group other than a controlling 
group which has a greater number of members than any other political 
group in the authority. 

Tudalen 231



63 
 

 “Local authority” means a county or county borough council. 

 “Member” means in respect of a local authority or a community or town 
council a person who has been elected to serve as a councillor for that 
authority; for a national park authority means a member appointed by a 
constituent authority and also a person appointed by Welsh Ministers; for 
Welsh fire and rescue authorities means a member appointed by a 
constituent authority. 

 “National Park Authority” means a national park authority established 
under section 63 of the Environment Act 1995. 

 “Official business” has the meaning contained in Section 142 (10) of the 
Measure in relation to the payment of allowances for care, travel and 
subsistence as reimbursement of expenses necessarily incurred by 
members and co-opted members of a relevant authority (excluding 
community and town councils) when: 

 
a. Attending a meeting of the authority or any committee of the authority 

or any body to which the authority makes appointments or nominations 
or of any committee of such a body. 

b. Attending a meeting of any association of authorities of which the 
authority is a member. 

c. Attending a meeting the holding of which is authorised by the authority 
or by a committee of the authority or by a joint committee of the 
authority and one or more other authorities. 

d. Attending any training or development event approved by the authority 
or its executive. 

e. A duty undertaken for the purpose of or in connection with the 
discharge of the functions of an executive within the meaning of Part 2 
of the 2000 Act, as amended.  

f. A duty undertaken in pursuance of a standing order which requires a 
member or members to be present when tender documents are 
opened. 

g. A duty undertaken in connection with the discharge of any function of 
the authority to inspect or authorise the inspection of premises. 

h. A duty undertaken by members of principal councils in connection with 
constituency or ward responsibilities which arise from the discharge of 
local authority functions. 

i. Any other duty approved by the authority, or any duty of class so 
approved, undertaken for the purpose of, or in connection with, the 
discharge of the functions of the authority or any of its committees. 

 

 “Other political group” means a political group other than a controlling 
group or the largest opposition group (if any) which comprises not less 
than ten per cent of the members of that authority. 

Tudalen 232



64 
 

 “Overview and Scrutiny Committee” means a committee of the authority 
which has the powers set out in sections 21(2) and (3) of the 2000 Act, as 
amended by Part 6 of the Measure.  

 “Panel” means the Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales as set out 
in section 141(1) and schedule 2 of the Measure. 

  “Pay policy statement” means a statement produced by a relevant 
authority under section 38 of the Localism Act 2011. 

 “Presiding Member” means a member of a principal council who has been 
designated by that council to carry out functions in relation to the chairing 
of its meetings and proceedings.  

 “Principal council” means a county or county borough council. 

 “Proper officer” has the same meaning as in section 270(3) of the 
1972 Act. 

 “Public body” means a body as defined in section 67(b) of the 2013 Act. 

 “Qualifying provision” means a provision that makes a variation to a 
previous decision of the Panel. (Section 65 (c) of the 2013 Act). 

 “Qualifying relevant authority” is an authority within the meaning of section 
63 of the 2013 Act, required to produce a pay policy statement. 

 “Relevant authority” is set out in Section 144(2) of the Measure (as 
amended) and in section 64 of the 2013 Act and, for the purposes of these 
Regulations, includes a local authority/principal council, a community or 
town council, a national park authority and a Welsh fire and rescue 
authority. 

 “Relevant matters” are as defined in Section 142(2) of the Measure. 

 “Schedule” means a list setting out the authority’s decisions in respect of 
payments to be made during the year (as relating to that authority) to all 
members and co-opted members of that authority. 

 “Senior Salary” has the same meaning as set out in paragraph 11 of these 
Regulations and may be qualified as “Local Authority/Principal council 
Senior Salary” to refer to the senior salary of a member of a principal 
council; “National Park Senior Salary” to refer to the senior salary of a 
member of a national park authority; or “Fire and Rescue authority Senior 
Salary” to refer to the senior salary of a member of a Fire and Rescue 
authority. 

 “Sickness absence” means the arrangements as set out in the Annual 
Report. 

 “Supplementary report” has the meaning contained in section 146(4 to 8) 
of the Measure. 

 “Travelling and subsistence allowance” has the same meaning as set out 
in paragraph 25 of these Regulations. 

 “Year” has the following meanings: 
 

Tudalen 233



65 
 

“financial year” – the period of twelve months ending 31 March; 
 

“calendar year” – the period of twelve months ending 31 December;  
 

“municipal year” – the year commencing on the date of the annual meeting 
of the local authority and ending the day before the annual meeting of the 
following year; for national park authorities and Welsh fire and rescue 
authorities it is the period of up to twelve months following the annual 
meeting of the authority. 

 

 
 
Part 2: Schedule of member/co-opted member remuneration  
 
Commencement of term of office 
 
3. The term of office of:  
 

 A member of a local authority or community or town council begins 4days 
following the election subject to making the declaration of acceptance of 
that office under section 83(1) of the 1972 Act. 

 A councillor member of a national park authority begins on the date on 
which that member is appointed as such by a constituent authority and the 
term of office of a Welsh Government appointed member begins on the 
date of that appointment. The term of office of the chair and deputy chair 
of the national park authority begins on the date of election by that 
authority to that office. 

 A councillor member of a Welsh fire and rescue authority begins on the 
date on which that member is appointed as such by a constituent authority 
and the term of office of the chair and deputy chair of the fire and rescue 
authority begins on the date of election by that authority to that office. 

 A co-opted member of a relevant authority begins on the date of 
appointment by the relevant authority. 

 
Schedule of member remuneration (the Schedule) (does not apply to 
community or town councils – see Part 5) 
 

4. An authority must produce annually, a schedule of payments it intends to 
make to its members and co-opted members. The amount of those payments 
must accord with the Panel’s determinations made for that year in its Annual 
or Supplementary Reports. The Schedule must be produced no later than four 
weeks following the annual meeting of the authority. 

 
Amendment to the Schedule  
 

5. An authority may amend the Schedule at any time during the year (as relating 
to the authority) provided that such amendments accord with the Panel’s 
determinations for that year. 

 

Tudalen 234



66 
 

Basic salary 
 

6. An authority must provide for the payment of a basic salary, as determined by 
the Panel in its Annual or Supplementary Reports, to each of its members. 
The amount of the salary must be the same for each member. For principal 
councils only, this salary remains payable during a period of family absence. 

 
7. A member may not receive more than one basic salary from a relevant 

authority, but a member of one relevant authority may receive a further basic 
salary by being appointed as a member of another relevant authority (except 
in the case as indicated in paragraph 16). 

 
8. The amount of the basic salary will be set in accordance with Section 142(3) 

of the Measure and will be one of the following: 
 

 The amount the authority must pay to a member of the authority. 

 The maximum amount that the authority may pay to a member of the 
authority. 

 
9. Where the term of office of a member begins or ends other than at the 

beginning or end of the year (as relating to the authority), the entitlement of 
that member is to such proportion of the basic salary as the number of days 
during which the member’s term of office subsists during that year bears to 
the number of days in that year. 

 
10. Where a member is suspended or partially suspended from being a member 

of an authority (Part 3 of the 2000 Act refers) the part of the basic salary 
payable to that member in respect of the responsibilities or duties from which 
that member is suspended or partially suspended must be withheld by the 
authority (Section 155(1) of the Measure). 

 
Senior salary 
 
11. Subject to paragraphs 12 to 18 an authority can make payments of a 

senior salary to members that it has given specific responsibilities. Such 
payments must accord with the Panel’s determination for the year (as relating 
to the authority) that the payments are made and must be set out in the 
Schedule of that authority. For principal councils only, a senior salary will 
remain payable during the family absence of the office holder. 

 
12. The Panel will prescribe in its Annual or Supplementary Reports the following: 
 

 The categories of members eligible for the payment of a senior salary 
which may not be the same for all authorities or categories of authorities. 

 The discretion available to authorities in relation to the payment of  
senior salaries which may not be the same for all authorities or categories 
of authorities. 

 

Tudalen 235



67 
 

13. The amount of the senior salaries payable will be in accordance with 
section 142(3) of the Measure and specify: 

 

 The amount that a relevant authority must pay to a member of the  
authority. 

 The maximum amount that a relevant authority may pay to a member of 
the authority. 

 
14. The Senior Salary will comprise an amalgam of the basic salary and an  

additional amount for the relevant specific responsibility determined by the 
Panel in its Annual or Supplementary Reports. This may not be the same for 
all authorities or categories of authorities. 

 
15. The Panel in its Annual or Supplementary Reports will determine either the 

maximum proportion of its membership or the total number of members that 
an authority can pay as senior salaries. The percentage may not exceed fifty 
percent without the express approval of Welsh Ministers (Section 142(5) of 
the Measure). For principal councils only, the maximum proportion or number 
may be exceeded to include payment of a senior salary to an additional 
member who is appointed to provide temporary cover for the family absence 
of a senior salary office holder (subject to the 50% limit). 

 
15(a). For principal councils, Fire and Rescue Authorities and National Park 

Authorities the maximum proportion or number may be exceeded to include 
the payment of a senior salary to an additional member who is appointed to 
provide temporary cover for the sickness absence of a senior salary holder as 
determined in the Annual Report or a Supplementary Report. 

 
15(b). Payments to chairs of Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committees or Sub 

Committees are additional to the maximum proportion of its membership that 
an authority can pay as senior salaries subject to the overall maximum of fifty 
percent as contained in Section 142(5) of the Measure. The Panel will 
determine the amounts of such payments in an Annual or Supplementary 
Report. 

 
16. An authority must not pay more than one senior salary to any member. A 

principal council member in receipt of a senior salary as leader or executive 
member of a local authority (determined as full-time by the Panel) may not 
receive a second salary as a member appointed to serve on a national park 
authority or a Welsh fire and rescue authority. 

 
16(a). Paragraph 16 does not apply to payments made to a chair of a Joint Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee or Sub Committee who is in receipt of a senior salary 
for a role that is not classified as full time equivalent. It continues to apply to 
leaders or members of the executive.  

 
17. Where a member does not have, throughout the year specific responsibilities 

that allow entitlement to a senior salary, that member’s payment is to be such 
proportion of the salary as the number of days during which that member has 
such special responsibility bears to the number of days in that year. 

Tudalen 236



68 
 

 
18. Where a member is suspended or partially suspended from being a member 

of the authority (Part 3 of the 2000 Act refers) the authority must not make 
payments of the member’s senior salary for the duration of the suspension 
(Section 155(1) of the Measure). If the partial suspension relates only to the 
specific responsibility element of the payment, the member may retain the 
basic salary. 

 
Co-opted member payment 
 

19. A relevant authority must provide for the payment of a fee to a co-opted 
member as determined by the Panel in its Annual or Supplementary Reports. 
In relation to this regulation ‘co-opted member’ means a member as 
determined in Section 144(5) of the Measure and set out in paragraph 2 of 
these Regulations. 

 
20. Where a co-opted member is suspended or partially suspended from an 

authority (Part 3 of the 2000 Act refers) the authority must not make payment 
of a co-opted member fee for the duration of the suspension (Section 155(1) 
of the Measure). 

 
Allowances 
 
Costs of Care  

 
21. Authorities must provide for the payment to members and co-opted members 

of an authority the reimbursement in respect of such expenses of arranging 
the care of children or dependants or for the individual member as are 
necessarily incurred in carrying out official business as a member or co-opted 
member of that authority. Payments under this paragraph must not be made: 

 

 In respect of any child over the age of fifteen years or dependant unless 
the member/co-opted member satisfies the authority that the child or 
dependant required supervision which has caused the member to incur 
expenses that were necessary in respect of the care of that child or 
dependant in the carrying out of the duties of a member or co-opted 
member. 

 To more than one member/co-opted member of the authority in relation to 
the care of the same child or dependant. 

 Of more than one reimbursement for care to a member or co-opted 
member of the authority who is unable to demonstrate to the satisfaction of 
the authority that the member/co-opted member has to make separate 
arrangements for the care of different children or dependants. 

22. The maximum amount of the cost of care payable by an authority is to be 
determined by the Panel in its Annual or Supplementary Reports. 

 

23. Where a member/co-opted member is suspended or partially suspended from 
being a member or co-opted member of the authority (Part 3 of the 2000 Act 

Tudalen 237



69 
 

refers) the part of the reimbursement of the cost of care payable to that 
member/co-opted member in receipt of the responsibilities or duties from 
which that member/co-opted member is suspended or partially suspended 
must be withheld by the authority (Section 155(1) of the Measure). 

 
24. An authority’s Schedule must stipulate the maximum amount of the 

reimbursement of costs of care payable each month and its arrangements for 
making claims, taking full account of the Panel’s determinations in this 
respect. 

 
 
Travel and subsistence allowances 
 
25. Subject to paragraphs 26 and 27 below a member or co-opted member is 

entitled to receive payments from the authority by way of travelling and 
subsistence allowances at rates determined by the Panel in its Annual or 
Supplementary Reports. Such allowances are in respect of expenditure 
incurred by a member or co-opted member in the performance of the official 
business of the authority. 

 
(Paragraphs 26 & 27 apply only to principal councils) 
 
26. Payment of a subsistence allowance to a local authority member for the 

performance of official business within the boundaries of a county or county 
borough where s/he is a member should only be made when the authority is 
satisfied that it can be justified on economic grounds. This does not apply in 
respect of co-opted members of a local authority who live outside that 
authority. 

 
27. A local authority may make provision, subject to any limitations it thinks fit, 

for members to claim mileage expenses for official business in connection 
with constituency or ward responsibilities where they arise out of the 
discharge of the functions of the county or county borough. 

 
28. Where a member or co-opted member is suspended or partially suspended 

from being a member or co-opted member of the authority (Part 3 of the 2000 
Act refers), travelling and subsistence allowances payable to that member/co-
opted member in respect of the responsibilities or duties from which that 
member is suspended or partially suspended must be withheld by the 
authority (Section 155(1) of the Measure). 

 

Part 3: Further provisions 
 
Pensions 
 

29. Under Section 143 of the Measure, the Panel may make determinations in 
respect of pension arrangements for local authority members in its Annual or 
Supplementary Reports. Such determinations may: 

 

Tudalen 238



70 
 

 Describe the description of members for whom a local authority will be 
required to pay a pension. 

 Describe the relevant matters in respect of which a local authority will be 
required to pay a pension. 

 Make different decisions for different principal councils. 
 
 
Allowances to support the function of a local authority member 
 

30. A local authority must provide for the requirements of a member to undertake 
their role and responsibilities more effectively. The way in which this support 
should be provided is determined by the Panel in its Annual or Supplementary 
Reports. 

 
Payment of expenses for official and courtesy visits 
 
31. The arrangements contained in Section 176 of the Local Government 

Act 1972 will continue to apply but no payment may be made to a person 
under that arrangement when a payment has been made to that person 
pursuant to any payment made under these Regulations. 

 
 
Arrangements in relation to family absence 
 

32. Part 2 of the Measure sets out the rights of local authority members in relation 
to family absence. The Panel will set out its determinations and the 
administrative arrangements in relation to the payment of salaries and 
allowances by principal councils in this respect in its Annual or Supplementary 
Reports. 

 
Sickness Absence 
 

32(a)  Arrangements in respect of the long term sickness absence of senior salary 
holders of principal authorities, Fire and Rescue Authorities and National Park 
Authorities will be as set out in the Panel’s Annual Report or Supplementary 
Report. 

 

Part 4: Salaries, allowances or fees 
 
Repayment of salaries, allowances or fees 
 

33. An authority must require that such part of a salary, allowance or fee be 
repaid where payment has already been made in respect of any period during 
which the member or co-opted member concerned: 

 

 is suspended or partially suspended from that member’s/co-opted 
member’s duties or responsibilities in accordance with Part 3 of the 
2000 Act or Regulations made under that Act. 

Tudalen 239



71 
 

 ceases to be a member or co-opted member of the authority. 

 or in any way is not entitled to receive a salary, allowance or fee in respect 
of that period. 

 
Forgoing salaries, allowances or fees 
 

34. Under Section 154 of the Measure, any member or co-opted member may by 
notice in writing to the proper officer of the authority elect to forgo any part of 
their entitlement to a salary, allowance or fee under the determination of the 
Panel for that particular year (as relating to the authority). 

 

Part 5: Specific provisions relating to community and town 
councils (“the council”) 
 
Interpretation 
 

35. For the purposes of this Part the term member means both an elected 
member and a co-opted member. 

 
Allowances 
 
36. Allowances: 
 

a) The council can if it so determines make an annual payment to members 
in respect of costs incurred in carrying out the role of a member. The 
maximum amount payable will be set out in the Annual or 
Supplementary Report of the Panel. 

b) The council can if it so determines make payments to members in respect 
of costs of travel for attending approved duties inside or outside the area 
of the council. The amounts claimable will be set out in the Annual or 
Supplementary Report of the Panel. 

c) The council can if it so determines reimburse subsistence expenses to its 
members when attending approved duties inside or outside the area of the 
council. The arrangements for reimbursement will be set out in the Annual 
or Supplementary Report of the Panel. 

d) The council can if it so determines pay compensation for Financial Loss to 
its members where such loss has occurred for attending approved duties 
outside the area of the council. The Allowances will be set out in the 
Annual or Supplementary Report of the Panel. 

e) The council can if it so determines pay an allowance to the chair or mayor 
of the council for the purposes of undertaking the role of that office. The 
allowance will be set out in the Annual or Supplementary Report of the 
Panel 

f) The council can if it so determines pay a responsibility allowance to a 
number of its members as stipulated in the Annual Report of the Panel. 

 

Tudalen 240



72 
 

g) The council if it so determines reimburse the costs of care to a member as 
stipulated in the Annual Report of the Panel. 

 
37. A member may elect to forgo any part of an entitlement to an allowance under 

these Regulations by giving notice in writing to the proper officer of the 
council. 

 
38. A member making a claim for compensation for Financial Loss must sign a 

statement that the member has not made and will not make any other claim in 
respect of the matter to which the claim relates. 

 
39.  “Approved Duty” under this Part means  

i. Attendance at a meeting of the council or of any committee or sub-
committee of the council or of any other body to which the council makes 
appointments or nominations or of any committee or sub-committee of 
such a body. 

ii. Attendance at any other meeting the holding of which is authorised by the 
council or a committee or sub-committee of the council, or a joint 
committee of the council and one or more councils, or a sub-committee of 
such a joint committee provided that at least two members of the council 
have been invited and where the council is divided into political groupings 
at least two such groups have been invited. 

iii. Attendance at a meeting of any association of councils of which the 
council is a member. 

iv. Attendance at any training or development event approved by the council. 

v. Any other duty approved the council or duty of a class approved by the 
council for the discharge of its functions or any of its committees or 
sub-committees. 

 

 
Part 6: Miscellaneous 
 
Arrangements for payments 
 
40. The Schedule of an authority must set out the arrangements for the payment 

of salaries, allowances and fees to all members and co-opted members of that 
authority. Such payments may be made at such times and at such intervals as 
determined by the authority. 

 
Claims 
 
41. An authority must specify a time limit from the date on which an entitlement to 

travelling or subsistence allowance arises during which a claim for those 
allowances must be made by the person to whom they are payable. However, 
this does not prevent an authority from making a payment where the 
allowance is not claimed within the period specified. 

 

Tudalen 241



73 
 

42. Any claim for payment of travelling or subsistence allowance in accordance 
with these Regulations (excluding claims for travel by private motor vehicle) 
shall be accompanied by appropriate receipts proving actual expenses. 

 
Avoidance of duplication 
 

43. A claim for a payment of travelling allowance or subsistence allowance must 
include, or be accompanied by, a statement signed by the member or co-
opted member that the member/co-opted member has not made and will not 
make any other claim in respect of the matter to which the claim relates. 

 
Records of salaries, allowances and fees 
 
44. An authority must keep a record of the payments made in accordance with 

these Regulations. Such record must: 
 

 Specify the name of the recipient and the amount and nature of each 
payment. 

 Be available, at all reasonable times, for inspection (without charge) by 
any local government elector (within the meaning of section 270(1) of the 
1972 Act) for the area of the authority. 

 Allow a person who is entitled to inspect the record to make a copy of any 
part of it upon payment of such reasonable fee as the authority may 
require. 

 
Publicity requirements  

 
(The required content of publicity requirements is contained in an annex to the 
Annual Report) 
 
45. An authority must, as soon as practicable after determining its Schedule of 

Remuneration for the year under these Regulations and any Report of the 
Panel and not later than 31 July of the year to which the Schedule refers, 
make arrangements for the Schedule’s publication within the authority’s area. 
(This section does not apply to community and town councils). 

 
46. As soon as practicable and no later than 30 September following the end of a 

year an authority must make arrangements for the publication within the 
authority’s area, the total sum paid by it to each member/co-opted member in 
respect of basic salary, senior salary, co-opted member fee, reimbursement of 
costs of care, travel and subsistence allowances. (This section applies to all 
relevant authorities). 

 
47. In the same timescale and in the same manner, a local authority must make 

arrangements for the publication of any further remuneration received by a 
member nominated or appointed to another relevant authority. (This section 
applies only to principal councils). 

 
 

Tudalen 242



74 
 

Publicising the reports of the Panel 
 

48. Under Section 146(7) (a) and (b) of the Measure, the Panel will send a 
consultation draft of its Annual Report or Supplementary Report to all relevant 
authorities for circulation to authority members and co-opted members, so that 
representations can be made by members/co-opted members to the Panel, 
normally in a period of eight weeks. 

 
49. The Panel will determine in its Annual or Supplementary Reports the 

arrangements publicising its Reports in accordance with Section 151 and 152 
of the Measure. 

 
Monitoring compliance with the Panel’s determinations 
 
50. Section 153 of the Measure determines that relevant authorities must comply 

with the requirements imposed by the Panel in its Annual Reports. It also 
empowers the Panel to monitor the payments made by relevant authorities 
and for it to require the provision of information that it specifies. The 
requirements under this section will be set out in the Annual Report of the 
Panel. 

 

Tudalen 243



75 
 

Annex 3: Schedule of member remuneration 

 
1. Principal councils, national park authorities (NPAs) and Welsh fire and rescue 

authorities (FRAs) (but not community and town councils) must maintain an 
annual Schedule of Member Remuneration (the ‘Schedule’) which is in accord 
with the Panel’s determinations on member salary and co-opted member 
payments and which must contain the following information: 
 

In respect of a principal council: 
 

a. Named members who are to receive only the basic salary and the amount 
to be paid. 

b. Named members who are to receive a Band 1 and Band 2 senior salary, 
the office and portfolio held and the amount to be paid. 

c. Named members who are to receive a Band 3, Band 4 and Band 5 senior 
salary, the office and portfolio held and the amount to be paid. 

d. Named members who are to receive a civic salary and the amount to be 
paid. 

e. Named members who are to receive the co-opted member fee and whether 
chair or ordinary member and the amount to be paid. 

f. Named members who are to receive a senior salary as a chair of a Joint 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee or Sub Committee and the amount to 
be paid. 
 

g. Named members in receipt of a specific or additional senior salary 
approved by the Panel and the amount to be paid.  
 
 

In respect of National Park and Fire and Rescue Authorities: 
 

a.  Named members who are to receive a basic salary and the amount to be 
paid. 
 

b.  Named member who is to receive a senior salary as a chair of the 
authority and the amount to be paid. 
 

c.  Named members who are to receive a senior salary as deputy chair of a 
committee and the amount to be paid. 
 

d.  Named members who are to receive the co-opted member fee and 
whether a chair or ordinary member and the amounts to be paid. 

 
2. Amendments made to the Schedule during the municipal year must be 

communicated to the Panel as soon as it is practicable. 
 
3. Principal councils must confirm in their annual Schedule that the maximum 

limit of senior salaries set for the council has not been exceeded. 

Tudalen 244



76 
 

 
4. Principal councils, NPAs and FRAs must include a statement of allowable 

expenses and the duties for which they may be claimed for care, travel and 
subsistence in their annual Schedule which is in accord with the Panel’s 
determinations. 

 
5. The Schedule must set out the arrangements for the payment of salaries, 

allowances and fees to all members and co-opted members of the relevant 
authority (IRPW Regulation 35); arrangements for making claims for care, 
travel and subsistence expenses (IRPW Regulations 24 and 36-37); 
arrangements for the avoidance of duplication (IRPW Regulation 38) and 
arrangements for re-payment of salaries, allowances and fees (IRPW 
Regulation 33). This schedule must also include the duties for which members 
and co-opted members are able to claim travel, subsistence and 
reimbursement of care costs. 

 
6. Principal councils must declare in the Schedule whether: 
 

 A statement of the basic responsibility of a councillor is in place. 

 Role descriptors of senior salary office holders are in place. 

 Records are kept of councillor attendance. 

7. Principal councils, NPAs and FRAs must make arrangements for the 
publication of the Schedule of Member Remuneration as soon as practicable 
after its determination and no later than 31 July of the year to which it applies. 
This should be sent to the Panel no later than this date. The Schedule should 
be published in a manner that provides ready access for members of the 
public. 

 
8.  The Schedule must also be sent to the Panel Secretariat to be received by 31 

July. 
 

Tudalen 245



77 
 

Annex 4: Publication of Remuneration – the Panel’s 
Requirements 

 
In accordance with Section 151 of the Measure the Panel requires that: 
 

1. Relevant authorities must publish a Statement of Payments made to its 
members (including chairs of JOSCs or sub-committees of JOSCs). This 
information must be published in a form and location that is easily accessible 
to members of the public no later than 30 September following the end of the 
year to which the payments relate and in the same timescale also provided to 
the Panel. The following information must be provided: 

 
a. The amount of basic salary, senior salary, civic salary and co-opted 

member fee paid to each named member/co-opted member of the relevant 
authority, including where the member had chosen to forego all or part of 
the salary, or fee for the municipal year in question. Where a senior salary 
has been paid, the title of the senior office held is to be provided. 

b. The payments made by community and town councils to named members 
as: 
 

 Payments in respect of telephone usage, information technology, 
consumables etc. 

 Responsibility payments 

 Allowances made to a mayor/chair and deputy mayor/deputy chair 

 Compensation for Financial Loss 

 Costs incurred in respect of travel and subsistence 

 Reimbursement of the costs of care (see paragraph f below) 
 

c. All travel and subsistence expenses, reimbursement of the costs of care 
(see paragraph f below) and other payments received by each named 
member and co-opted member of the relevant authority, with each 
category identified separately.  

d. The amount of any further payments received by any named member 
nominated to, or appointed by, another relevant authority or other public 
body as defined by Section 67 of the Local Government (Democracy) 
(Wales) Act 2013, namely: 

 a local health board 

 a police and crime panel 

 a relevant authority  

 a body designated as a public body in an order made by the Welsh 
Ministers. 

e. Names of members who did not receive basic or senior salary because 
they were suspended for all or part of the annual period to which the 
Schedule applies. 

 

Tudalen 246



78 
 

f. In respect of the publication of the reimbursement of the costs of care, the 
Panel has decided to provide relevant authorities with two options. 
 
1) The details of the amounts reimbursed to named members; or 
2) The total amount reimbursed by the authority during the year but not 

attributed to any named member. 
 

It is a matter for each authority to decide which of these options for 
publication it considers appropriate.  

 
It is also the responsibility of each authority to establish its own position 
on how to respond to any Freedom of Information requests it receives with 
regards to reimbursement of costs of care.  

 
 

2. Nil returns are required to be published and provided to the Panel by 30 

September. 

 

  
  

 

  

Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales 
Room N.03 
First Floor 
Crown Buildings 
Cathay’s Park 
Cardiff 
CF10 3NQ 
 
Telephone: 0300 0251057 
E-mail irpmailbox@gov.wales 
 
The Report and other information about the Panel and its work are available on 
our website at: 
www.remunerationpanelwales.org.uk 
 

 

Tudalen 247

http://www.remunerationpanelwales.org.uk/


Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Date of Meeting Tuesday 24th October, 2017

Report Subject Reappointment of Town and Community Council 
Representative to the Standards Committee

Report Author Chief Officer (Governance)

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The term of office for the Town and Community Representative came to an end with 
the local elections in May.  A report was presented at the Annual Meeting of the 
Council in May and the Standards Committee in July recommending that Councillor 
Duggan-Keen, the current representative, be reappointed for a further term.  

Before making the reappointment Council needed to consult the town and 
community councils on the proposal.  That consultation was undertaken and no 
council disagreed with the proposal therefore it can go ahead.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That the Council notes that no town or community council has objected to 
the reappointment of Councillor Duggan-Keen.
 

2 That Council reappoints Councillor Duggan-Keen. 

Tudalen 249

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 12



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 REAPPOINTMENT 

1.01 At the Annual Meeting of the County Council it was agreed:
1. to reappoint Councillor Duggan-Keen to the Standards Committee 

subject to consultation with Town and Community Councils; and
2. for Councillor Duggan-Keen to continue in position during the 

consultation.  

1.02 The Monitoring Officer consulted with the Town and Community Councils, 
asking for their observations on the reappointment.  The following 
responses were received:

 Halkyn - no observations
 Whitford – do not object to the appointment

1.03 A copy of the consultation email to Town and Community Councils was also 
sent to One Voice Wales, who did not object to his re-appointment.

1/04 The Standards Committee at its meeting in July recommended the 
reappointment of Councillor Duggan-Keen.  ` 

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 None.

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 Consultation with Town and Community Councils was carried out following 
the Annual Meeting of Council in May the results of which were reported to 
the Standards Committee in July.

4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 None.

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 None.

Tudalen 250



6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 Report of the Monitoring Officer to the Annual Meeting of the Council and 
Standards Committee in July

Contact Officer: Gareth Owens, Monitoring Officer
Telephone: 01352 702344
E-mail: gareth.legal@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 None.

Tudalen 251

mailto:gareth.legal@flintshire.gov.uk


Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Date of Meeting Tuesday, 24th October 2017

Report Subject Appointments to Outside Bodies

Report Author Chief Officer (Governance)

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Appointments to Outside Bodies list was last reported to the Annual Meeting. 
Nominations were made to all but one of the bodies on the list, which is attached. 
Of the current vacancies, some of those relate to the late Councillor Ron Hampson. 
There was one body where Group Leaders, in consultation with the Chief Executive 
were unable to make a nomination and so it remains as a vacancy.

All appointments will run until May 2022.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That the Council notes the current Outside Bodies list which is attached as 
appendix A

2 That where any vacancies remain unfilled these should be removed from 
the Outside Bodies list.

Tudalen 253

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 13



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 EXPLAINING THE OUTSIDE BODIES LIST

1.01 The County Council maintains a list of the Members whom it nominates to 
serve on a number of outside bodies. Following on from the Annual Meeting, 
the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Group Leaders made 
appointments to all but one outside body.

1.02 We have previously recognised that it may not be possible to make 
nominations to all of the outside bodies: nominations have tended to be 
because individual members have specialist knowledge or experience 
which enables them to make a meaningful contribution to that organisation. 
As effective links exist between that organisation and the Council’s officers, 
it is suggested that representation at Member level may not be required for 
all organisations the time being. There is one vacancy where we have not 
been able to make a nomination. This is the North Wales Association for the 
deaf. It is recognised that Members already have a huge number of 
conflicting demands on their time.

1.03 There are a number of vacancies which were previously filled by the late 
Councillor Ron Hampson. These are ward related and will be filled following 
the Buckley Bistre West by election.

1.04 All appointments made this year will run until May 2022.

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 None arising directly from this report. 

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 Consultation has been carried out with Group Leaders.

4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 The Outside Bodies list Is regularly reviewed to ensure that our 
representation is appropriate and effective. Anti-poverty, environment and 
equalities issues are borne in mind where applicable.

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 Appendix 1 - Current Outside Bodies list.

Tudalen 254



6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 None, other than the attached.

Contact Officer: Robert Robins, Democratic Services 
Telephone: 01352 702320
E-mail: robert.robins@flintshire.gov.uk 

7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 Outside Bodies: organisations outside the Council onto which Flintshire 
nominates Members.

Mersey-Dee Alliance (MDA): the partnership between the public sector in 
North East Wales and North West England to “work together on common 
strategic interests to ensure a sustainable future for the area and facilitate a 
coherent approach to social, economic and environmental issues.”

Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) This body represents the 
interests of local government and promotes local democracy in Wales. It 
represents the 22 local authorities in Wales and the 3 fire and rescue 
authorities and 3 national park authorities are associate members. The 
WLGA's primary purposes are to promote better local government and its 
reputation and to support authorities in the development of policies and 
priorities which will improve public services and democracy.

Tudalen 255

mailto:robert.robins@flintshire.gov.uk


Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



1

MEMBERSHIP  
   OF

OUTSIDE BODIES

Civic & Members Services
Corporate Services
County Hall      
Mold               
Flintshire         
CH7 6NR         

Karen Jones / Lesley Wood (01352) 702151
Robert Robins (01352) 702320 Amended on 12th September 2017 

T
udalen 257



2

 

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
MEMBERSHIP OF OUTSIDE BODIES

OUTSIDE BODY NO. OF 
SEATS

 COUNCILLOR 
REPRESENTATIVES

CABINET 
MEMBER

TERM
OF OFFICE

CONTACT DETAILS

Area of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty Partnership

3 Paul Cunningham, Colin Legg & 
Owen Thomas
Substitutes: 
Mared Eastwood

Until 
May 2022

Karen Holthofer & Howard Sutcliffe 
Clwydian Range & Dee Valley AONB 
Loggerheads Country Park 
Nr Mold 
Denbighshire CH7 5LH
Tel No: 01352 811010/810614
Email:karen.holthofer@denbighshire.gov.
uk
 & howard.sutcliffe@denbighshire.gov.uk 

Argoed Sports Association
2

Local Members: Mared 
Eastwood & Hilary McGuill

Until 
May 2022

Mrs. Joan Bellis
Secretary
Argoed Sports Association
34 Tir Wat, Mynydd Isa
Mold, 
Flintshire CH7 6SD
Tel: 01244 549156
Email:joan.bellis@talktalk.net

Arts Council of Wales 1 + 1
Officer

Mared Eastwood Until
May 2022

Miss. Helen Williams,
PA to Director of Enterprise and 
Regeneration,
Arts Council for Wales,
Princes Park II,
Princes’ Drive,
Colwyn Bay, LL29 8PL
Tel: 01492 539758/07814646030
Email:Helen.williams@artswales.org.uk

T
udalen 258



3

OUTSIDE BODY NO. OF 
SEATS

 COUNCILLOR 
REPRESENTATIVES

CABINET 
MEMBER

TERM
OF OFFICE

CONTACT DETAILS

Association for Public Service 
Excellence
(APSE)

1 + 1
Officer

Andrew Dunbobbin Until 
May 2022

Mr. Wayne Priestley, Principal Adviser
Ass. for Public Service Excellence,
2nd Floor Washbrook Hs.,
Lancastrian Office Centre
32 Talbot Road,
Old Trafford, Manchester, M32 0FP.
Tel: 0161 772 1810
Email: wpriestley@apse.org.uk

Association for Public Service 
Excellence
(APSE) Service 
Transformation Strategic 
Forum

1 Andrew Dunbobbin Until 
May 2022

Mr. Wayne Priestley, Principal Adviser
Ass. for Public Service Excellence,
2nd Floor Washbrook Hs.,
Lancastrian Office Centre
32 Talbot Road,
Old Trafford, Manchester M32 0FP.
Tel: 0161 772 1810
Email: wpriestley@apse.org.uk

Association for Public Service 
Excellence
(APSE)  Wales Housing & 
Building Maintenance 
Advisory Group

1 Andrew Dunbobbin

 

Until 
May 2022

Mr. Wayne Priestley, Principal Adviser
Ass. for Public Service Excellence,
2nd Floor Washbrook Hs.,
Lancastrian Office Centre
32 Talbot Road,
Old Trafford, Manchester M32 0FP.
Tel: 0161 772 1810
Email: wpriestley@apse.org.uk

Bangor University 1 Cabinet Member for Education: 
Ian Roberts

Yes Until 
May 2022

Lynne Hughes,
Planning & Governance Office 
Bangor University,
Bangor,
Gwynedd, LL57 2DG
Tel: 01248 382776
Email: l.hughes@bangor.ac.uk

T
udalen 259



4

OUTSIDE BODY NO. OF 
SEATS

 COUNCILLOR 
REPRESENTATIVES

CABINET 
MEMBER

TERM
OF OFFICE

CONTACT DETAILS

Buckley Sports Facility 
Consultative Committee

3 + 2
Officers

Local Members: Carol Ellis, 
Dennis Hutchinson &  
VACANCY X 1

Until 
May 2022

Mr. Jeff Shields & Mr. Colin Hughes
Facility Manager,
Buckley Sports Centre
Mill Lane,
Buckley
Flinthshire CH7 3HQ
Tel: 01244 845440
Email:Jeff.shields@flintshire.gov.uk
Colin.hughes@flintshire.gov.uk

Clwyd Alyn Housing 
Association
- Flintshire Support Network 

1 + 1
Officer

Cabinet Member for Housing: 
Bernie Attridge 

Yes Until 
May 2022

Mrs. Janice Armitt,
Senior Resident Services Administrator,
Clwyd Alyn Housing Association,
Unit  72, Ffordd William Morgan
St. Asaph Business Park,
Glascoed Road,
St. Asaph 
Denbighshire
LL17 0JD
Tel:01745 536815
Email:janice.armitt@clwydalyn.co.uk

 Clwyd Powys Archaeological 
Trust

1 + 1
Officer

Janet Axworthy Until 
May 2022

Mr. Chris Martin,
41 Broad Street,   
Welshpool,
Powys
SY21 7RR
Tel: 01938 553670
Email:chrismartin@cpat.org.uk

Clwydian Range and Dee 
Valley Area of Outstanding 
Natural Beauty Joint  
Committee

2 Cabinet Member for Economic 
Development: Derek Butler & 
Cabinet Member for 
Streetscene & Countryside: 
Carolyn Thomas

Yes Until 
May 2022

Mr Steve Price,
Democratic Services Manager,
Denbighshire County Council,
County Hall, Wynnstay Road, Ruthin,
Denbighshire  LL15 1YN 
Tel: 01824 712589
Email:steve.price@denbighshire.gov.uk

T
udalen 260



5

OUTSIDE BODY NO. OF 
SEATS

 COUNCILLOR 
REPRESENTATIVES

CABINET 
MEMBER

TERM
OF OFFICE

CONTACT DETAILS

Connah’s Quay Sports 
Centre Management

4  + 2
Officers

Local Members: Andrew 
Dunbobbin, Paul Shotton, Ian 
Dunbar & Ian Smith

Until 
May 2022

Mrs. Ann Peers,
Head Teacher,
Connah’s Quay High School,
Golftyn Lane,
Connah’s Quay,
Deeside, CH5 4BH
Tel: 01244 813491
Email:cqmail@connahsquayhs.org.uk

Environmental Protection 
U.K. North West Division

2 + 3
Officers

Cabinet Member for Planning 
and Public Protection: Chris 
Bithell & David Evans

Yes Until 
May 2022

Mr. Neil Turner, Vice President,
Environmental Protection U.K.,
45 Down Green Road
Harwood
Bolton
BL2 3QD
Tel: 07888700431
Email:nandeve.turner@ntlworld.com

Flintshire Disability Forum 
(The FDF)

1 Cabinet Member for Social 
Services: Chris Jones

Yes Until 
May 2022

Mrs. Jan Thomas, 
Chief Officer
The FDF
c/o Old Town Hall
Earl Road
Mold
Flintshire
CH7 1AB
Tel: 01352 756618 & 01352 755546
Email:thomasj@thefdf.org.uk

Flintshire Local Access 
Forum

1 David Evans Until 
May 2022

Mr Stephen Bartley Secretary to 
Flintshire  Local Access Forum, 
Public Rights of Way, 
Planning & Environment ,County Hall, 
Mold,
CH7 6NF
Tel: 01352 704622
laf@flintshire.gov.uk

T
udalen 261

mailto:nandeve.turner@ntlworld
file:///C:/Users/cscsrjr/AppData/Local/Temp/3/notes7B73A2/laf@flintshire.gov.uk


6

OUTSIDE BODY NO. OF 
SEATS

 COUNCILLOR 
REPRESENTATIVES

CABINET 
MEMBER

TERM
OF OFFICE

CONTACT DETAILS

Flintshire Tourism 
Association

1 Cabinet Member for Economic 
Development: Derek Butler

Yes Until 
May 2022 

Richard L Jones,
Business Development Officer, 
Flintshire County Council
County Hall,
Mold, Flintshire.
Tel: 01352 702136
Email:Richard.L.Jones@flintshire.gov.uk

Food Waste Joint Committee 1 + 1 
Officer

Cabinet Member for 
Streetscene & Countryside: 
Carolyn Thomas

Yes Until 
May 2022

Samantha Bates
Waste Operation Manager
Kinmel Park Depot,
Kinmel Park,
Bodelwyddan,
Denbighshire,
LL18 5UX
Tel:01824 712112
Email:samantha.bates@denbighshire.gov
.uk

Foster Care Panel 1 Dave Mackie No Until
 May 2022

Peter Robson, Resource Manager, 
Children’s Services,
Flintshire County Council
Tel: 01352 701028
Email:peter.robson@flintshire.gov.uk

Groundwork North Wales 1 Cabinet Member for Economic 
Development: Derek Butler

Yes Until 
May 2022

Karen Balmer CPFA
Chief Executive 
Groundwork North Wales
3-4 Plas Power Road
Tanyfron
Wrexham
LL11 5SZ
Tel: 01978 757524
Email:Karen.balmer@groundworknorthwa
les.org.uk

T
udalen 262



7

OUTSIDE BODY NO. OF 
SEATS

 COUNCILLOR 
REPRESENTATIVES

CABINET 
MEMBER

TERM
OF OFFICE

CONTACT DETAILS

Hawkesbury Community 
Centre Management 
Committee

3 Local Members: Dennis 
Hutchinson, Carol Ellis &  
VACANCY X 1

Until 
May 2022

Mrs Julia Jones
Secretary to Management Committee,
Hawkesbury Community Centre,  
1 Church Close
Buckley,
Flintshire, 
Email:juliajones31@hotmail.co.uk

John Wynne School and 
Exhibition Trusts

2 Cabinet Member for Education:  
Ian Roberts & local member: 
Andrew Holgate 

Yes Until 
May 2022

Mrs. Jane Jones, Secretary
19 Bron Haul,
Trelawnyd,
Rhyl,
LL18 6DU
Tel: 01745 570982
Email: janejones1920@hotmail.co.uk

Joint Council for Wales

Executive Committee

2 + 1
Officer

Billy Mullin & Aaron Shotton

Aaron Shotton

Yes Until 
May 2022

Mrs. Sharon Carney,
Senior Manager, Human Resources and 
Organisational Development,
Flintshire County Council,
County Hall,
Mold.
Tel: 01352 702139
Email: sharon.carney@flintshire.co.uk

Leeswood Community Centre 
Management
Committee

1 Local Member: Ray Hughes Until 
May 2022 

Mr. C. Venables,
Chairman,
Leeswood Community Centre,
23 Heol-y-Goron,
Leeswood,
Nr. Mold, 
Flintshire, CH7 4RN.
Tel: 01352 770728 
Email: 

Llwyni Strategy Group 2 Local Members: Ian Smith & Ian 
Dunbar

Until 
May 2022

Mr Tom Woodall. Countryside Service, 
Wepre Park, Wepre Drive, Connah’s 
Quay, CH5 4HL
Tel: 01352 703902 
Email:tom.woodall@flintshire.gov.uk

T
udalen 263

mailto:tom.woodall@flintshire


8

OUTSIDE BODY NO. OF 
SEATS

 COUNCILLOR 
REPRESENTATIVES

CABINET 
MEMBER

TERM
OF OFFICE

CONTACT DETAILS

Management Committee of 
the Daniel Owen Community 
Centre

2 Chris Bithell & Haydn Bateman Yes Until 
May 2022

Mr. Karen Hodgkinson,
Daniel Owen Community Association,
Daniel Owen Precinct,
Earl Road,
Mold,
CH7 1AP
Tel : 01352 754792
Email:danielowencmold@hotmail.com

Mersey Dee Alliance 1 + 1
Officer

Aaron Shotton Yes Until 
May 2022

Mrs. Nicola Powell,
Mersey Dee Alliance, 
Programme Officer,
Cheshire West & Chester HQ,
2 Nicholas Street, 2nd Floor,
Chester,
CH1 2NP.
Tel: 0151 356 6567
Email:nicola.Powell@cheshirewestandch
ester.gov.uk

North Wales Community 
Health Council
Flintshire Local Committee 

3 David Wisinger,  David Mackie 
& Gladys Healey

Yes Until 
May 2022

Ms Gill Cashman,
Department for Health & Social Services, 
Welsh Government
Cathays Park,
Cardiff CF10 3NQ
Tel: 02920 821579
Email:gill.cashman@wales.gsi.gov.uk
Chief Officer,  Betsi Cadwaladr 
Community Health Council,  11 Chestnut 
Court, Park Menai,  Bangor, Gwynedd, 
LL57 4FH   
Email:admin@waleschc.org.uk

T
udalen 264

mailto:admin@waleschc.org.uk


9

OUTSIDE BODY NO. OF 
SEATS

 COUNCILLOR 
REPRESENTATIVES

CABINET 
MEMBER

TERM
OF OFFICE

CONTACT DETAILS

North Wales Deaf 
Association

1 VACANCY X 1 Until 
May 2022 

Sarah Matthews, 
Chief Executive,
North Wales Deaf Association,
77 Conway Road,
Colwyn Bay,
LL29 7LN.
Tel: 01492 530013
Email:sarah.matthews@deafassociation.
co.uk

North Wales Economic 
Ambition Board

1 Cabinet Member for Economic 
Development: Derek Butler

Yes Until 
May 2022

Glesni Williams
Senior Support & Information Officer
Support Service,
Gwynedd Council Council Offices,
Shire Hall Street,
Caernarfon,
Gwynedd , LL55 1SH
Tel: 01286 679701 (2701) 
Email:glesniwilliams@gwynedd.gov.uk

North Wales Fire Authority     

 

 

6

 

 

Paul Shotton, Ian Dunbar, 
David Wisinger, Owen Thomas, 
Marion Bateman & Veronica 
Gay

 

Until 
May 2022

Miss Alwen Davies,
Member Liaison Officer
North Wales Fire & Rescue Service,
St. Asaph Business Park,
St. Asaph,
Denbighshire
Tel: 01745 535286
Email:alwen.davies@nwales-
fireservice.org.uk

North Wales Police and 
Crime Panel

2 Neville Phillips (LD) and Chris 
Bithell (L) 

 Annual 
Appointment

Angharad Jones, PA to the Police and 
Crime Commissioner and the Chief 
Executive,
Glan y Don,
Colwyn Bay, LL29 8AW
Tel: 01492 805143
Email:OPCC@nthwales.pnn.police.uk

T
udalen 265

mailto:alwen.davies@nwales


10

OUTSIDE BODY NO. OF 
SEATS

 COUNCILLOR 
REPRESENTATIVES

CABINET 
MEMBER

TERM
OF OFFICE

CONTACT DETAILS

North Wales Psychiatric Fund 1 Adele Davies-Cooke Until 
May 2022

Hilary Owen,
Admin Building,
Bryn y Neuadd Hospital,
Aber Road,
Llanfairfechan
Conwy
LL33 0HH
Tel: 01248 682509
Email:hilary.owen@wales.nhs.uk

North Wales Residual Waste 
Partnership

2 Leader: Aaron Shotton and 
Cabinet Member for 
Streetscene: Carolyn Thomas 

Yes Until
May 2022

Mr. Colin Everett, 
Chief Executive,
County Hall, Mold
Tel: 01352 702100
Email: chief_executive@flintshire.gov.uk

North Wales Safer 
Communities Board  

1 Cabinet Member for Planning & 
Public Protection: Chris Bithell

Yes Until
May 2022

Dr. Sian Jones,
Community Safety Manager,
Community Protection,
Flintshire County Council,
County Hall, 
Mold, Flintshire.
Tel: 01352 702132
Email: sian-jones@flintshire.gov.uk

North Wales Trunk Road 
Agency Joint committee

1 Cabinet Member for 
Streetscene: Carolyn Thomas

Yes Until
May 2022

Mr. Stephen Jones, 
Chief Officer Streetscene & 
Transportation,
Environment Dept,
County Hall, Mold
Tel: 01352 704700
Email: 
Stephen.O.Jones@flintshire.gov.uk

T
udalen 266

mailto:chief_executive@flintshire.gov.uk


11

OUTSIDE BODY NO. OF 
SEATS

 COUNCILLOR 
REPRESENTATIVES

CABINET 
MEMBER

TERM
OF OFFICE

CONTACT DETAILS

Popeth Cymraeg – Welsh 
Unlimited
(formerly Canolfan Iaith 
Clwyd)

1 Sean Bibby & Tudor Jones Until 
May 2022 

Mr. Ioan Talfryn,
Welsh Language Centre,
Lenten Pool,
Denbigh,LL16
Tel: 01745 812287
Email:ioan@popethcymraeg.com

Post 16 Partnership Group 
with Coleg Cambria 2 plus 1 

officer

Cabinet Member for Education: 
Ian Roberts & Tony Sharps

Yes Until
May 2022

Kim Brookes,
Business Support Manager,
Education & Youth, 
County Hall, Mold
Tel: 01352 704025
Email:kim.brookes@flintshire.gov.uk

Public Services Board 1 Leader: Aaron Shotton Yes Until 
May 2022

Karen Armstrong, 
Policy & Performance Manager,
Corporate Services,
County Hall,
Mold, Flintshire
Tel: 01352 702470
Email:karen.armstong@flintshire.gov.uk

Quarry Liaison Groups
(Including Landfill Liaison 
Groups and Padeswood 
Cement Works Liaison 
Group)

Local and adjoining ward 
Members as appropriate

Until 
May 2022 

Gary Nancarrow,
Manager Minerals & Waste Planning
Planning Services,
Planning and Environment,
Flintshire County Council,
County Hall,
Mold.
Tel: 01352 703275
Email: gary.nancarrow@flintshire.gov.uk

Reserve Forces & Cadets’ 
Association for Wales

1 Andy Dunbobbin (Flintshire 
Armed Forces Champion)

Until 
May 2022

Jody Buttle,
Head of Communications,
Reserve Forces & Cadets Ass For Wales,
Centre  Block,
Maindy Barracks, Cardiff ,CF14 3YE.
Tel: 02920 375735
Email: wa-comms@rfca.mod.uk

T
udalen 267

mailto:karen.armstong@flintshire.gov.uk


12

OUTSIDE BODY NO. OF 
SEATS

 COUNCILLOR 
REPRESENTATIVES

CABINET 
MEMBER

TERM
OF OFFICE

CONTACT DETAILS

SACRE                     8 Chris Bithell, Colin Legg, Adele 
Davies-Cooke, David Mackie, 
Ian Roberts & Janet Axworthy   
VACANCY x 2 

Yes Until 
May 2022 

Kim Brookes
Flintshire County Council,
County Hall, Mold.
Tel: 01352 704025
Email: kim.brookes@flintshire.gov.uk

School Budget Forum 2 Leader: Aaron Shotton & 
Cabinet Member for Education: 
Ian Roberts

Yes Until
May 2022

Janet Kelly,
Overview & Scrutiny,
Flintshire County Council,
County Hall, Mold
Tel: 01352 702301
Email:janet.kelly@flintshire.gov.uk

Shotton Community 
Association

2 Ron Davies & David Evans Until 
May 2022

Cllr. Elwyn Roy Jones
Chairman,
1 Beaconsfield Road,
Shotton,
Deeside,
Flintshire, CH5 1EZ
Tel: 01244 822107 / 07900291153
Email: joneselwyn@btinternet.com

Talacre Warren and Gronant 
Dunes Consultative Board

2 Local Members: Sian Braun & 
Glyn Banks

Until 
May 2022

Mr Tom Woodall
Countryside Services,
Flintshire County Council,
Wepre Park,
Connah’s Quay, Flintshire
Tel: 01352 703902
Email:tom.woodall@flintshire.gov.uk

Theatr Clwyd Board of 
Governors   

9 Veronica Gay, David Mackie,  
Marion Bateman, Chris Bithell,  
Derek Butler, David Evans, 
Brian Lloyd,  Glyn Banks & 
VACANCY  X 1

Yes Until 
May 2022 

Melanie Jones
Theatr Clwyd
Tel: 01352 701566
Email:Melanie.Jones@flintshire.gov.uk

T
udalen 268



13

OUTSIDE BODY NO. OF 
SEATS

 COUNCILLOR 
REPRESENTATIVES

CABINET 
MEMBER

TERM
OF OFFICE

CONTACT DETAILS

Valuation Tribunal  for Wales
North Wales Region – Joint 
Appointing Panel (Flintshire) 
Area

1  Dave Hughes Until 
May 2022

Gillian Kind,
Clerical Officer,
North Wales Region,
Government Buildings Block A (L1)
Sarn Mynach
Llandudno Junction
LL31 9RZ
Tel: 03000 625350
Email:vtwalesnorth@vtw.gsi.gov.uk

Wales Council of the Blind 1 Paul Cunningham Until 
May 2022

Rebecca Phillips
External Engagement Officer
Wales Council of the Blind
2nd Floor
Hallinans House
22 Newport Road
Cardiff 
CF24 0DB
Tel: 02920 473954
Email: bec@wcb-ccd.org.uk

Welsh Books Council 1 Cabinet Member for Education: 
Ian Roberts

Yes Until 
May 2022

Mr. Elwyn Jones,
Chief Executive,
Welsh Books Council,
Castell Brychan,
Aberystwyth,
Ceredigion,  SY23 2JB
Tel: 01970 624151
Email:castellbrychan@cllc.org.uk

Welsh Border Community 
Transport

1 Veronica Gay Until 
May 2022

Mr. Gary Feather,
Welsh Border Community Transport,
Town Council Building,
The Cross,
Mold Road,  Buckley,
Flintshire, CH7 2JB
Tel: 01244 544474
Email:welshborderct@aol.com

T
udalen 269

mailto:vtwalesnorth@vtw
mailto:welshborderct@aol.com


14

OUTSIDE BODY NO. OF 
SEATS

 COUNCILLOR 
REPRESENTATIVES

CABINET 
MEMBER

TERM
OF OFFICE

CONTACT DETAILS

WLGA Executive Board 1 Leader: Aaron Shotton Yes Until 
May 2022

Susan Perkins
Welsh Local Government Association
Local Government House,
10 Drake Walk,
Cardiff, CF10 4LG
Tel: 029 2048 8600
Email: susan.perkins@wlga.gov.uk

WLGA Council 4 Leader: Aaron Shotton, Deputy 
Leader: Bernie Attridge, Leader 
of the Independent Group: Tony 
Sharps and Michelle Perfect

Yes Until 
May 2022

Susan Perkins
Welsh Local Government Association
Local Government House,
10 Drake Walk,
Cardiff, CF10 4LG
Tel: 029 2048 8600
Email: susan.perkins@wlga.gov.uk

Outside bodies which have been disbanded or to which we no longer nominate Member representatives

The Alliance (formerly Alliance for Regional Aid)
Cadwyn Clwyd
Coed Llai Sport and Social Club
Coleg Cambria Corporation
Deeside Community Arts   
Environment Protection Advisory Committee for Wales
Flintshire Community Safety Executive
Flintshire Furniture Recycling
Flintshire Rural Partnership
Flintshire Sports Council
Greenfield Valley Trust Ltd   
Health, Social Care and Well-being Partnership Board
Heather & Hillforts
Mold Town Partnership Executive Committee

T
udalen 270



15

North East Wales Homes
North Wales Economic Forum
North Wales Waste Planning Member Group
Tourism Partnership North Wales
Wales Home Safety Council
Welsh Joint Education Committee
Voluntary Council for Wales
Taith Consortium

T
udalen 271



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn bw
rpasol


	Rhaglen
	2 Cofnodion
	9 Adroddiad Blynyddol y Lluoedd Arfog
	Enc. 1 Armed Forces Covenant Annual Report 2016/17

	10 Adroddiad Perfformiad Blynyddol 2016/17
	Appendix 1 - Annual Performance Report 2016/17
	Appendix 2 – Improvement Plan 2016/17 Risk Register
	Appendix 3 - Improvement Plan Measures Data Table
	Appendix 4 – Public Accountability Measures Data Table
	Appendix 5 – Glossary of Terms

	11 Adroddiad Blynyddol Drafft 2018/19 Panel Annibynnol Cymru ar Gydnabyddiaeth Ariannol
	Appendix 1 - Covering letter from IRPW
	Appendix 2 - IRPW draft report for 2018/19

	12 Ailbenodi Cynrychiolydd Cyngor Tref a Chymuned
	13 Penodiadau i Gyrff Allanol
	Appendix 1 - Current Outside Bodies list.


